
  CITY COUNCIL AGENDA         
 865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

June 2, 2015    6:00 p.m. 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance 
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

1. CALL TO ORDER
Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

2. HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS
a. Employee Recognition for John Wollschlager – 15 years of service
b. Proclamation in Recognition of Pride Month – June 2015

3. PRESENTATIONS
a. Whidbey Island Nordic Lodge – Barbara Wilson (President)
b. 2014 Police Department Annual Report

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD

6. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Minutes of the Special Workshop and Regular City Council meetings held on May 19, 2015
b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers
c. Ordinance 1729: Amending OHMC Ch. 13.36 entitled "Fire Protection Systems"

and Resolution 15-17: Amending Schedule F of the Master Fee Schedule
d. Ordinance 1734: Adoption of Official Zoning Map
e. Resolution 15-18: Island County Hazard Mitigation Plan

7. STAFF, MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator –  Wastewater Treatment Plant Staff Update
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

8. ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTIONS
a. Ordinance 1720: Amendment to Site Plan Review Procedures Code (OHMC 19.48)
b. Ordinance 1733: Amending OHMC Chapter 19.36 entitled ‘Sign Code’
c. Resolution 15-19: Adopting Oak Harbor City Street Light Pole Banner Policy

1



  CITY COUNCIL AGENDA         
 865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

June 2, 2015    6:00 p.m. 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance 
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

11. NEW BUSINESS
a. Proposal to allow placement of the Prowler Memorial at the Marina lookout on E Pioneer

Way near Pasek Street
b. Report on the possible relocation of the RV Park to the Marina during the Wastewater

Treatment Plant Construction

12. ADJOURNMENT

As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the meeting begins. 
During the meeting’s Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input regarding subjects of concern or 
interest that are not on the agenda. 

For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet, located in the 
Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure your comments are recorded 
properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone.  Please limit your comments to three minutes in 
order that other citizens have sufficient time to speak. 

Thank you for participating in your City Government! 

2



3



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Oak Harbor Police Department 
2014 Annual Report

FROM: Edgar J. Green, Chief of Police 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
N/A

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Oak Harbor Police Department has compiled data from 2014 documenting things pertaining to:

1. Criminal Investigations / Activity

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 3.b
Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Oak Harbor Police Department 
2014 Annual Report

FROM: Edgar J. Green, Chief of Police 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
N/A

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Oak Harbor Police Department has compiled data from 2014 documenting things pertaining to:

1. Criminal Investigations / Activity1. Criminal Investigations / Activity
2. Staff
3. Community Service
4. Animal Control
5. Budget / Expenses
6. “State of the Department” in 2014; and today / and the future

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2014 Annual Report

1. Criminal Investigations / Activity
2. Staff
3. Community Service
4. Animal Control
5. Budget / Expenses
6. “State of the Department” in 2014; and today / and the future

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2014 Annual Report

4

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=abce56620a35eed30d56f8b7a4c9e82b&aName=1432757133_at.pdf


 

OHPD 2014 

O  H  P  D  

Annu a l  Re po r t  

5



 

Oak Harbor Police 
Department 

860 S.E. Barrington Drive 

Oak Harbor, WA  98277 

 

Phone:  360.279.4600 

Fax:  360.279.4609 

www.OakHarbor.org 

6



T    C  
Introduc on 

            Message From The Chief ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 4 
             
1.  About the OHPD 

Mission Statement & Values ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 6 

Facts in Brief  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 7 

Organiza onal Chart ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 8 

Training   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 9 

Personnel Updates ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 10 

Community Advisory Board ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 12 

Budgets ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 14 
 

2.  Administra on Division  

Personnel   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 15 
 

3.  Community Service Team 

Community Service Officer ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 16 

Traffic Safety Officer ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 17 

School Resource Officer ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 18 

Animal Control Officer ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 22 

A.C. Holding Facility ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 23 

Chaplain  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 24 

Facebook & Neighborhood Watch ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 25 

Na onal Night Out ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 26 

Prescrip on Drug Drop Off Box ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 28 
 

4.  Inves ga on Division 

Informa on & Sta s cs ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 29 

Detec ves ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 30 

Drug Enforcement Officer ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 33 
 

5.  Patrol Division 

Informa on   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 34 

Sergeants   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 35 

Patrol Officers ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 36 

6.  Special Units 

High Risk Entry Team (HRET) ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 42 
 
7.  Jail Division 

Personnel & Background ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 46 
 

8.  Records Division 

Personnel & Background ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 48 
 
9. Auxiliary Units 

Reserve Officer Program‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 50 

Ci zen Volunteers ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 51 

Explorer Post ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 52 
 

10. Sta s cs 

Calls for Service ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 54 

Arrests   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 56 

Part 1 Crimes ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 59 

Other Crimes ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 59 

Arrest Classifica ons ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 59 

Offenses Reported ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 60 

Property Loss Statement ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 62 

Vehicle Loss Statement ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 63 
 
11. Traffic  

Informa on & Sta s cs ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 64 

DUI Arrests   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 64 

Cita ons Issued  ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 65 

Traffic Stops   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 65 

Ac vity Disposi ons ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 65 

Tickets By Loca on ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 66 

Reportable Collisions ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 67 

Accident Enforcement ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 67 

Collision Factors ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 68 

Accidents By Loca on ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 69 
 

12. Photos 

Photos   ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 70 

O  H  P  D   

2014 A  R  

7



4 

 

 

M  F  T  C  
  Another year has passed and we con nue to try to be the police department you as a community 
want  and desire.  The Oak Harbor Police Department has worked hard  at  implemen ng  a  community  ‐
oriented approach to everything we are doing. 

  Some of that approach is exemplified in this year’s Annual Report. We started simplifying the report 
last year  in an a empt  to make  it easier  to read and  to address  those areas  that  the police Community 
Advisory Board (CAB) has told us were important to you, our community.  

  This year we will con nue this process. We are obligated to produce a report that is comprehensive 
and cohesive. But at the same  me I want to make it something that you are willing to pick up and read to 
garner  informa on, whether  it  is  to  learn about what we do or  to  just find out  the officers’ names and 
informa on who work for the Oak Harbor Police Department. I also want you to look through this, and if 
there is something we can do differently or there is a be er idea, contact us.  

  Our own core values require that our community be ac vely involved in how we operate.  
Core Values 

 To involve the community in all policing ac vi es which directly affect the quality of life. 
 To preserve and advance the principals of democracy. 
 To maintain crime preven on as our primary goal. 
 To manage our resources carefully and effec vely. 
 To involve our employees in ma ers that affect the job sa sfac on and effec veness. 
 To maintain the highest levels of integrity and professionalism in all aspects of our 

opera ons.   
 

O  H  P  D  

Induc on Into Lions Club & Volunteering with the Club 

8



5  

M  F  T  C  
  We will be professional and we aim to be as transparent as the law will allow. But we cannot do this 
alone, we need your input, we need to know what “you want” as a community.  

  So as you read through this document, remember: we are your police department and we are here 
to serve. We are always open to discussions about adjus ng how we do things and how to perform be er.  

  The Oak Harbor Police Department was short staffed for part of 2014. But we have hired staff to 
replace folks that have le  and I am pleased to say that as of the publica on of this report we are again at 
full staff.  

  Staffing  levels are cri cal to us. They are determined by our calls for service and the needs of our 
community. When we fall below our requisite staffing  levels, addi onal patrols and programs have to be 
set aside so we can concentrate of our primary duty: patrol.  

  With  this  said, 2015 will  see  the  reintegra on of  some of  those programs we have  set aside. So 
watch our department Web Site and Facebook pages in case there is something we are doing  n which you 
want to be a part.  
 
Respec ully, 

 
 
 
 

Edgar J. Green 
Chief of Police 

D  T  C    S  

At a Training Drill 

Talking with Local Boy Scouts 

Presen ng a liquor compliance 

check award to Albertsons. 

9



6 

 

 

1   ~    A   T  O  H  

                        P  D  

“The Oak Harbor Police Department embodies everything 

I think a police department should be. The officers who 

work this department are some of the finest people I 

have ever met, and I am honored to be working with 

them. The Oak Harbor Police Department is ‘your police 

department,’ and I would encourage any one of you to 

stop in and say ‘hi’ if you have the opportunity.”  

~Chief Ed Green 

O  H  P  D  M  S    V  

 

M  S  

D    C  S    S  

 

C  V  

To Involve the Community in All Policing Ac vi es Which Directly Affect the Quality of Life 

To Preserve and Advance the Principles of Democracy 

To Maintain Crime Preven on as Our Primary Goal 

To Manage Our Resources Carefully and Effec vely 

To Involve the Employees in Ma ers That Affect Job Sa sfac on and Effec veness 

To Maintain the Highest Levels of Integrity and Professionalism in All Aspects of Our Opera ons 

10



7  

F  I  B  

Oak Harbor 
City Limits 

9.42 Square 
  Miles 

City 
Popula on 

Est. 22,136  
(07‐13 US Census Bureau) 

 

Miles of 
Streets 

68.74 

Local 
Businesses 

1,621 

Public Schools 

Nine 

Students Enrolled 

5,576  
(05‐14 Office of Superintendent  

of Public Records) 

NAS Whidbey 

7,200 Military Personnel 

1,200 Civilian Employees 

1,200 Contractors Island County 
Popula on 

78,801 
(07‐13 US Census Bureau) 

Yearly Visitors 
to Decep on 
Pass State Park 

(2014) 

2,700,000 

Skagit Valley 
College 

1,254 
Students 

83 Staff 

11



8 

 

 

O  

C  

O  H    

P    

D  

12



9  

  In January 2006, the Washington State Criminal Jus ce Training Commission required that every 

peace officer  cer fied under RCW 43.101.095 must  complete  a minimum of  twenty‐four hours of  in‐

service  training  annually. The Oak Harbor Police Department  failed  to meet  those  standards  in 2006, 

2007, 2008, 2010 and 2011. In 2012 and 2013, the Oak Harbor Police Department took a more aggressive 

approach toward ensuring that officers met the minimum of twenty‐four hours of training, which enable 

the department to successfully meet those requirements on a con nual basis. 

  In 2014, the Oak Harbor Police Department a ended a total of 2,227 hours of training conducted 

by the Washington State Criminal Jus ce Training Commission, the Washington State Patrol, the Federal 

Bureau of Inves ga on, private training consultants and local in‐service training.  This training amounted 

to  an  average of  51.8  hours  for  each of  the Department’s  43  staff  and  reserves.  These numbers  are 

considerably lower compared to 2013. This is a result of the department achieving the standards lacking  

in  prior  years.  In  an  effort  to  get  all  staff  up‐to‐date  on  required  training,  2013’s  totals  reflect  an 

unusually high amount of training. The training levels a ained in 2014 are more representa ve of what 

can be expected year to year as we strive to keep training for all employees current. 

T  

I  O  (5) 

2014 Training Hours  363 

2013 Training Hours  561 

A  P  (3) 

2014 Training Hours  145 

2013 Training Hours  194 

S  S  P  (4) 

2014 Training Hours  19 

2013 Training Hours  77 

C  O  (7) 

2014 Training Hours  214 

2013 Training Hours  163 

R  O  (6) 

2014 Training Hours  53 

2013 Training Hours  956 

P  O  (19) 

2014 Training Hours  1,432 

2013 Training Hours  1,840 

A  C  (1) 

2014 Training Hours  1 

2013 Training Hours  97 

Y  C  

2014 Training Hours  2,227 

2013 Training Hours  3,888 

13



10 

 

 

Rob Hartman 

Correc ons Officer 

Correc ons  Officer  Hartman  started  his  career  with 
the  Oak  Harbor  Police  Department  in  September  of 
1997. He re red in February of 2014, comple ng more 
than 16 years of service. Correc ons Officer Hartman 
was  a  commi ed  and  dedicated  employee  whose 
departure  was  felt  throughout  the  Correc ons 
Division.  

Ron Ho amp 

Detec ve 

Detec ve Ho amp was a  long‐tenured officer, star ng his career with 
the  Oak  Harbor  Police  Department  in  May  of  1989.  He  re red  in 
January of 2014 a er comple ng nearly 25 years of service. He worked 
a variety of assignments  from patrol to K‐9 handler to detec ve. With 
his local knowledge and exper se he became the “go to” person in the 
detec ve bureau to solve a crime.  

Tim Sterkel 

Captain 

Captain Sterkel was a long‐tenured officer star ng his career with 
the Oak Harbor Police Department in October of 1975. He re red 
in  April  of  2014,  comple ng  nearly  39  years  of  service.  Captain 
Sterkel  worked  every  posi on  within  the  Oak  Harbor  Police 
Department,  eventually  rising  to  the  rank  of  Captain,  second  in 
command.  With  his  knowledge  of  procedures  and  law 
enforcement,  his  departure  impacted  the  Oak  Harbor  Police 
Department and the law enforcement community throughout the 
state of Washington.  

P  U  

14



11  

P  U  

Barbara Sampson 

Records Supervisor 

Records  Supervisor  Sampson  started  her 
career  with  the  Oak  Harbor  Police 
Department  in  September  of  1984.  She 
re red in September of 2014 a er 30 years 
of  service.  Records  Supervisor  Sampson 
was one of the  longest tenured employees 
in the Oak Harbor Police Department with a 
wealth of knowledge beyond reproach.   

 

2014  Department  
Milestones  

 

February 

John Li le 
25 Year Service 

 

September 

Barbara Sampson 
30 Year Service 

 

November 

David Faagau 
5 Year Service 

Renee Hammer 

Recep onist 

Recep onist Hammer started her career with the 
Oak  Harbor  Police  Department  in  January  of 
2003. She le  in March of 2014, comple ng more 
than  11  years  of  service.  Recep onist  Hammer 
was dedicated and commi ed to her job, making 
everyone’s  job  easier,  but  for  personal  reasons 
she relocated.    

Mayor Dudley Congratula ng Barbara on  

30 Years of Service to the City 

15



12 

 

 

  The  Police  Community  Advisory  Board  (CAB) was  established    in  1991  by  the Mayor  and  City 

Council  with  the  goal  of  establishing  a  close  rela onship  between  the  Police  Department  and  the 

community. All of the Board members are chosen as  “stakeholders” from the community, to include one 

high school student,  re red ci zens, educators, military  representa ves, business owners or managers, 

and several City residents. 

  In 2014 the CAB was looking to evaluate the effec veness of the Community survey and adjust it 

as needed to collec on addi onal informa on, begin a door knocking campaign with both residents and 

businesses to discuss police services, and visit different organiza ons to talk about police services. 

  The Oak Harbor Police Department CAB meets on the 2nd Tuesday of every month, at 4:15 p.m., 

at  the Oak Harbor Police Department.   Mee ngs are open  to  the public and ci zens are welcome and    

encouraged to a end. Please join us! 

C  A  B  ~ CAB 

Ed Johnson  Gene Barner  Jeff Campbell  Nora Daniel 

16



13  

 

 

 Contact any of the Board 
members by phone or eMail. We 
want to hear from you. Please give 
us your comments and concerns. 

 

Phone Line: 

360.675.1572 

eMail: 

CAB@OakHarbor.org 

2014  

Board  Members  
 

Chair: Ed Johnson  (09/2016) 

Gene Barner (04/2015) 

Jeffrey Campbell (03/2017) 

Nora Daniel (03/2016) 

Terry Lacey (04/2018) 

Lucas Yonkman (03/2015) 

Robert Young (04/2015) 

Member Posi on ~ Vacant 

Student Posi on ~ Vacant 

Terry Lacey  Lucas Yonkman  Robert Young 

This could 

be you! 

Vacancy 

C  A  B  ~ CAB 

N  N  O  2014 

CAB M  

C  V  

E  

17



14 

 

 

2014 B  

E  

  Budgeted  Spent  Balance  % 

2014  $5,038,267.00  $4,938,685.64  $99,581.36  98.02% 

2013  $4,960,768.00  $4,976,840.48  ‐$16,072.48  100.32% 

L  E  

E  

  Budgeted  Spent  Balance  % 

2014  $243,914.00  $254,087.59  ‐$10,173.59  104.17% 

2013  $229,146.00  $262,894.56  ‐$33,748.56  114.73% 

A  C  

18



15  

2   ~    A  D  

C  E  G    

Chief Green was born  in Los Angeles, CA, and went to work at the Los 

Angeles Police Department  in 1986. He worked there un l 1993, when 

he moved  to Washington State and  se led  in Port Townsend with his 

wife Christy  and  their  two  daughters. He worked  for  the City  of  Port 

Townsend  Police  Department  from  1993  to  2012  as  a  bicycle  patrol 

officer, a  regular patrol officer, and a  training officer.  In 2001, he was 

promoted to Sergeant, and in 2006, to Administra ve Sergeant (second 

in command). On October 29, 2012, Chief Green was hired by the City of 

Oak Harbor as the Police Chief.  Chief Green holds a BA in Social Science 

from Washington State University.  

C  T  G  

Captain Gardner moved to Oak Harbor in January of 1979, and has lived 
in the community for 36 years.  She was hired by the Oak Harbor Police 
Department as a police officer in February of 1996.  While on patrol, she 
held  collateral  du es  of  bicycle  patrol,  Field  Training  Officer,  and 
quarried  for  the  K‐9  dog.    In  June  of  1999,  she  was  selected  for  a 
Detec ve  posi on  specializing  in  Sex  Crimes  and  Child  Forensic 
Interviewing.   Another  collateral duty  she held while  in  the Detec ve 
Division was  the Hostage  / Crisis Nego a ons Team.    In November of 
2008, she was promoted to Detec ve Sergeant un l April of 2014, when 
she was promoted to Captain. 

A  A  M  M   

Meg was born and  raised  in northern New  Jersey. She moved  to Port 

Townsend in 1999. She holds a BA in Psychology from the College of Mt. 

St. Vincent in  Riverdale, New York. She has many years of experience as 

an Administra ve Assistant for companies large and small ranging from 

Warner Bros. Records in Manha an to MarinerBank, a local community 

bank in Port Townsend. Meg was hired in October 2013 and she and her 

husband Preston live in Oak Harbor.  

19



16 

 

 

3   ~   C   S   T  

C   S  O   ( C S O )  

Jennifer Yzaguirre; CSO 

  The  OHPD was  fortunate  to  have  Officer  Jennifer  Yzaguirre  as 

Community Service Officer (CSO) from January through April.  The CSO’s 

main focus is to work closely with the community, and businesses within 

the community. At the end of April, Officer Yzaguirre was reassigned to 

Patrol  due  to manpower  shortage.  The  posi on  is  currently  unfilled.  

However, the department  is dedicated to filling this  important posi on 

as soon as possible. 

  Though Officer Yzaguirre worked as the CSO for only a short  me 

in  2014,  she  was  extremely  ac ve  with  and  within  the  community.  

Included  in her many du es were working closely with the Chamber of 

Commerce, the Downtown Merchants, and the Neighborhood Watches. 

  During the month of January, Officer Yzaguirre held a Neighborhood Watch mee ng, a program 

she  ini ated.  She  con nued  her work with  the Washington  State  Liquor  Control  Board,  interviewed 

perspec ve  OHPD  Ci zen  Volunteers,  maintained  the  pos ngs  for  the  OHPD  Facebook  page,  was 

interviewed by the Whidbey News‐Times, and a ended numerous community mee ngs. 

  Officer Yzaguirre also had an  interview with a KOMO 4 News  reporter. Officer Yzaguirre  talked 

about  how  Law  Enforcement,  in  general  as well  as with  the  OHPD, was  struggling with  the  lack  of 

applicants for open Police Officer posi ons. This interview led to a KOMO TV interview with Chief Green 

about  the subject. This resulted  in  immediate publicity and an  influx of applicants  for  the open officer 

posi ons at the OHPD. 

  In February and part of March, Officer Yzaguirre was out of the CSO posi on. Mid‐March, she was 

temporarily reassigned to Patrol for two weeks due to manpower issues. 

  In April, Officer Yzaguirre returned to the CSO posi on. She worked with the Washington State 

Liquor Control Board  regarding  issues with  a  local  establishment.  She worked with  the OHPD Ci zen 

Volunteers,  and  began mee ngs  to  plan  for  Na onal  Night Out  (NNO),  held  every  year  on  the  first 

Tuesday in August.    

20



17  

3   ~   C   S   T  

T   S  O   ( T S O )  

Traffic Safety Officer  

Loyd Carter: 

Officer  Carter  was 
promoted  to  the  rank  of 
Sergeant  in  August  of 
2014.  Sergeant Carter was 
then assigned to D squad. 

  Officer  Carter  con nued  to  serve  as  the  Traffic  Safety  Officer 
(TSO)  in 2014. As TSO, Officer Carter was ac ve around  the city doing 
enforcement on one of OPHD’s police motorcycles. 

  Officer  Carter  is  known  for  his  presence  in  the  school  zones.  
Officer Carter’s presence was appreciated by students and school staff 
alike. 

  Officer Carter was responsible for keeping track of traffic related 
complaints  around  the  city.  Those  complaints  are  used  to  determine 
loca ons to place the department radar trailer. The complaints are also 
used to no fy the proper city department or outside agency to correct a 
problem or issue on the city streets. 

  Officer Carter con nued to serve as the department’s only Drug 
Recogni on Expert (DRE). Officer Carter assists not only the Oak Harbor 
Police Department in this func on but has been requested by the Island 
County Sherriff’s Office and Washington State Patrol.   

  During the  me serving as TSO, Officer Carter responded to and 
inves gated  a  total  of  51  collisions  in  the  city.  This  is  an  increase  in 
traffic collisions over the 2013 figure of 45 for the same  me frame. 

  The posi on of TSO has been vacant  since August 2014 due  to 
manning issues.  OHPD hopes to fill the posi on in the summer of 2015. 

2014 T  S  U  A  

(1  Q  O ) 

Accident Responses  12 

Criminal Traffic  8 

Traffic Stops  239 

Verbal Warnings Issued  173 

Wri en Warnings Issued  36 

Directed School Patrol   11 Hours 

Infrac ons Issued  74 

Loyd Carter; TSO 

21



18 

 

 

3   ~   C   S   T  

S   R  O   ( S RO )  

Dennis Dickinson; SRO 

The  Oak  Harbor  Pol ice  Department  

School  Resource  Officer   (SRO)  program  

i s  a  partnership  between  the  

department  and  the  Oak  Harbor  Publ ic  

Schools  with  the  goal  of  establ ish ing  a  

safe  environment   for  the   learning  

process  and  el imina ng  barr iers  

between  youth  and  pol ice .  

 

The  School  Resource  Officer  provides 
services  at Oak Harbor High  School, Oak Harbor 
Middle School and North Whidbey Middle School. 
The  School  Resource  Officer  also  provides 
services  to all  the Elementary Schools within  the 
district.  

The  Oak  Harbor  Police  SRO  is  a  visible, 
ac ve,  law  enforcement  figure  on  campus. 
Though  not  an  employee  of  the  Oak  Harbor 
Public  Schools  the  SRO  func ons  as  part  of  the 
team. Working  closely with  staff  it  allows  being 
available  to  students, parents  and  teachers. The 
unique  coopera on  between  the  SRO  and  staff 
plays  a  big  part  in  solving  and/or  preven ng  a 
variety of issues that arise on a day to day basis.   

H  

The SRO is responsible for a ending all OHHS 

home  football  games  and  school  dances 

throughout  the school year. SRO a ends  the 

yearly  senior  gradua on  event.  The  SRO 

posi on also assist those students that are in 

need of items, i.e. clothing, food, shelter, etc. 

throughout the school year. 

January 
Presenta on at City Council Mee ng 
“Caught in the Act” Award to OHHS student. 
Table Top Brief at the OHFD. 

February 
Drug Class Presenta on with 
Sheriff Mark Brown & R. Ford; OHHS Drug 
Counselor. 

March 
9th Grade Assembly Presenta on 
Bullying & Cyber Bullying. 

May 
Mock DUI Collision with  
OHHS & SAD Club 
Grad Night Mee ng with Parents. 

November 
Ac ve Shooter Table Top Exercise with 
OHHS Administra on. 

December 
Ac ve Shooter Scenario Exercise at OHHS 
Live exercise with emergency responders, 
students & staff. 

22



19  

3   ~   C   S   T  

S   R  O   ( S RO )  

Oak Harbor High School 

Broad View Elementary 

Crescent Harbor Elementary 

Oak Harbor Elementary 

Olympic View Elementary 

The  SRO  has  a  unique  job  when  it  comes  to 
students, teachers, parents, and the community. While 
the priority is being a police officer, the posi on is mul
‐faceted.  The  SRO  is  a  Liaison,  Role Model, Mediator, 
Guidance Counselor,  Educator, Crisis Nego ator, Crisis 
Support,  Problem  Solver,  and  even  a  Custodian  for 
ma ers  related  to  the welfare and  safety of everyone 
within the Oak Harbor Public School system. 

Based on  the need,  the City of Oak Harbor has 
funded  the  SRO  posi on  to  provide  the  students  and 
staff of  the Oak Harbor Public Schools with a  full‐ me 
police officer. Officer Robert D. Dickinson is the current 
School Resource Officer and  is currently  in his 3rd year 
since the program was reintroduced back in early 2012. 
He  maintains  an  office  at  the  high  school.  The 
popula on  at  the  Oak  Harbor  High  School  is  closely 
matched to a small town and with that comes a variety 
of  issues on a daily basis. Officer Dickinson works very 
closely with both Deans of Students at Oak Harbor High 
School. Due to the popula on  level at the high school, 
Officer Dickinson spends  the majority of his day at  the 
high school.  

However, he responds to the two other middles 
schools  and  as  needed  at  the  elementary  schools. 
Officer  Dickinson  responds  to  all  calls  throughout  the 
school day that involve the Oak Harbor Public Schools. 

Along with  the day  to day business of  the SRO 
posi on Officer Dickinson is also very involved with how 
the  schools  conduct  their  drills  that  are mandated  by 
the State; his  involvement assures firsthand knowledge 
of  procedures  and  prac ces  to  coordinate  with  first 
responders if the situa on arises. 

Officer  Dickinson  is  also  involved  with making 
sure that the schools have a viable safety plan when  it 
comes to a lock down due to a threat on or off campus. 
The  realiza on  is  all  schools  have  the  poten al  to  be 
placed in a lock down situa on. 

The  program  has  gained  momentum  with 

23



20 

 

 

Complaint  OHHS 
OHMS/

NWMS 
Elem. 

911 Calls  30  9  0 

Alarm  0  8  0 

Alcohol  4  0  0 

Assaults  18  2  3 

Collisions  4  0  0 

Court Order Viola on  3  0  0 

Disorderly  12  2  5 

Domes c Physical  0  0  1 

Domes c Verbal  0  0  1 

Drugs  14  3  0 

Fire Call  2  10  1 

Harassment  4  3  0 

Juvenile Neglect  1  0  0 

Malicious Mischief  6  3  2 

Medical  6  11  4 

Property  2  2  1 

Sex Offense  0  3  0 

Suicide Threats  1  0  2 

Suspicious  15  7  2 

The   7  5  0 

Threats  4  4  1 

Traffic  2  0  13 

Trespass  1  1  1 

Weapons  4  1  0 

Welfare Check  3  1  0 

3   ~   C   S   T  

S   R  O   ( S RO )  

Oak Harbor Middle School 

Home Connec on—Clover Valley 

regards  to  training. The OHFD and OHPD have 
taken a pro‐ac ve approach when  it comes  to 
safety  within  the  Oak  Harbor  Public  Schools. 
The OHFD and OHPD have partnered  together 
in combining  resources  to effec vely minimize 
the  me it takes to get to those who need help 
and/or medical  care. The  training has allowed 
OHFD  personnel  to  be  embedded with OHPD 
personnel  during  a  crisis  such  as  an  ac ve 
shooter scenario. 

The  program  has  brought  the  Oak 
Harbor  Public  Schools  and  first  responders 
closer together to resolve issues that affect the 
safety  and welfare of  students  and  staff  in  all 
the  schools  within  the  Oak  Harbor  Public 
School  system.  The  program  has  also  seen  a 
rela onship being bridged between  the police 
and  that  of  the  students,  staff  and  parents 
within the Oak Harbor Public Schools. 

24



21  

3   ~   C   S   T  

S   R  O   ( S RO )  

School  Popula ons  

 

 

The  City  of  Oak  Harbor  has  nine  public  schools  that  are  within  the  City  limits  and  /  or  its 
jurisdic on with a con nually changing popula on. The Oak Harbor High School has approximately 162 
staff and 1,600  students, encompassing 9th  through 12th grade. Having  so many people  in  such  close 
proximity and under one roof created a need  for a  full‐ me SRO presence on campus to ensure a safe 
and  secure environment. The  two middle  schools, Oak Harbor Middle School  / North Whidbey Middle 
School,  have  an  approximate  combined  popula on  of  1,200  students  and  105  staff  members.  This 
popula on  number  also  creates  the  need  to  have  an  SRO  presence  on  campus.  The  five  elementary 
schools have an approximate combined popula on of 2,490 students and 280 staff members. 

North Whidbey Middle School 

Hillcrest Elementary 

25



22 

 

 

3   ~   C   S   T  

A   C  O   ( A CO )  

Terry Sampson; ACO 

  Animal Control is an important func on of the Oak Harbor Police 
Department.  Officer  Terry  Sampson  responds  to  a  variety  of  animal 
issues – from at large dogs and cats, human animal‐bite vic ms as well as 
animal  a acking  other  animals;  and  disposal  of  deceased  animals  on 
public  roadways. He also provides deceased animal disposal service  for 
owned animals. 

  In  2014  the  Oak  Harbor  Police  Department  received  701  calls 
within the City Limits and 96 calls on Navy property. This is a decrease of 
calls from 2013 at 1305 and an  increase of calls on Navy property from 
93 to 96 calls.   

  Dogs  impounded  by Animal Control  has  decreased  from  137  in 
2013 to 119 in 2014, GOOD NEWS. 

  Cats impounded by Animal Control has also decreased from 7I in 
2013 to 64 in 2014, GOOD NEWS. 

  The Micro Chip scanners used by Animal Control has been a very 
posi ve  tool  in  reuni ng  animal with  their owners,  as more  and more 
animal  owners  are  having  their  animals Micro  Chipped.  The  Facebook 
Page is working well; the public is responding and has also been a factor 

in returning animal to their homes. 

26



23  

3   ~   C   S   T  

A  H   F  

  As part of the City’s partnership with the Whidbey Animal Improvement Founda on (WAIF), the 

Animal Control (AC) budget includes costs for repair, maintenance, and labor for the new Animal Control 

Holding Facility on Goldie Road. This amounts to about 1% of the overall budget. In 2013, AC was over‐

budget by $33,748.56, and repair, maintenance and labor accounted for 19.7 % of the total expenses for 

the year. In 2014, AC was over budget by $10,466.28, and repair, maintenance and  labor accounted for 

2.4% of the total expenses for the year. Also paid  in 2014 was an unan cipated expense of $15,000 for 

the HVAC system. 

  If you don’t already know, the new City Of Oak Harbor Animal Holding Facility  is up and running 
and working well. Whidbey Animal  Improvement  Founda on  staff  is  there  to  assist  the  public  in  the 
redeeming their animals that have been impounded by Animal Control or found by the public and turned 
in to the facility. WAIF has programs to assist animal owners  in the spaying and neutering of their cats 
and dogs and other informa on so pet owners can have a safe and healthy pet. 

27



24 

 

 

3   ~   C   S   T  

C  

What do Police Chaplains do?  This  last  year has marked my  fourth  year  serving  as  voluntary 
Chaplain  to Oak Harbor Police.  It was my privilege  to  serve  the equivalent of almost  three  full work 
weeks spread out over the year. Police Chaplains serve two communi es at once, police and ci zen.  

First of all, chaplains are a resource to all personnel at OHPD.  It has been my privilege to walk 
with  department  personnel  on  duty  in  ride  a  longs,  in  personal  celebra ons  such  as weddings  and 
career achievements, and a empt to be a resource for those facing their own life challenges outside of 
their Law Enforcement du es.  

The other community served by police chaplains  is  the civilian community. Our PD care about 
those they serve. They want to help vic ms while resolving the crisis that brought the police  into the 
civilians’  lives. The role of a police chaplain allows  law enforcement to focus on their strengths, which 
are  making  a  dangerous  situa on  safe  and  finding  the  answers  to  the  “Why?”  ques on  which 
accompanies all tragedy. Partnership with police chaplains allows special  focus to be giving to vic ms 
and their families while the police do what they do best. 

Specific events of  this  last  year  included  four  chaplain  call‐outs  for deaths  in  the  community. 
While  the  police  inves gate,  chaplains  a empt  to  assist  the  family  in dealing with  loss. One  civilian 
request was made to an officer to speak with a chaplain. There were two public events; Na onal Night 
Out and Shopping with Heroes. Two training sessions were a ended, one regarding dealing with people 
having a difficult  me and one training to recognize drug use symptoms. 

Many addi onal hours were spent researching Cri cal Incident Stress Management (CISM). For a 
chaplain  to best  serve  the OHPD and  the ci zens of Oak Harbor, advance prepara on and  training  is 
needed  for proper and efficient  response  to cri cal  incidents. Chief Green has wisely allowed me, as 
chaplain, to obtain the knowledge and skills necessary to be the most effec ve asset possible  in those 
difficult  mes.  

I  am  proud  of  the  professionalism  and  commitment  of  Oak  Harbor’s  Law  Enforcement 
personnel. It is an honor to serve with them! 

82.75 Total Hours For 2014 

Ride ‐A‐Longs: 21.25 Hours 

Department Contacts: 46 

C  H  

Training: 3.50 Hours 

Emergency Call Outs: 12 

Dr. Ron Lawler; Chaplain 

Chaplain Lawler spent 

countless hours of his 

personal  me obtaining his 

Doctorate in Theology this 

year. Addi onally, in his 

spare  me, he developed 

Cri cal Incident Stress 

Management protocols for 

the department, which will 

be implemented in the near 

future. 

28



25  

3   ~   C   S   T  

F    N  W  

N  W  

What is a Neighborhood Watch? 

A  neighborhood  watch  program  is  a  group  of 

people  living  in  the  same  area  who  want  to 

make  their  neighborhood  safer  by  working 

together  and  in  conjunc on  with  local  law 

enforcement to reduce crime and improve their 

quality  of  life.  Neighborhood  Watch  (NW) 

groups  have  mee ngs  to  plan  how  they  will 

accomplish  their  specific  goals  and  has  NW 

Captains with assigned responsibili es. 

How Do I Establish A Neighborhood Watch 

Program In My Neighborhood? 

Neighborhood Watch’s Three Components: 

1.  Create and distribute a Member List 

2.  Complete Opera on Iden fica on 

3.  Hold Quarterly Mee ngs 

~ Have Fun With Your Neighbors ~ 

Anyone who lives in the City limits. Whether you 

live  in  an  apartment,  condominium  complex, 

townhouse, or a single family home. 

Who Can Par cipate? 

F  P  

Safety Tip Posted 12‐2014 

OHPD wants to remind those with children under 

the age of 13 years old, they must be transported 

in  the  back  seat. Most  cars  are  designed  with 

front airbags and can kill young children riding in 

the front seat. Never place a rear‐facing car seat 

in the front seat or in front of an airbag.  

(See RCW 46.61.687)  

Find us on Facebook® 
Oak Harbor PD 

The Oak Harbor PD Facebook page was 

launched on March 16, 2012.  

Year End 2012     277 Likes 

Year End 2013   1,360 Likes 

Year End 2014   2,653 Likes 

Facebook has become a useful tool. We can 

reach as many as 31,000 with a single post. 

What do we post? 

 Community Events 

 Mee ng No fica ons 

 Press Releases 

 Safety Tips 

 Scam Alerts 

 Traffic Alerts  

 Videos 

 Wanted Persons 

29



26 

 

 

3   ~   C   S   T  

N  N  O    

  Working with the Oak Harbor Lions’ Club, Officer 

Yzaguirre coordinated a highly successful Na onal Night 

Out. “Donkey‐Odie,” a miniature donkey, was a highlight 

of  the  event.  “Donkey‐  Odie”  and  his  owner,  OHPD 

Officer  Jenn Gravel, walked  around  gree ng  everyone. 

“Donkey‐ Odie” wore a  special OHPD Patrol  shirt as he 

allowed kids  to pet him and  feed him  treats. This  shirt 

honor  was  won  because  of  a  Help  House  food 

compe on  between  the Oak Harbor  Fire Department 

and  the  Police  Department.  The  winning  department 

gathering  the most  food  items  for Help House donated 

their  department’s  shirt  for  “Donkey‐Odie.”  The  two 

departments  combined gathered 1,536 pounds of  food 

for  Help  House,  and  had  friendly  compe on  while 

doing so.  

30



27  

3   ~   C   S   T  

N  N  O  

31



28 

 

 

3   ~   C   S   T  

P  D  D  O   B  

Prescrip on Drug Drop‐Off Box 

  The OHPD provides a service to the community for safe disposal of several items. Accepted are 
the  following: prescrip on drugs, over‐the‐counter medica ons, vitamins, and medica ons  for pets.  
Not accepted are the following: needles, liquids, Epipens or sharp objects of any kind. 

  The drop‐off box is located in the entrance to the night lobby at the OHPD. This entrance/lobby 
is  open  24  hours  a  day.  The  OHPD  provides  zip‐lock  baggies  for  use.  There  are  easy‐to‐follow 
instruc ons posted on the entrance wall. These instruc ons provide direc on to remove all pills from 
vials / containers and place the pills in a zip‐lock bag prior to placing the pills in the drop‐off box. We 
cannot accept vials or containers. 

32



29  

4   ~   I  D  

  In 2014 the inves ga on division went through a variety of personnel changes.  On February 1st 

2014, Detec ve Ron Ho amp re red from the Oak Harbor Police Department a er 25 years of service.  

In May of 2014, Detec ve Sergeant Teri Gardner was promoted  to Captain.  In  July of 2014, Sergeant 

Mike Bailey took over as the new Detec ve Sergeant. Also in August of 2014, DEO Detec ve Carl Seim 

was promoted to Patrol Sergeant.   

  Detec ves  have  the  responsibility  of  inves ga ng  all major  crimes, mostly  felony  cases.  The 

various crimes that are inves gated by detec ves include but are not limited to Burglary, Iden ty The , 

Internet Fraud, The , Sex Crimes, Child Crimes, Homicide, and Assaults. The  inves ga on division also 

receives all Domes c Violence cases for follow‐up un l the case is adjudicated. All detec ves assist with 

Narco c Inves ga ons and in serving Drug Search Warrants. 

  The  Inves ga ve Unit works  closely with  various  agencies  and  community  service  programs.  

Some of those other Criminal Jus ce agencies consist of the City of Oak Harbor Prosecutor’s Office and 

the  Island  County  Prosecutor’s  Office.  The  unit  also  works  with  various  Law  Enforcement  en es 

consis ng of local and out of State Municipali es, State Agencies and Federal as well. Detec ves further 

work with agencies outside of Law Enforcement, such as Child Protec ve Services, Department of Social 

Health Services and Ci zens Against Domes c & Sexual Abuse. 

  During 2014, there were 366 cases assigned to the detec ves for follow‐up inves ga ons,  with 

217 cases closed. This discrepancy in the numbers is caused by the fact that going into 2014, detec ves 

already had cases assigned to them from prior years. A second factor  in the discrepancy of the yearly 

sta s cs  is that detec ves retain each case all the way from  intake through adjudica on. An example 

would be a case assigned to a detec ve  in 2012 with an arrest made  in 2013, but the case did not go 

through trial or plea un l 2014. The sta s cs would reflect parts of this case in three separate years.   In 

2014,  the  inves ga on  division wrote  and  served  a  total  of  38  search warrants  and maintained  an 

average case load of 35 ‐ 40 cases. 

I  Y  H  A  I  A   

C  A  C  T   

O  H  P  D   

T  L  

360.679.TIPS 

33



30 

 

 

4   ~   I  D  

D  

D  S  M  B  

Has been with the Oak Harbor Police for more than 19 years and 

has been  the Detec ve  Sergeant  since  July 2014. Prior  to being 

promoted to Sergeant, Sergeant Bailey worked as a detec ve for 

five  years  and  then was  promoted  to  Patrol  Sergeant.  Sergeant 

Bailey worked as a Patrol Sergeant for almost two years and spent 

a year and half as the department’s Community Service Sergeant 

before becoming the Detec ve Sergeant. 

Det. Sgt. Mike Bailey 

C  H  2014 

In  September,  Detec ve  Sergeant  Bailey  inves gated  a  report  of  a  Registered  Sex  Offender  possibly 

having sexual rela ons with a minor. During the inves ga on, Sergeant Bailey interviewed witnesses and 

the vic m and was able to establish probable cause for the suspect. During an interview with the suspect, 

Captain Gardner and Detec ve Sergeant Bailey were able  to obtain a confession  from  the suspect. The 

suspect in this case was convicted and sentenced to prison. 

In November, Oak Harbor Officers responded to a possible road rage/assault in the NW quadrant of Oak 

Harbor. Oak Harbor Patrol Officer Horn was able to locate one of the vehicles involved and proceeded to 

stop the vehicle. The driver exited the vehicle and jumped a fence into a backyard of a residence. Officer 

Horn posi oned himself behind his patrol vehicle and heard a small caliber gun shot come from the area 

of where the driver of the vehicle was last seen. Officers on the scene were able to locate a firearm that 

was  in a field near  the driver of  the vehicle. Detec ve Sergeant Bailey conducted  the  inves ga on and 

was able to make an arrest of the driver of the vehicle who was a convicted felon. The driver was taken 

into custody and charged with Unlawful Possession of a Firearm. 

In December, Detec ve Sergeant Bailey conducted a Narco cs inves ga on that led to a Search Warrant 

being served the suspect and his residence. Three subjects were arrested to for Possession of Heroin and 

one  for  Possession with  intent  to  deliver. During  the  Search Warrant,  nine  firearms were  seized  and 

heroin was recovered. 

34



31  

4   ~   I  D  

Detec ve Jim Hoagland 

D  

C  H  2014 

In  July, Detec ve Hoagland  inves gated a possible Child Molesta on case 

involving  family  members.  During  the  inves ga on,  Detec ve  Hoagland 

was  able  to  obtain  enough  evidence  and witness  statements  in  order  to 

arrest  the  suspect.  A  Child  Forensic  Interview  was  conducted  with  the 

vic m and another child. 

In August, OHPD officers were dispatched to a call for an off duty police officer who needed assistance 

at a  loca on  in Oak Harbor.   As officers were responding, dispatched advised that  it wasn’t an officer 

needs assistance call, but a possible domes c.  Detec ve Hoagland received this case for further follow‐

up  inves ga on.   During the  inves ga on,  it was discovered that a person who was not  involved with 

the possible domes c had  told  the  repor ng party  to call  the police and  that he was a  re red police 

officer.   Detec ve Hoagland was  able  to obtain enough  informa on  to establish probable  cause  and 

subsequently  arrested  the  individual.  A er  the  suspect  was  arrested  for  Impersona on,  numerous 

pieces of evidence were recovered. 

In October, OHPD officers were dispatched  to a weapons complaint. When officers arrived on  scene, 

they  found a male subject who had been shot  in  the  face  lying on  the ground. The male subject was 

declared deceased moments  later. OHPD officers on  scene advised  that  they were currently out at a 

homicide scene and requested detec ves respond. Detec ve Sergeant Bailey, Detec ve Hoagland and 

Detec ve Silveira responded to the scene. Detec ve Hoagland was the lead inves gator of the Homicide 

inves ga on. During this inves ga on, Detec ve Hoagland wrote and served numerous search warrants 

and interviewed numerous witnesses which led to a possible suspect and an eventual arrest. 

D  J  H  

Has been with the Oak Harbor Police Department  for more than 

13 years and has been in the Inves ga ons Division for more than 

three  years.  Some  of  Detec ve  Hoagland’s  collateral  du es 

consist of the following: HRET Member, FTO, and Taser Instructor. 

Detec ve  Hoagland  also  is  tasked with  being  the  department’s 

forensic cell phone extrac on expert. 

35



32 

 

 

4   ~   I  D  

Detec ve Manny Silveira 

D  

C  H  2014 

In February, Detec ve Silveira inves gated a case involving Assault of a 

Child that was referred by Department of Social & Health Services. The 

inves ga on involved a 12‐year‐old child that had 2‐3 welt marks on the 

child’s body and that a sibling also had been whipped. A er numerous 

interviews with  possible witnesses  and  vic ms  regarding  this  case,  it 

was determined that the welt marks were caused by various things such 

as an extension cord and a belt. Subsequent the  inves ga on, a family 

member was arrested for two counts of Assault on a Child 2nd degree. 

In August, Detec ve  Silveira  inves gated  a  reported  Sexual Offense  against  a minor. A  forensic  child 

interview was  conducted  on  the minor  child  that  revealed  informa on  pertaining  to  a  Sex Offense.  

Detec ve Silveira conducted several interviews with possible witnesses and the suspect and was able to 

make an arrest of the suspect which led to mul ple related sex offenses. 

In September, Oak Harbor Patrol Units responded to a 911 call involving a subject who had been shot at 

a  residence  in Oak Harbor. Oak Harbor Patrol Units  requested  that Detec ves  respond  to  the  scene.  

Detec ve Sergeant Bailey, Detec ve Hoagland and Detec ve Silveira responded to the scene. Detec ve 

Silveira was the lead inves gator in this case. A er wri ng and serving several search warrants, Detec ve 

Silveira  had  established  enough  evidence  to  establish  that  the  subject  that  had  been  shot  had  been 

a emp ng to steal the firearm. It was determined that one of the occupants of the residence was trying 

to prevent the suspect from stealing the firearm and during the struggle over the firearm, it went off and 

struck the suspect.  

D  M  S  

Has been with the Oak Harbor Police Department  for more than 

seven years and has been in the Inves ga ons Divisions for more 

than  1  1/2  years.  Some  of  Detec ve  Silveira’s  collateral  du es 

consist  of  the  following:  HRET Member,  FTO,  and  Department 

Armorer.  

36



33  

4   ~   I  D  

D  E  O  

  This officer is assigned to the detec ve unit. Unfortunately in 2014 we were low on staff 
resul ng in the shi ing of some people to cover various posi ons. And towards mid‐year, the person 
who held this posi on was promoted to a supervisor out of the unit. It is the goal of the Oak Harbor 
Police Department to fill this posi on again as soon as prac cable.  

  For the short  me the posi on was filled the Drug Enforcement Office was responsible for 
servicing three separate drug related search warrants where methamphetamine, Herron, cocaine and 
an illegal amount of marijuana was seized.   During the warrants several items of drug paraphernalia 
were also confiscated. These warrants resulted in the arrest of five people. 

  Also this past year the drug enforcement officer recovered marijuana from a local business from 
subjects who were trying to mail it across state lines to another individual.  

  The Oak Harbor Police Department also works very closely with the Naval Criminal Intelligence 
Service (NCIS), and did so this past year on several inves ga ons linked to illegal ac vity on the military 
base.  

  In all, regardless of the lack of staff the drug enforcement officer and patrol officers made several 
arrests, confiscated numerous firearms and seized cash acquired illegally while opera ng a criminal 
enterprise. 

 

D   E  O   ( D EO )  

First Specific Drug Associated with Ini a on of Illicit Drug Use  

Among Past Year Illicit Drug Ini ates Aged 12 and Older.  

Source: Na onal Survey on Drug Use and Health, 2012 

37



34 

 

 

5   ~     P  

Patrol  Division:  The  largest  individual  component  within  the  Department,  the  Patrol  Squads  are     

composed  of  sixteen  full‐ me  posi ons  ‐  four  Patrol  Sergeants  and  twelve  Patrol  Officers.  Each         

Sergeant  supervises  a  team  of  three  officers.  Their  responsibili es  include  responding  to  primary 

(emergency)  and  secondary  (rou ne)  calls  for  service,  inves ga ng  reports  of  criminal  ac vity,          

enforcing traffic  laws and fulfilling their community caretaking responsibili es by assis ng the public, 

as  best  they  can,  by  responding  to  requests  for  assistance  in ma ers  such  as  public  speaking  and      

educa onal events, stranded motorists, answering ques ons about the  legal system and many other 

examples too numerous to detail. 

38



35  

5   ~     P  

S  

Sergeant  Niiro  is  the  department 

Explorer  Post  advisor  and  is  on  the 

Board  of Directors  for  CADA  (Ci zens 

Against  Domes c  Abuse)  and  was 

appointed  to  the City of Oak Harbor’s 

Youth Commission in 2013. 

 

Sergeant  Wilkie  is  a  patrol  sergeant 

who  oversees  a  patrol  squad,  the 

Washington  State  Traffic  Safety Grant 

Program and the High Risk Entry Team. 

He  is  a  dedicated  and  long  tenured 

employed  of  the  Oak  Harbor  Police 

Department.  

Sergeant Cedric Niiro  Sergeant Bill Wilkie 

Sergeant Carl Seim  Sergeant Loyd Carter 

Sergeant  Seim  was  promoted  to  his 
posi on  in 2014 a er working  several 
years  in  the  detec ve  division.  He 
currently oversees a patrol  squad and 
the  Field  Training  Program  for  newly 
hired officers.  

 

Sergeant  Carter  was promoted  to his 

posi on  in 2014 a er working  several 

years in the traffic and patrol divisions. 

He  currently  oversees  a  patrol  squad 

and  is the departments’ chief firearms 

instructor.  

39



36 

 

 

5   ~     P  

P  O  

Officer John Li le Officer Steve Nordstrand 

P  H  2014 

Officer Nordstrand and Sergeant Wilkie responded to a trespass complaint at an abandoned home. A 
neighbor reported there were several subjects  inside. Officer Nordstrand entered and confronted a 
subject in the living room who was arrested for Burglary. Three other subjects fled through a window 
to  the woods. Officer Nordstrand was  able  to  interview  the  suspect  to  iden fy  a  second  suspect.  
Officer  Nordstrand  later  located  the  second  suspect,  interviewed  her,  obtained  a  confession  and 
arrested her.    

In April, Officer Li le and the squad inves gated a brandishing of a weapon complaint. An occupant of 
a passing vehicle brandished what  the vic m’s believed  to be a real firearm. The squad was able  to 
back  track  the  last  loca on of  the suspect vehicle and obtain  incrimina ng surveillance video of  the 
suspect twirling what  looked  like a real gun while wai ng  in a drive through  lane of a  local fast food 
restaurant. A  legible  license plate was  seen  in  the  video.  The  vehicle  and  its occupants were  later 
located. A toy gun was located in the vehicle and as a result of an interview by Officer Li le an arrest 
was made.  

Officer Peabody  took an assault complaint  from a high school student who reported being punched 
and then poked with a knife. Officers and Detec ve Silveira conducted follow up on the case the next 
day at the high school. Following their interviews and inves ga on, arrests were made on one student 
for Assault 4th and Assault 2nd with a knife on another student.  

Officer Mike Clements 

40



37  

5   ~     P  

P  O  

Officer Pat Horn  Officer Tony Slowik 

P  H  2014 

In January, Officer Horn took the  report from a local gym. One of its members had a credit card, I‐pod 
and other items taken. Officer Horn was able to obtain video surveillance from the gym and iden fy a 
suspect.  He  located  the  suspect  while  on  rou ne  patrol  and  arrested  the  suspect  on  unrelated 
warrants  for his arrest. While  searching  the  suspect Officer Horn  found  the  stolen  I‐pod. During an 
interview Officer Horn find out that the credit card was used by another suspect at a  local business. 
Officer Horn then developed probable cause to arrest the second suspect who was  located the next 
evening by patrol. Officer Horn then  interviewed the second suspect and obtained a confession from 
the  second  suspect.  The  arrest of  the  second  suspect may  lead  to  other  crimes  commi ed by  the 
second suspect.  

Officer  Lolmaugh  and Officer Clements  responded  to  a  trespass  complaint  at Dairy Queen where a 
male subject was talking to himself, not making much sense and made comments about Al Qaeda and 
ice cream trucks. Officer Lolmaugh  located the subject tapping on the door to the Plaza Cinema. The 
subject was verbally hos le (cussing at Lolmaugh) and reached for the small of his back like he might 
be trying to grab a weapon. Officer Lolmaugh drew his pistol and ordered the subject to stop and show 
his hands. The subject complied and went to his knees when Officer Lolmaugh ordered him to do so. 
Officer  Lolmaugh  holstered  his  pistol  and  the  subject  made  the  hand  movement  again.  Officer 
Lolmaugh  moved  in  quickly  and  used  an  arm  bar  to  control  the  subject  before  placing  him  in 
handcuffs. The subject was placed under arrest for Obstruc on. No weapons were located.    

Officer Mel Lolmaugh 

41



38 

 

 

5   ~     P  

P  O  

Officer Lisa Powers‐Rang 

P  H  2014 

Officer Valenzuela and Officer Lolmaugh handled domes c assault where  the husband was stabbed  in 
the neck. They were the only two officers on duty at the  me and they did a good job handling the call. 
The vic m was transported to the hospital and they  located the crime scene and suspect, wife, whom 
they arrested a er an interview.   

Officer Esparza responded to a request for civil assistance. Officer Esparza spoke with the repor ng party 
and her friend reques ng assistance in ge ng some of her personal belongings. During this  me, Officer 
Esparza was talking with the friend who disclosed that the repor ng party was strangled and assaulted 
by her boyfriend  last night. Officer Esparza  suggested  to  the  friend  that  the  repor ng party needs  to 
make a statement which she did. Officer Esparza asked detailed ques ons regarding the choke hold, how 
she felt during the strangula on and how she was currently feeling. Officer Esparza thoroughly checked 
her  lips and eye  lids  for petechial. A er Officer Esparza  took a complaint  from  the  repor ng party he 
followed up and found the suspect. A er the interview, Officer Esparza arrested him.   

Officer  Powers‐Rang, Officer  Esparza  and Officer  Krysinski  responded  to  Bank  robbery  in  progress  at 
Whidbey Island Bank  located at 450 SW Bayshore Drive. They responded quickly and  in a safe manner, 
and in the process Officer Esparza was able to iden fy a possible suspect with a backpack walking in the 
area. Officer Powers contacted the repor ng party who was able to iden fy the subject from a distance.  
The Officers contacted the suspect who a er being Mirandized admi ed to the bank robbery.   

Officer Jon Valenzuela  Officer Jenn Gravel 

42



39  

5   ~     P  

P  O  

Officer Chris Peabody Officer Ron Esparza 

P  H  2014 

Officer Clements performed a traffic stop on a stolen vehicle. The suspect fled on foot a er the vehicle 
came  to  a  stop. Officer  Clements, Officer Nordstrand  and  Sergeant Wilkie  checked  the  area  on  foot.  
Sergeant Wilkie was checking a garbage dumpster at a nearby apartment complex when he located the 
suspect  inside. The suspect  jumped out of the dumpster and Sergeant Wilkie tried to control him with 
one hand as Sergeant Wilkie had his gun out  in his other hand. Sergeant Wilkie gave the suspect some 
impact strikes to the back and grabbed onto the suspect’s shirt. The suspect was able to pull out of his 
shirt and fled again on foot. The suspect was not  located. There was not a posi ve  iden fica on made 
due to the low light, but a poten al suspect was iden fied. This suspect was later taken into custody on a 
felony warrant (armed robbery) in a joint ICSO / OHPD opera on using the two tac cal teams where the 
suspect surrendered a er gas muni on round was shot into his apartment.   

Officer Gravel took a report of a male suspect brandishing a handgun at another motorist. Officer Gravel 
obtained  detailed witness  statements which  led  to  an  arrest  of  the  suspect  at  his  home;  a  loaded 
handgun matching the witness descrip on was recovered. 

Officer Yzaguirre, Officer Peabody and Officer Dickinson responded to a report of a possible pipe bomb.  
The  officers maintained  a  safe  perimeter while NAS  EOD  responded.  EOD  iden fied  the  object  as  a 
poten al explosive device and rendered it safe. 

Officer  Krysinski  inves gated  a  report  of  an  armed  robbery  of  a  subject  behind  Blockbusters. Officer 
Krysinski was  able  to  locate  and  interview  the  suspect  before  arres ng  him  for  Robbery  in  the  1st 
Degree. 

43



40 

 

 

5   ~     P  

N   E   L  O  

Mayor Sco  Dudley, Officer Nathan Padrta & Chief Ed Green 

Officer James Argyro & Mayor Sco  Dudley 

Officer  Nathan  Padrta 

came  to  the  Oak  Harbor 

Police  from  the  Eastern 

Washington.  He  is  a 

graduate  of  Washington 

State  University  with  law 

enforcement experience as 

a Reserve Deputy with  the 

Whitman  County  Sheriff’s 

Office.  He  completed  his 

police  academy  training  in 

October  2014  and  was 

assigned to patrol du es.  

ELPO Process 

Entry Level Police Officer (ELPO) – A person who 
applies for the posi on of police officer, and has 
no prior experience  in  law enforcement. This  is 
a  person who may  or may  not  have  a  college 
educa on. Once iden fied on the hire lists they 
will  be  subjected  to  a  series  of  tests  and 
interviews  before  they  are  given  a  condi onal 
job  offer.  Once  they  are  in  receipt  of  a 
condi onal  job  offer  they  will  complete  the 
psychological and medical  screening processes. 
During  this  me  a  department  detec ve  is 
assigned  to  conduct a  thorough background of 
the  individual,  talking  to  people  in  their  lives 
from  their  past  to  current  day.  This  process 
takes  about  six  to  eight months  to  complete. 
Once  this  is done,  they will be sent  to a police 
academy for six months of basic training  in  law 
enforcement. Once this is complete they will be 
required  to  complete  a  field  training  program, 
working alongside a veteran  training officer  for 
four  to  six  months.  A er  this,  the  ELPO  can 
begin  to  work  alone,  surrounded  by  veteran 
officers.    

Officer  James  Argyro  came  to  the  Oak 
Harbor  Police  from  the  United  States 
Marine  Corps.  He  completed  his  police 
academy  training  in  October  2014  and 
was assigned to patrol du es. 

44



41  

5   ~     P  

N   L  O  

Officer Claire Schricker Officer Ma hew Krysinski 

Officer Ma hew Krysinski came to the 

Oak Harbor Police Department from the 

Port Townsend Police Department. He 

has approximately 20 years of public 

safety experience and is a Washington 

State law enforcement instructor in 

several disciplines.    

 

 

Officer Claire Schricker came to the Oak 

Harbor Police Department from the San 

Juan County Sheriff’s Department. She 

has approximately 6 years of public 

safety experience.  

LEPO Process 

Lateral Entry Police Officer  (LEPO)  ‐ This  is an experienced police officer who  is currently employed at 
another police agency and applies to work for the Oak Harbor Police Department. This is a person who 
may or may not have a college educa on. Once iden fied on the hire lists they will subjected to a series 
of  tests  and  interviews  before  they  are  given  a  condi onal  job  offer. Once  they  are  in  receipt  of  a 
condi onal  job offer they will complete the psychological and medical screening processes. During this 
me a department detec ve  is assigned to conduct a thorough background of the  individual, talking to 

people in their lives from their past to current day. This process can go fairly quickly (one to two months) 
because most  of  the  me  we  are  able  to  talk  with  an  officer’s  current  agency  to  obtain  a  lot  of 
informa on needed to complete the background inves ga on. Once this is completed the officer will be 
hired.  If  they are an officer  coming  from another Washington  State agency,  they will  immediately be 
ou i ed and assigned  to work with a veteran field  training officer  for about eight weeks  (or  less) and 
then released to work alone. If they are an officer coming from out of state, once they are hired they will 
be given an opportunity to a end the Washington State Criminal Jus ce Equivalency Academy. This is a 
two week  (pass  or  fail)  course  designed  for  experience  officers. Once  this  is  complete,  the  officer  is 
cer fied  to work  in Washington  State and  they will be assigned  to work with a veteran field  training 
officer for about eight weeks (or less).  

45



42 

 

 

6   ~     S  U  

H   R   E   T   ( H R E T )  

  The Oak Harbor Police Department’s HRET  (High Risk Entry Team)  is a  select group of highly 
mo vated officers who perform high risk missions that require a high level of tac cal exper se.   

  The team  is called out for  instances when  it  is too dangerous for patrol officers to handle the 
call due to reasons such as the suspect’s criminal history (usually violent) and the presence of weapons 
that could be used against the police. 

  Six  officers  served  on  the  HRET  during  2014:  Sergeant  Wilkie,  Officer  Clements,  Officer 
Valenzuela,  Detec ve  Hoagland,  Detec ve  Silveira  and  Officer  Peabody.  Sergeant  Seim  is  not  a 
member  of  the  entry  team,  but  he  has  assisted with  temporary  assignments  to  the  team  during 
staffing shortages. He was recently appointed the Department sniper. 

  The HRET performs  in service training each month and team members a end outside agency 
training to supplement the Department training. The team trained as a unit for a total of thirty‐nine 
(39) in service hours during 2014. Some individual team members a ended addi onal outside agency 
training for tac cal opera ons, which totaled 40 hours.  

The team began working with members of the Oak Harbor Fire Department during tac cal opera ons 
which  increases the safety for officers and ci zens.   These Fire Department personnel are known as 
Tac cal Emergency Medical Services (TEMS). TEMS is out‐of‐hospital care given in hos le situa ons by 
specially  trained  prac oners.  Tac cal  Medics  are  Emergency  Medical  Technicians  and  /  or 
Paramedics who are trained to provide life‐saving care and, some mes, transport in situa ons such as 
tac cal police opera ons. The TEMS team moves into dangerous areas that are par ally secured.  This 
allows them to be very close  in order to provide  immediate care to an  injured officer or ci zen. This 
program was developed for ac ve shooter incidents, but our Department has incorporated the TEMS 
into all our tac cal missions. 

46



43  

6   ~     S  U  

H   R   E   T   ( H R E T )  

2014 T  M : 

Sergeant Bill Wilkie ~ Team Leader 

 Twenty‐three years as tac cal team operator 

 Team trainer 

 Served in approximately 100 missions during HRET career 

Officer Mike Clements ~ Assistant Team Leader 

 Eleven years as tac cal team operator 

 Served in approximately 41 missions during HRET career 

Officer John Valenzuela ~ Scout 

 Seven years as tac cal team operator 

 Rifle instructor 

 Team trainer 

 Served in approximately 28 missions during HRET career 

Detec ve Jim Hoagland ~ Scout 

 Five years as tac cal team operator 

 Taser Instructor 

 Served in approximately 20 missions during HRET career 

Detec ve Manny Silveira ~ Scout / Breacher 

 Five years as tac cal team operator 

 Department Armorer 

 Served in approximately 20 missions during HRET career 

Officer Chris Peabody ~ Scout 

 Two years as tac cal team operator 

 Defensive Tac cs Instructor 

 Less Lethal  / Chemical Muni ons Instructor 

 Served in approximately 7 missions during HRET career 

Sergeant Carl Seim ~ Sniper 

 Sergeant Seim is the Department sniper and provides 

        support for the team as needed. 

Tac cal Emergency Medical Services (TEMS) 

 Oak Harbor Fire Department Members 

 2014 T  T  

Dynamic Entries 

Arrest Team Tac cs 

Ac ve Shooter 

Officer Rescues 

Immediate Ac on Drills 

MRAP Opera ons 

Range Training 

Less Lethal / Chemical Muni ons 

Distrac on Device 

47



44 

 

 

6   ~     S  U  

H   R   E   T   ( H R E T )  

HRET M  ~ 2014 

Drug search warrant (heroin delivery) – Served narco cs search warrant at home where suspect had 
several guns and surveillance cameras. The ICSO HEAT team assisted as teams breached windows and 
front door to gain entry. 

Homicide  inves ga on – The  team was called  in  for a possible warrant service. The  team ended up 

performing a vehicle takedown during the call out.  There was no warrant service. 

High risk warrant service for armed robbery suspect – The team was called out to assist the ICSO HEAT 
team. The HRET assisted  in perimeter  security. The HEAT  team deployed gas and  the  suspect came 
outside and surrendered. 

Drug search warrant  (methamphetamine delivery) – Served narco cs search warrant at residence  in 
trailer park.  The team breached through a sliding glass door to make entry. 

Drug search warrant (methamphetamine delivery) – Served narco cs search warrant. Team breached 
two doors to gain entry into a duplex type residence. A distrac on device was deployed.  

48



45  

6   ~     S  U  

H   R   E   T   ( H R E T )  

Thanks to lots of hard work by Chief Green, with some assistance from Detec ve Hoagland and 
Detec ve Silveira, the team obtained a new armored vehicle for transport. The vehicle,  

Mine‐Resistant Ambush Protected (MRAP), was obtained from the military surplus program. This 
increases safety drama cally in tac cal opera ons for officers and ci zens. 

49



46 

 

 

7   ~   J  D  

  The  Jail Division operates a 12‐bed, 30‐day holding  facility. 

The  Jail  is staffed by six Correc ons Officers under the supervision 

of Jail Sgt. Braunstein, who reports to the Department Captain. All 

Correc ons  Officers  are  trained  and  cer fied  through  the 

Washington State Criminal Jus ce Training Commission. Officers are 

also  required  to  maintain  Level  I  and  II  Defensive  Tac cs 

cer fica on and must qualify  to Departmental firearms standards. 

Correc ons Officers work in 3‐officer squads: one Officer works day 

shi  (6 am to 6 pm), one works cover shi  (6 am to 6 pm) and one 

works mid  shi   (6  pm  to  6  am).  This  provides  double  coverage 

during  the  busiest  hours  of  the  day, while maintaining  24  ‐  hour 

coverage of the Oak Harbor City Jail.  

  The Correc on Officers’ primary du es include the care and 

custody of all prisoners held at the Oak Harbor City Jail. Correc ons 

Officers  process  all  arrests  brought  into  the  Jail  through 

fingerprin ng,  photographing  and  data  entry  of  each  subject. 

Officers  coordinate all  commitments of  convicted  individuals  from 

the  Oak  Harbor  Municipal  Court  and  also  the  scheduling  and 

transpor ng  of  individuals  for  any  required  court  appearances  or 

transfers to other law enforcement agencies. Correc on Officers are 

responsible  for  entering  informa on  into  State  and  Na onal 

computer databases, such as stolen or impounded vehicles, missing 

persons and runaways, and certain types of stolen property.  

Mark Rodney 
Correc ons Officer 

Greg Woodward 
Correc ons Officer 

David Faagau 
Correc ons Officer 

Brian Braunstein 
Sergeant 

50



47  

7   ~   J  D  

  Correc on Officers also maintain the Arrest Warrants file, which consists of approximately 700 

warrants.  This  includes  the  entry,  confirma on  and  removal  of  all  locally  served warrants  and  also 

working with other agencies when the warrant is served outside of Oak Harbor jurisdic on. Among the 

Correc on  Officers’  other  collateral  du es  are  fingerprin ng  of  all  applicants  for  Concealed  Pistol 

Licenses,  special  license  requirements,  School  District  employment,  and  any  elimina on  prin ng 

required by  the Department. The majority of fingerprint  submissions are done  through  the Live Scan 

Fingerprint  System.  This  system  electronically  submits  fingerprints  directly  to  the Washington  State 

Patrol, which provides for a more efficient response in ques ons of individual iden ty and ensures the 

placing of charge informa on on criminal histories. Inmates, under the direct supervision of Correc on 

Officers, are responsible for meal prepara on,  laundry, cleaning of all Jail areas, as well as other work 

details in and around the Police Department. 

  The Jail has an inmate phone system that is based on collect‐calls, with phones readily available 

to  inmates  in  each  cell.  This  allows  inmates  constant  access  to  phones  and  alleviates  Jail  staff  from 

spending  me assis ng  inmates with phone calls. The phones generate  revenue  for  the City, but are 

maintained by a private company with no opera ng costs to the City. 

  The City of Oak Harbor has three exis ng contracts to house  inmates. These contracts are with 

the Department of Correc ons (DOC) and the Ci es of Burlington and Anacortes. The jail charges $65.00 

per day for housing these inmates. In 2014 the Jail generated $13,065.00 with these contracts.   

  In 2014, the Oak Harbor City  Jail processed 50  juvenile subjects and abides by guidelines  from 

the Washington State Office of Juvenile Jus ce to remain in compliance with their rules and regula ons 

for the temporary detainment of all juvenile offenders.  

  There were 792 adult bookings processed through the Jail in 2014: 589 males and 203 females.  

Carlos Espiritu 
Correc ons Officer 

Jeff Rang 
Correc ons Officer 

Danielle Hannahan 
Correc ons Officer 

51



48 

 

 

8   ~  R  D  

Barbi May 
Records Specialist 

Yve e Noyes 
Records Specialist 

Lisa Edlin 
Recep onist 

R  S  

Barbi  May  joined  the  Police  Department  in  1989  as  the  recep onist  and  transi oned  to  records 
specialist in 1996. Barbi is a subject ma er expert in the Records field and took the lead in ensuring all 
reten on and destruc on procedures are  strictly adhered  to as well as managing  the changing  legal 
requirements for public disclosure and informa on. 

Yve e Noyes  joined the Police Department  in 2002 as a Records Specialist. In addi on to her normal 
du es, Yve e selflessly assumed the role as the department’s Terminal Agency Coordinator (TAC), and 
Primary Evidence Custodian. She was  recognized as a “go  to” person  for anyone needing assistance, 
and greatly decreased the impact le  behind by Barbara’s absence. 

R  

Lisa Edlin has served the city of Oak Harbor since 2006, and transferred from the Finance and U li es 
office  to  the  Police  Department  as  the  Recep onist  in May.  Lisa  has  excelled  in  her  new  role  and 
provides tremendous customer service to the community. Addi onally, she has taken on the arduous 
duty of processing Special Event Applica ons for the city. 

  The Records Division is comprised of a Support Service Supervisor, two Records Specialists, and 
one Recep onist with a combined Seventy‐Six years of service to the City of Oak Harbor. Addi onal 
workload and responsibili es were taken on by the Record Specialists with Barbara Sampson’s 

re rement as the Support Services Supervisor in August. 

52



49  

8   ~  R  D  

  More than ever the Oak Harbor Police Department Records Staff is commi ed to helping law 
enforcement meet its ongoing need for immediate, accurate, and reliable informa on. The staff takes 
pride in running an efficient department while keeping up with the ever‐changing regula ons and 
procedures that occur within law enforcement. The staff performs a mul tude of du es as well as 

assis ng officers and ci zens with  mely responses to requests. 

H      R  M  S  (RMS) 

     The Oak Harbor  Police Department  has  u lized  Spillman  (Integrated  Public  Safety  So ware)  as  its 
Records Management  System  since  1999.  It  is  an  agency‐wide  system  that  provides  for  the  storage, 
retrieval,  reten on, manipula on,  archiving,  and  viewing of  informa on,  records, documents, or files 
pertaining to law enforcement opera ons. The RMS covers the en re life span of records development ‐  
from  the  ini al  genera on  to  its  comple on,  and  provides  law  enforcement,  public  safety  agencies, 
prosecutors,  public  defenders,  and  the  judicial  branch  with  a  tool  to  effec vely  share  data  and 
informa on in a  mely manner. 

R  D  

     Our Records Specialists’ dedica on and a en on to detail in performing their du es helps ensure our 
department runs smoothly and efficiently. These du es include, but are not limited to, the prepara on 
of court orders  to be served, preparing / copying cases  for  the prosecutor,  running criminal histories, 
warrant entry, daily case review and prepara on, background checks and public disclosure requests.  

E  ID D  

     Support Services Supervisor Barbara Sampson remained the Evidence Supervisor un l her re rement 
in August, at which  me Yve e Noyes assumed du es as the primary custodian with the assistance of 
Barbi May.  

     1,111  items were entered  into the OHPD Spillman evidence system. These  items  included 266  items 
of  found property, 87  items  taken  for safekeeping, and 48 guns. At year‐end,  there were 1,964  items 
stored in evidence at the Oak Harbor Police Department. Sampson and Noyes also disposed of evidence 
when cases had been adjudicated or otherwise closed.  A total of 1,541 items were returned to owner or 
disposed of in 2014. 

     Every effort  is made to reconnect found property with the owner. If the process  is unsuccessful, we 
store  the  found  property  which  includes  all  types  of  items  including  but  not  limited  to  clothing, 
iden fica on, suitcases, backpacks, and bicycles.  Items of unclaimed property that have been held  for 
the required  me are sold at auc on or disposed of. 

     Items seized in connec on with drug arrests are also sold at auc on, with the proceeds going to the 
City’s drug seizure fund. The drug seizure fund provides extra training and equipment to aid in the war 
on drugs.  

53



50 

 

 

9   ~    A  U  

R  O   P  

comprehensive exam.   Once they pass the exam they go their respec ve agencies for further training. 
They do possess law enforcement authority but limited to their jurisdic on and only when working with 
a full  me commissioned Officer from their own agency. Their respec ve agency sets limits to what they 
are able to do.  

  In 2014, the Oak Harbor Police Department had five Reserve Officers: Michael Koval,  Jeff Rang 
(not pictured), Kristal Kania, Sco  Speer and Shawn Trisler. 

Once  a  Reserve  Officer  completes  the  Reserve  Academy,  they  begin  the  Oak  Harbor  Police 
Department’s Reserve Officer Primary Training Phase. This training requires the Reserve Officer to ride 
with  a  department  Field  Training  Officer  for  the  first  phase  of  160  hours.  Once  the  first  phase  is 
completed the Reserve Officer then moves to phase two, which requires approximately 100 hours riding 
with a selected Officer (chosen by the Reserve Coordinator) and / or Field Training Officer. A er phase 
two, the Reserve Officer moves to phase three, which requires at least 24 hours of final training, with a 
Field Training Officer. At the comple on of the Reserve Officer’s Primary Training phases, the Reserve 
Officer would have completed a minimum of 284 hours of on the job training. Once the Reserve Officer 
completes his/her Primary Training Phase, they are required to obtain approximately 200 more on the 
job  hours  for  a  total  of  484  hours.  A er  comple ng  the  required  484  hours,  a  Reserve Officer  can 
request acceptance into the Oak Harbor Police Department’s 12‐14 week Field Training Program. 

 Reserve Officer’s assist full  me Officers with patrol du es, which  include traffic  inves ga ons, 
responding to emergency calls along with providing addi onal set of eyes and ears. Our Reserve Police 
Officers are a very valuable asset to the Police Department.  

  The  Washington  State  Criminal 
Jus ce  Training  Commission  provides 
requirements  and  training  curriculum 
for  Reserve  Officers.  They  receive  the 
training  in  the  following  areas: 
emergency  vehicle  response  driving, 
defensive  tac cs, firearms,  criminal  law 
and patrol procedures, to name a few. 

   Each  Reserve  Officer  Cadet  is 
required  to  complete  this  training 
before they can be cer fied as a Reserve 
Police  Officer  in  the  State  of 
Washington.  The  training  totals  more 
than  320  hours.  At  the  end  of  their 
training,  they  must  pass  a Kristal Kania; Sco  Speer; Mike Koval & Shawn Trisler 

54



51  

9   ~    A  U  

C   V  

  In  2014,  the  OHPD  Ci zen 
Volunteers  were  ac ve  in  helping  to 
keep our  community  safe.   Volunteers 

con nued  to  assist with  Vaca on  Checks  of  residences.    They 
also  acted  as  extra  eyes  and  ears  for  suspicious  ac vity while 
patrolling residen al areas, business areas, and our city parks. 

  Some  of  the  Ci zen  Volunteers  spent  their  me  and 
talents helping to give the OHPD Training Room a much‐needed 

pain ng.  Others helped to paint the interior of the “Li le House,” where child forensic interviews take 
place.  Several dedicated Ci zen Volunteers work on a weekly basis helping with clerical projects in the 
Records and Inves ga ons Divisions.   

  The various projects during the year 2014 that  the Ci zen Volunteers assisted with  include the 
following:  Holland  Happening  parade,  Marathon  detail,  4th  of  July  parade,  Hydroplane  Races, 
Homecoming parade and the Zombie Crawl.  

  During 2014, the OHPD Ci zen Volunteers logged in a total of 1,036 hours of service for their City.  
Using the Washington State average for hourly volunteer  me, which is $23.07 per hour (2014 Bureau of 
Labor  Sta s cs  data),  the Ci zen Volunteers  contributed  a  total  of  $23,901.00  to  our City with  their 
efforts. 

Various projects and services             

performed by the Ci zen               

Volunteers included: 

 Assist with neighborhood watch 

mee ngs & community           

presenta ons 

 Filing & Other Office Assistance 

 Grand Openings 

 Marathon Detail 

 Music Fes val 

 Parades 

 Painted “Li le House” 

 Vaca on Watch 

 Remove Patches from Uniforms 

Interested in Becoming a Ci zen Volunteer? 

Ci zen Volunteers are ci zens like you and me, who are interested in crime preven on, or helping 

with specified tasks and du es  in order to make more efficient use of Police Department personnel, 

and to improve services to our Community. Applicants must be 18 years of age or older, and in good 

physical condi on. A valid Washington State Driver’s License and comple on of background checks are 

required. For more informa on call us at 360.279.4600. 

55



52 

 

 

9   ~    A  U  

E   P  

The Explorer Program  is part of  the Boy Scouts of America and our Post  is part of  the Mount 
Baker Chapter Boy Scouts. The Post has been ac ve since 1991. Sgt. Niiro has been  the advisor since 
1993. In 2009, Officer Gravel volunteered to be an Associate Advisor.    

Ac vi es and hours put in by the 2014 Explorer Post include over 447 hours in Patrol ride‐alongs, 
mee ngs, and trainings. Community service ac vi es like Na onal Night Out, Military Apprecia on Day, 
and The NAVY League Veterans’ Day program at the Oak Harbor High School. The Explorers also assist 
our officers in direc ng traffic at the Holland Happening and Fourth of July parades. They also assist with 
training the department’s HRET team.  

  Currently,  ten Explorers serve  in  the Post. Three civilian volunteers serve on  the Post Advisory 
Commi ee, and the Police Chief serves as the Execu ve Officer. Seven new Explorers came on board in 
2014. 

  Explorer Cadets  in the Oak Harbor Explorer Post  learn about what a career  in  law enforcement 
may  be  like  in  a  small  city.    Prospec ve  Cadets  are  interviewed  and  a  background  inves ga on 
performed prior to being accepted  into the Post. They then must a end and successfully complete an 
Explorer Academy held at the Oak Harbor Police Department. Sgt. Niiro designed the Explorer Academy 
curriculum.  It  is modeled  a er  the  State Criminal  Jus ce  Training Commission Academy  for new  law 
enforcement  officers.  Topics  that  the  Explorers  learn  about  include    State  criminal  law,  criminal 
procedures,  traffic  law,  crisis  interven on  and  patrol  procedures.  These  subject  areas  are  taught  by 

56



53  

veteran members of the Police Department and conclude with a comprehensive wri en exam which the 
Cadets must pass. The Explorer  is then allowed to ride along with Department officers as they perform 
their du es, day or night. They assist the Department HRET team during their training by being actors in 
the many poten al scenarios the Team is trained to handle. Monthly mee ngs and trainings are also held, 
to keep the Explorers update to date on current trends in the field of law enforcement. Some of monthly 
trainings are mock scenes where Explorers are put into a scenario much like a regular Police Officer would 
have  to  handle.  The  Explorer  is  expected  to  use what  they  have  been  taught  in  academy  and  other 
trainings to come to the proper solu on. Use of other Explorers as actors to act out the part of vic m and 
suspect  help  bring  a  sense  of  realism  to  mock  scenes.  Explorers  also  have  opportunity  to  a end 
department trainings on topics like defensive tac cs, firearms and TASER recer fica on. 

Being an Explorer also provides an opportunity to meet other members of the  law enforcement 
community,  such  as  the Washington  State  patrol,  Island  County  Sheriff’s Office  and  Federal  agencies, 
including  the U.S Border  Patrol  and Department  of Homeland  Security.  It  also  helps  fulfill  community 
service requirements for Oak Harbor High School gradua on. Related college scholarship opportuni es on 
a local, state and na onal level are available to those Explorers interested in the Law Enforcement field.  

9   ~    A  U  

E   P  

Explorer Andrew 

Southard  

& Officer Gravel 

“Exploring” 

57



54 

 

 

Nature  Count  Cases 

911 Hang Up  1,353  6 

Alarm Commercial  370  3 

Alarm Residence  145  1 

Animal  1,211  41 

Assault Physical  209  124 

Assist Agency  252  74 

Assist Public  1,067  25 

A empt to Locate  1  0 

Bomb Found  2  2 

Bomb Threats  1  0 

Burglary A empt  37  25 

Burglary Commercial  25  17 

Burglary Residen al  96  57 

Burn Complaint  4  1 

Civil  232  9 

Court Detail  9  0 

Court Order Viola on  127  62 

Custodial Interference  63  5 

Death Invest Una ended  30  28 

Disorderly Conduct  287  64 

Domes c Physical  253  203 

Domes c Verbal  278  214 

Embezzlement  1  1 

Fire AFA Commercial  12  0 

Fire AFA Residen al  1  0 

Fire Brush  1  1 

Fire Commercial  11  3 

Fire Residen al  15  9 

Fire Service Call  3  1 

Fire Vehicle  5  2 

Fireworks Complaint  50  27 

Fraud Bad Check  8  4 

Fraud Forgery  1  1 

1 0   ~     S  

C     S  

58



55  

Nature  Count  Cases 

Fraud Other  253  139 

Game Viola on  1  0 

Harassment  177  41 

Hazardous Material  2  0 

Informa on Report  67  2 

Juvenile Complaint  65  4 

Juvenile Neglect / Abuse  103  31 

Juvenile Runaway  90  37 

Kidnapping  5  3 

Li ering  40  7 

MVA Non‐Injury  425  393 

MVA Unknown Injury  126  116 

Malicious Mischief  262  153 

Marine Incident  8  3 

Medical  163  54 

Medical CPR  13  4 

Mental Non Criminal  81  3 

Missing Person  82  17 

Noise Complaint  282  94 

Nuisance Other  13  0 

Nuisance Phone Calls  8  2 

Patrol Check  27  0 

Phone Message  2  0 

Property  223  22 

Prowler  53  5 

Rape  8  7 

Reminder (office use)  46  0 

Rescue Marine  1  0 

Robbery Armed  2  2 

Robbery Strongarm  1  1 

Sex Indecent Exposure  10  6 

Sex Lewd Conduct  15  6 

Sex Offense Other  40  30 

Nature  Count  Cases 

Solici ng  32  1 

Suicide Threat  169  129 

Suspicious Person / Circumstance  778  48 

Taking Motor Veh w/o Permision  10  3 

The   364  221 

The  Services  12  3 

The  Shopli   160  114 

Threats  175  68 

Tobacco Viola on  3  0 

Traffic  448  36 

Traffic Criminal FTS  2  2 

Traff Crim Driving Susp/Revoked  118  113 

Traffic Disable  63  3 

Traffic Hazard  122  2 

Traffic Possible DUI  219  41 

Trespass Other  239  66 

Unsecure Premise  39  0 

U lity Problem  169  0 

Vehicle Abandon  140  44 

Vehicle Impound  62  48 

Vehicle Prowl  92  68 

Vehicle The   42  21 

Verbal Dispute  77  15 

Vice Liquor HBD  86  11 

Vice Liquor MIP  11  5 

Vice VUCSA  208  47 

Wanted Person  223  17 

Weapon Offense  118  31 

Welfare Check  442  30 

Total Calls For Service   13,477  3,379 

C     S  

1 0   ~     S  

59



56 

 

 

Arrests  Adult  Juv  Total 

Abandon Dependent Person 3rd  1  0  1 

Abuse / Insult Teacher  0  1  1 

Ac ng w/o License  1  0  1 

Aggressive Panhandling Prohib  1  0  1 

Allow Unauth Person to Drive  1  0  1 

Assault 1st with Knife  1  0  1 

Assault 2nd  8  1  9 

Assault 2nd / FTC  1  0  1 

Assault 2nd / Other  Weapon  1  0  1 

Assault 2nd / No Weapon / FTA  1  0  1 

Assault 2nd / with Knife  2  1  3 

Assault 3rd  4  1  5 

Assault 3rd / Firefighter  1  0  1 

Assault 3rd / LE Officer  1  0  1 

Assault 3rd / FTA  4  0  4 

Assault 4th  92  16  108 

Assault 4th / FTA  24  0  24 

Assault 4th / FTC  1  0  1 

Assault of a Child 3rd  1  0  1 

A empt To Elude  1  0  1 

Bail Jumping / MISD or GM  1  0  1 

Burglary 1st  1  0  1 

Burglary 1st / Day / Force  1  0  1 

Burglary 2nd  10  0  10 

Burglary 2nd / FTA  1  0  1 

Burglary Residen al  1  0  1 

Burglary Residen al / FTA  4  1  5 

Burglary Resid / UNK / Force  1  0  1 

Carry / Exhibit / Draw Weapon  2  1  3 

Child Molest 1st  1  0  1 

Arrests  Adult  Juv  Total 

Child Molest 2nd  3  0  3 

Child Rape 1st  1  0  1 

Child Rape 2nd  1  0  1 

Child Rape 3rd  1  0  1 

Child Una end in Running Veh  2  0  2 

Coercion  1  0  1 

Computer Tresspass 1st  1  0  1 

Cont / Cn rt Sub Sell Profit  1  0  1 

Cont Sub‐Dist Minor <3Y Jr  1  0  1 

Cont Subs‐Mfg/Del/Pos w/Int  3  0  3 

Cont Subs Poss No Prescrip on  2  0  2 

Controlled Subst Viola on / FTA  1  0  1 

Criminal A empt / MISD / FTA  1  0  1 

Criminal Impersona on 2nd  1  0  1 

Criminal Trespass 1st  18  0  18 

Criminal Trespass 1st / FTA  14  0  14 

Criminal Trespass 2nd  6  0  6 

Criminal Trespass 2nd / FTA  7  0  7 

Damage / Interfere w/ H20 Sys  1  0  1 

Deposit Unwholesome Subst  1  0  1 

Disorderly Conduct  10  0  10 

Disorderly Conduct / FTA  2  0  2 

DOC Hold/Detainer  5  0  5 

DUI  40  0  40 

DUI / FTA  15  0  15 

DUI / FTC  1  0  1 

DUI Felony / FTC  1  0  1 

DWLS 1st  6  0  6 

DWLS 1st / FTA  1  0  1 

DWLS 2nd  15  0  15 

1 0   ~   S  

A  

60



57  

1 0   ~   S  

A  

Arrests  Adult  Juv  Total 

DWLS 2nd / FTA  3  0  3 

DWLS 3rd  124  0  124 

DWLS 3rd / FTA  21  0  21 

DWLS 3rd / FTC  2  0  2 

Explosive Device / Abandon  3  0  3 

Explosives / Mal Placement 2nd  0  1  1 

Fail To Comply  5  0  5 

Fail Trans Title 45 Days  0  3  3 

Fail Trans Title 45 Days / FTA  1  0  1 

Failure To Appear  6  0  6 

False Statement To Officer  3  1  4 

False Statement / FTA  2  0  2 

Figh ng / FTA  1  0  1 

Firearm / Minor Poss  1  0  1 

Fireworks / Ill Poss > 1 lb  1  0  1 

Forgery  3  0  3 

Fugi ve From Jus ce Warrants  5  0  5 

Furnish Alcohol To Minor  1  2  3 

Harassment  2  1  3 

Harassment / FTA  1  0  1 

Harassment / Felony  14  1  15 

Harassment / Felony / FTA  1  0  1 

Hit & Run A ended Vehicle  3  0  3 

Hit & Run Una  Prop / FTA  1  0  1 

Hit & Run Una ended Vehicle  6  0  6 

Hit & Run Una ended Veh / 
Prop 

2  0  2 

Iden ty The  1st  1  0  1 

Iden ty The  2nd  14  0  14 

Iden ty The  2nd / FTA  1  0  1 

Illegal Possession Firearm 1st  1  0  1 

Arrests  Adult  Juv  Total 

Indecent Exposure  4  0  4 

Interfere W/Report Of DV  5  0  5 

Interfere W/Report Of DV / FTA  2  0  2 

Interlock Viola on  15  0  15 

Malicious Mischief 2nd >$250  3  1  4 

Malicious Mis 2nd >$250 / FTA  3  0  3 

Malicious Mischief 3rd  12  4  16 

Malicious Mischief 3rd / FTA  13  0  13 

Malicious Misc 3rd Phys Damage  5  1  6 

Man/Del/Poss Narc Drug / FTA  2  0  2 

Marij Poss < 40 Grams  3  3  6 

Marij Poss< 40 Grams / FTA  2  0  2 

Marij Poss< 40 Grams / FTC  1  0  1 

Minor Poss / Comsum Alcohol  2  4  6 

MIP/ Furnish Alcohol to Minor  2  0  2 

MIP/ Furn Alc To Minor / FTA  2  0  2 

Murder 2nd  1  0  1 

No Valid Oper Lic  /N o Valid ID  1  1  2 

Obstruct Police Officer  20  1  21 

Obstruct Public Servant   3  0  3 

Obstruc ng Publ Serv / FTA  5  0  5 

Paraphernalia Del/Possess/Man  1  1  2 

Physical Control  2  0  2 

Physical Control / FTA  3  0  3 

Possess Controlled Substance  17  0  17 

Poss Controlled Substance / FTA  1  0  1 

Possess Dangerous Weapon  7  0  7 

Poss Dangerous Weapon / FTA  2  0  2 

Poss of Drugs by Prisoner  1  0  1 

Possess Drug Paraphernalia  0  1  1 

61



58 

 

 

Arrests  Adult  Juv  Total 

Poss Leg Drug w/o Rx  7  1  8 

Poss Leg Drug w/o Rx / FTA  3  0  3 

Poss Legend Drug w/o Rx   1  0  1 

Poss MJ < 40 Grams   3  5  8 

Poss MJ < 40 Grams / FTA  1  0  1 

Poss Stolen Prop 2nd >$250  4  0  4 

Poss Stolen Prop 2nd / CC  1  0  1 

Poss Stolen Prop 2nd / FTA  1  0  1 

Poss Stolen Prop 3rd < $250  4  1  5 

Poss Stolen Prop 3rd  / FTA  1  0  1 

Proba on/Parole Viola on  23  0  23 

Racing On Highway/Reckless  2  0  2 

Reckless Driving  1  0  1 

Reckless Driving / FTA  1  0  1 

Reckless Endangerment  10  0  10 

Reckless Endangerment / 
FTA 

1  0  1 

Resis ng Arrest  6  1  7 

Robbery 1st  2  0  2 

Robbery 2nd  2  0  2 

Robbery 2nd / Strngarm 
Misc 

1  0  1 

Sell / Del / Poss Leg Drug  2  0  2 

Sell/Del/Poss w/ Int Leg Drug  1  0  1 

Stalking   1  0  1 

Take Mtr Veh W/O Perm 2nd  0  1  1 

The  1st > $1,500  2  0  2 

The  2nd  7  0  7 

Poss ID Belonging to Other  1  0  1 

1 0   ~   S  

A  

Arrests  Adult  Juv  Total 

The  2nd > $750 < $5,000  1  0  1 

The  2nd / FTA  1  0  1 

The  3rd < $750  115  7  122 

The  3rd / FTA  47  0  47 

The  3rd / FTC  4  0  4 

The  of Firearm  1  1  2 

The  of Motor Vehicle  2  0  2 

Trafficking 1st / FTA  1  0  1 

UIBC < $250   1  0  1 

UIBC < $250  / FTA  1  0  1 

UIBC > $750  1  0  1 

Unlawful Imprisonment  2  0  2 

Unlawful Poss of Firearm  0  1  1 

Urina ng In Public  1  0  1 

Urina ng In Public / FTA  1  0  1 

Vehicle Prowl 2nd  5  0  5 

Vehicular Assault  1  0  1 

Viol An ‐Harass Order  5  0  5 

Viol DV Po W/ 2 Prev Convict  3  0  3 

Viol DV Protec on Order  21  4  25 

Viol Protect Order/DV /FTA  1  1  2 

Viol No Contact Order  6  1  7 

Viol of No Contact Order DV  1  0  1 

Viol of No Contact Order FTA  7  0  7 

Wpon/Cpbl Prod Bodly Harm  1  0  1 

Total  1,022  72  1,094 

Unlawful Poss Payment Inst  1  0  1 

62



59  

1 0   ~   S  

The Part 1 Crimes sta s cal analysis uses 
seven criminal statutes (Arson,  Assault, Auto 

The , Burglary, Homicide, Rape and 
Robbery), for the purpose of determining a 
sta s cal comparison of the crime rate 

between ci es of all sizes. 

Year    2014  2013 

Arson  1  2 

Assault  180  202 

Auto The   12  25 

Burglary  83  106 

Homicide  1  0 

Rape  6  5 

Robbery  4  4 

Year    2014  2013 

Bad Checks  5  2 

Car Prowl  73  96 

Disorderly Conduct  55  70 

Forgery  8  19 

Fraud  57  45 

Liquor Viola ons  15  23 

Malicious Mischief  139  166 

Narco cs  71  130 

Resis ng / Obstruc ng  28  27 

Runaways  37  38 

Sex Offenses  26  27 

Shopli ing  91  117 

The   204  283 

Traffic (including DUI)  716  677 

Weapons Viola ons  18  23 

P  1  C  

O  C  

A  

63



60 

 

 

1 0   ~   S  

O  

Offense  Total  

Abandonment Dep Pers 3rd DV  1 

Accident Hit & Run Prop Damage  96 

Alcohol Offense  15 

Animal Bite  14 

Animal Noise  10 

Animal Problem  7 

Animal Violation  11 

Arson / Motor Vehicle  1 

Assault 2nd Child DV  1 

Assualt 2nd DV  11 

Assault 4th DV  79 

Assault 4th Viol Rest Order DV  2 

Assault / Firearm  3 

Assault / Intimidation  4 

Assault / Knife  4 

Assault / No Weapon / Agg Injury  1 

Assault / Other Weapon  4 

Assault / Police / Simple  6 

Assault / Simple  65 

Assist Agency  258 

Assist Other  1 

Assist Public  296 

Attempt Fraud / Swindle / Conf Game  3 

A empted Kidnapping  1 

Bomb Threat or Attack  2 

Burglary  3 

Burglary 2nd DV  3 

Burglary Attempt  5 

Burglary Commercial  20 

Burglary Residential  2 

Burglary / Non‐Res / Forcible Ent  4 

Burglary / Non‐Res / Unlawful Ent  1 

Burglary / Resid / Att Forc Ent  10 

Offense  Total  

Burglary / Resid / Forcible Ent  29 

Burglary / Resid / Unlawf Ent  11 

Child Abuse or Neglect  27 

Civil  6 

Controlled Substance / Possession  16 

Cont Subst / Possession Marijuana  14 

Cont Subst / Possess Paraphernalia  9 

Cont Subst / Possess Synthetics  7 

Cont Subst / Sale / Manu / Marijuana  1 

Controlled Substance Inv  24 

Counterfeiting / Forgery  7 

Court Order Violation  11 

Custodial Interference  3 

DUI Alcohol or Drugs  40 

Death Investigation Unattended  32 

Death Inves ga on Unknown  1 

Disorderly Conduct  52 

Domestic Dispute Verbal DV  310 

Driving While License Suspended  141 

Embezzlement  6 

Escape  1 

Found Property  8 

False Information or Report  3 

Fire  1 

Fire / Other  2 

Fire / Structure  1 

Fireworks  28 

Force Sex Aslt / Fondling  4 

Fraud / Forgery  1 

Fraud / Other  2 

Fraud / Credit Card / ATM  41 

Fraud / ID Theft  6 

Fraud / Impersonation  1 

64



61  

1 0   ~   S  

O  

Offense  Total  

Fraud / Swindle / Confidence Game  13 

Harassment  7 

Harassment ‐ Computer  2 

Harassment ‐ General  21 

Harassment ‐ Telephone  16 

Harassment DV  8 

Homicide  1 

Interfere With Reporting DV  5 

Juvenile Problem  2 

Juvenile Runaway  37 

Kidnapping / Abduction  1 

Littering  6 

Lost or Found Property  13 

Malicious Mischief  131 

Malicious Mischief 3rd DV  8 

Mental Non Criminal  3 

Missing Person  15 

Noise Complaint  105 

Non‐Forcible Sex Aslt, Incest  2 

Nonsufficient Funds Checks  5 

Nuisance Phone Call  1 

Obstructing Justice  21 

Pornography / Obscene Material  4 

Rape  3 

Rape – Acquaintance  2 

Rape 1st DV  1 

Receive / Posses Stolen Property  4 

Reckless Driving  2 

Reckless Endangerment  4 

Reckless Endangerment DV  3 

Recovered Stolen Property  1 

Recovered Stolen Vehicle  1 

Repossession of Property  2 

Offense  Total  

Resisting  7 

Robbery Armed  1 

Robbery, Firearm, Street  1 

Robbery, Strongarm, Bank  1 

Robbery, Strongarm, Street  1 

Sex Indecent Exposure  6 

Sex Lewd Conduct  3 

Sex Offense  9 

Sex Offense Other  4 

Sec Offense Porn  1 

Sex Offense ‐ Against Child  2 

Soliciting  4 

Suicide  1 

Suicide Attempt  80 

Suicide Threat  31 

Suspicion  33 

Take Motor Veh W/O Permission  1 

Tampering  2 

Theft ‐ Shoplift  91 

Theft Attempt: Property Other  2 

Theft Leased Property  1 

The  of Motor Vehicle Fuel  3 

The , Not Classified  1 

Theft, Property: Bicycle  29 

Theft, Property: Building  26 

Theft, Property: From Motor Veh  40 

Theft, Property: Other  95 

Theft, Property: Vehicle Parts  10 

Theft, Vehicle: Automobile  10 

Theft, Vehicle: Motorcycle  2 

Threatening  20 

65



62 

 

 

1 0   ~   S  

Offense  Total  

Traffic Accident / Criminal Citation  11 

Traffic Accident / Infraction  142 

Traffic Accident / No Enforcement  39 

Traffic Accident / Non Reportable  214 

Traffic Accident / Officer Involved  4 

Traffic Accident / Personal Injury  2 

Traffic Accident / Prop Damage  4 

Traffic Hazard  1 

Traffic Offense  21 

Trespass of Real Property  141 

Unlawful Imprisonment DV  1 

O  

P  L  

S  
2014  Value Stolen  Value Recovered 

January  $14,844.94  $683.98 

February  $3,664.59  $682.33 

March  $7,962.42  $1,402.94 

April  $54,284.83  $1,295.39 

May  $54,001.05  $1,916.44 

June  $15,778.84  $322.28 

July  $21,544.55  $421.88 

August  $5,802.24  $392.92 

September  $20,484.85  $973.22 

October  $76,258.09  $338.59 

November  $14,589.89  $6,781.89 

December  $38,211.77  $550.40 

Totals  $327,428.06  $15,762.26 

Offense  Total  

Vehicle Abandoned  41 

Vehicle Impound  54 

Vehicle Prowl  73 

Verbal Argument No Assault  6 

Violation Protection Order DV  50 

Warrant Other Agency  3 

Weapons Offense  15 

Welfare Check  24 

Total Offenses Taken   3,605 

Warrant OHPD  1 

66



63  

1 0   ~   S  

V  L  

S  
2014  Value Stolen 

January  $1,500.00 

February  $3,000.00 

March  $5,000.00 

April  $0.00 

May  $6,000.00 

June  $6,500.00 

July  $0.00 

August  $1,500.00 

September  $10,000.00 

October  $1,500.00 

November  $0.00 

December  $0.00 

Totals  $35,000.00 

Value Recovered 

$0.00 

$3,000.00 

$4,000.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$6,500.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$10,000.00 

$1.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$23,501.00 

I  Y  H  A  I  A   

C  A  C  T   

O  H  P  D   

T  L  

360.679.TIPS 

67



64 

 

 

1 1   ~   T  

  The Oak Harbor Police Department strives to ensure that the City is a safe place to live, work 

and visit.  As part of that, we a empt  ‐ through educa on and enforcement ‐ to reduce the number of 

collisions that occur.  It's  important that we all keep  in mind the damage and suffering we can cause 

when we are behind the wheel. 

  The Traffic Safety Unit  is supplemented  in  its efforts by Patrol Officers. Together, they  focus 

their enforcement in the high accident loca ons, as a way to reduce collisions. They also focus on the 

main  causes  of  collisions,  which  are  excessive  speed,  right‐of‐way  and  turning  viola ons,  and 

disobeying signals or signs.  

  Educa on efforts  included presenta ons  to community groups,  le ers  to  the  local editor  to 

explain certain traffic rules, increased patrol in traffic problem areas. 

  Another  tool  available  for  gaining  voluntary  compliance  to  traffic  laws  is  the Department's 

radar trailer. Placed on streets that are experiencing speeding vehicles, the trailer provides a display of 

the actual speed of each passing vehicle, along with the posted speed  limit  for that area. Motorists 

who may have been unaware of their speed are given a clear reminder of the viola on.  

  Although the Police Department tries to keep aware of problem traffic areas by tracking high 

collision  loca ons,  we  welcome  feedback  with  specific  traffic  concerns.  You  can  call  the  Police 

Department at (360) 279‐4600 with  informa on or concerns and  loca ons you would  like to see the 

radar trailer used or areas you would  like addi onal traffic enforcement. Although we cannot get to 

every  loca on  as  quickly  as we would  like, we will  try  to  address  every  area  for which we  have 

received informa on.  

4,484 Traffic Stops 

900 Traffic No ce of 
Infrac ons 

645 Wri en 
Warnings 

204 Criminal Traffic 
Cita ons 

3,599 Verbal 
Warnings  

2014 Patrol Division 

68



65  

1 1   ~   T  

T  A  D  

  An  important  secondary  func on  of  the  Patrol  Division  is  the  enforcement  of  traffic  laws. Our  goal 

through  this enforcement  is  to provide  for  the  safe  travel on our  roads. The  level of enforcement  taken, as 

shown by the  following chart,  is based on what  is needed to ensure compliance with traffic  laws. While most 

infrac ons  can  be  corrected  with  Verbal  or  Wri en  Warnings,  No ces  of  Infrac on  (traffic  cket)  are  an 

important tool to keep our motoring public safe. 

T  S  T  C  I  

Includes Criminal Traffic & Traffic NOIs issued 

69



66 

 

 

1 1   ~   T  

T   B   L  

70



67  

1 1   ~   T  

A    

E    

S  

  There were a total of 183* reportable 

collisions  inves gated  by  the  Oak  Harbor 

Police  Department  during  the  12  month 

period  of  January  through  December  2014. 

This  is  a  2.1%  decrease  in  traffic  collisions 

over the 2013 figure of 187. 

  (*Note: The reportable collision figure 

does not include Hit and Run cases in which a 

case number  is taken, but no accident report 

is submi ed.) 

  There  were  also  an  addi onal  215  

non‐reportable  accidents  in  2014  which  is 

down  20.4%  from  the  2013 

figure of 270. 

71



68 

 

 

1 1   ~   T    

T  10 H  C  L  

SR 20 & SW Barrington Drive  15 

NE Goldie Street & SR 20  12 

SR 20 & SW Erie Street  8 

SR 20 & SW Swantown Avenue  8 

SR 20 & E Whidbey Avenue  7 

SR 20 & SE Cabot Drive  6 

SR 20 & SW 8th Avenue  6 

SR 20 & NE 7th Avenue  5 

SE Ely Street & SE 8th Avenue  4 

SR 20 & SE Pioneer Way  4 

D  O  T  W  O  C  

Sunday  15 

Monday  28 

Tuesday  32 

Wednesday  26 

Thursday  34 

Friday  28 

Saturday  20 

T  O  C  

1:00 p.m. ‐  2:00 p.m.  23 

2:00 p.m.– 3:00 p.m.  21 

4:00 p.m.– 5:00 p.m.  15 

12:00 p.m.– 1:00 p.m.  14 

5:00 p.m.– 6:00 p.m.  13 

11:00 a.m.– 12:00 p.m.  13 

3:00 p.m.– 4:00 p.m.  12 

6:00 p.m.– 7:00 p.m.  11 

9:00 a.m.‐ 10:00 a.m.  10 

10:00 a.m.– 11:00 a.m.  7 

C  C  F  

Ina en on  43 

Did Not Grant Right of Way to Vehicle  32 

Followed Too Closely  21 

Exceeding Reasonable Safe Speed  11 

Disregard Stop & Go Signal  8 

Other  8 

Opera ng Defec ve Equipment  6 

Improper Backing  5 

None  5 

Disregard Stop Sign / Flashing Red  3 

Driver Interact w/ Pass / Animal / Object  3 

Improper Turn  3 

Under Influence of Alcohol  3 

Did Not Grant R/W to Pedestrian  2 

Driver Not Distracted  2 

Exceeding Stated Speed Limit  2 

On Wrong Side of Road  2 

Other Driver Inside Distrac on  2 

Under Influence of Drugs  2 

Apparently Asleep  1 

Driver Distracted Outside Vehicle  1 

Driver Ea ng or Drinking  1 

Failed to Signal  1 

Improper Passing  1 

Improper Signal  1 

Over Center Line  1 

Grand Total  170 

C  

72



69  

1 1   ~   T    

A   B   L  

73



70 

 

 

April 11, 2014 ~ Correc on Officers Academy Gradua on 

Jeff Rang & his wife OHPD Officer Lisa Powers‐Rang 

T  S  ‐ N  B  

October 7, 2014 ~ Oath of Office 

Nathan Padrta, James Argyro, Claire Schricker & Ma hew Krysinski 

74



71  

T  S  ‐ H  

The  DAR  Dis nguished  Ci zen  Medal 
recognizes  individuals  who  fulfill  the 
quali es  of  honor,  service,  courage, 
leadership,  and  patrio sm.  The  DAR 
Dis nguished Ci zen Medal is awarded to 
emergency  first  responders;  ac ve  duty 
military and veterans of the United States 
Armed  Forces;  and  ci zens  who  have 
contributed to the defense and security of 
the  community,  state,  or  na on  in  an 
excep onal manner.  

On September 25, 2014 Officer 
Clements and Officer Lolmaugh 

received the Governor’s  Life Saving 
Award at a ceremony in Spokane, 
WA. They were recognized for 

performing CPR on a female subject 
and saving her life. They were 

nominated by Chief Green & Fire 
Chief Ray Merrill. 

Chief Green & Captain Gardner 

Captain Gardner & WSSDAR State  

Regent Carol Jean Gaffney 

Daughter of the American Revolu on 
(DAR) Award Ceremony 
September 3, 2014 

75



72 

 

 

39 Y    S  

76



73  

A W  

77



74 

 

 

C  

The OHHS  Football  Team  taught  us  all  a  lesson  in 

sportsmanship and community in their ac ons a er 

the  school  shoo ng  at  Marysville  Pilchuck.  It 

touched  us  and  we  wanted  them  to  know  we 

no ced. Individuals at the department donated gi s 

to  their  annual  dinner  and  the  Chief  and  Captain 

greeted them as they arrived to show our pride and 

support. 

78



75  

C  

It  has  been  17  years  since  Deborah  Palmer  went 

missing and was  found deceased on a  local beach. 

Un l we know what happened to Deborah, we will 

not  stop  working  this  case.  With  help  from  the 

Community we were able to pass out flyers and post 

banners  on  the  anniversary  of  her  disappearance. 

Washington’s Most Wanted  did  a  follow  up  story 

which can viewed on our Facebook page. 

79



76 

 

 

A  

Great Officer Experience 

To whom it may concern: 

My name is Joel P. and I would like to express a great experience I had with one of your officers. I did 
not catch his name because being pulled over is something I am not used to and in a nutshell, I was 
nervous.  We were pulled over this Saturday night for one of the bulbs in the le  headlight being out 
and did not know it was out. Our dash did not say anything about the light being out or anything. 

The officer approached and was very courteous and very prideful towards the city of Oak Harbor. He 
explained the situa on and inquired about what we were doing in Oak Harbor. It was not in an 
interroga on way, but seemed genuine and courteous. This officer explained great features that he 
would recommend a ending and made sure that if we did not have a hotel, he could recommend one. 
He used ra onal thinking and understanding to inform and correct the incident and did not abuse his 
power. Leaving the traffic stop, we were thankful to have such a nice person help us. We are very glad 
that the City of Oak Harbor trains their officers in such a manner when it comes to something as trivial 
as a bulb being out. 

In a world where every story you hear about police being nega ve, this officer showed that there are in 
fact really great officers out there. 

Thanks again, 

Joel P. 

Email received in July 

80



77  

F  

My Dad may be a 

Policeman, but 

this was a great 

Halloween 

costume! 

81



78 

 

 

Scrooge took out the Grinch 

T  H  

82



79  

2014 Annual Report 

Oak Harbor Police Department 
 

Prepared & Presented by 
Edgar J. Green; Chief of Police 

 

Produced by Meg Massey; 
Administra ve Assistant 

 

Grateful thanks to the Department 
personnel who submi ed Division 

reports, sta s cs and photographs. 
 

A special thank you to Sara Nagel 

for photography. 
 

This report is available at: 

www.OakHarbor.org 

C ’  A G  S  

ALS Ice Bucket Challenge 

The complete video is on our 

Facebook page. 

83



80 

 

 

 

OHPD 2014 

 

84



  
 
Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – May 19, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 
 

Oak Harbor City Council  
Special Workshop Meeting Minutes 

May 19, 2015 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
City Council Present:    Staff Present: 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao  City Administrator Larry Cort 
Councilmember Joel Servatius   Finance Director Dr. Merriman 
Councilmember Jim Campbell  City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Bob Severns   Development Services Director Steve Powers 
      Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
      City Engineer Joe Stowell 
      Project Engineer Brett Anderson 
      Executive Assistant to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
            
Councilmember Munns arrived at 4:30 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Hizon and Mayor Scott Dudley were absent.   
 
              

AGENDA 
 

1. Discussion Regarding Resolution 15-14: WWTP – Use of property underlying the Whid-
bey Island Bank Building after Construction  
 

City Administrator Dr. Cort introduced Resolution 15-14 for discussion. 
 
 

a. City Council comments and questions submitted to staff  
 

Public Works Director Cathy Rosen responded to Councilmembers’ specific questions  
submitted to staff that relate to the bank building. 
 
Dr. Merriman spoke on the issue of funding the waste water treatment plant and costs to the 
rate payers. 
 
Cathy Rosen walked the council through other potential sites for the waste water treatment plant 
using a large areal map. 
 
Discussion among Council and staff. 

 
b. Staff response to Council comments and questions 

85



  
 
Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – May 19, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
 

Dr. Cort invited the Council to respond to citizen’s written comments relating to the discussion of 
Resolution15-14. 
 
Questions and discussion among Council members and staff. 
 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao adjourned the meeting at 4:01 p.m. 
     

    Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

86



  
 
Regular Meeting Minutes – May 19, 2015 
Page 1 of 5 
 

Oak Harbor City Council  
Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 19, 2015 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
City Council Present:    Staff Present: 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao  City Administrator Larry Cort 
Councilmember Tara Hizon   City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Jim Campbell  Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Bob Severns   Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Beth Munns   City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Joel Servatius  Fire Department Captain Craig Anderson 
Councilmember Almberg   Firefighter Genevieve Reeves 
      Police Captain Teri Gardner 
      Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
      Senior Planner Cac Kamak 
      Senior Services Administrator Mike McIntyre  
      Executive Assistant to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
      City Clerk Anna Thompson 
           
Mayor Scott Dudley was absent.   
              

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Pastor Burleson of Living Faith Christian Center gave the invocation, and Mayor Pro Tem 
Paggao led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 
Councilmember Joel Servatius read the Proclamation for National Public Works Week (May 17-
23, 2015).  Public Works Director Cathy Rosen received the Proclamation.  
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
Jeff Campbell, Former Commander, provided a brief presentation of the Deception Pass Sail 
and Power Squadron. 
  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to have item 12.a [Executive Session] to precede  

 Item 10.a [Unfinished Business].  Motion seconded by Councilmember Campbell,      
 unanimously approved.  

 

87



  
 
Regular Meeting Minutes – May 19, 2015 
Page 2 of 5 
 

Motion:  Councilmember Severns moved to approve the Agenda as amended, seconded by  
   Councilmember Servatius, unanimously approved.  

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao opened the Citizen Comment Period at 6:12 p.m. 
 
Citizens Speaking 
 
 Paul Brewer, Oak Harbor resident 
 Hal Hovey, 2765 SW Scenic Heights Rd., Oak Harbor  
 Bob Brown, 1788 SW Waterside, Oak Harbor  
 Tom Tveit 
 Franji Christian  

 
The Citizen Comment Period ended at 6:27 p.m. 
   

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting held on May 5, 2015 
b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers 
c. Reappointment of Danny Paggao and Bob Severns to the LEOFF 1 Disability Board 
d. Reappointment of Dee Harbour to the Parks Board  
e. Resolution 15-12: Revising Resolution 15-08 regarding City-owned Surplus Property  
f. Ordinance 1730: Amending OHMC 3.64.110 "Booking fee" and Resolution 15-16: 

Amending the OHPD Fee Schedule 
g. NE 4th Avenue water line replacement – Authorization to Bid 

  
Motion:   Councilmember Almberg moved to accept the Consent Agenda as presented,  

    seconded by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously approved. 
 
 

STAFF, MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
City Administrator 
 
 Wastewater Treatment Plant Staff update 
 Presented by City Engineer Joe Stowell  
 
Councilmember Almberg inquired about the timeline of the project to City Administrator Dr. Cort.  
 
Dr. Cort reported on the Fire Department Open House for the Centennial kick off on May 14, 
2015. 
 
Mayor 
 
No Comments. 
 
Councilmembers 
 

88



  
 
Regular Meeting Minutes – May 19, 2015 
Page 3 of 5 
 

Councilmember Severns shared Economic Development Council updates. 
Councilmember Servatius encouraged citizens to contact the Council with questions about the 
waste water treatment plant and the possible relocation of the ball fields on Bayshore Drive.   
 
Councilmember Hizon asked that citizens come to the Council with questions they have relating 
to the waste water treatment plant and any other questions.  Ms. Hizon shared information she 
learned at a FEMA training this afternoon relating to the importance of being prepared in emer-
gency situations.   
 

ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 

Resolution 15-15: Mangat Annexation Petition 
The staff report was presented by Senior Planner Cac Kamak. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao opened the item for public comment at 7:06 p.m. 
 
Citizen Comments 
  Paul Brewer 
 
Mayor Pro Tem closed comment period at 7:07 p.m. after all comments ended. 
 
Discussion between Councilmembers and Mr. Kamak. 
 
Resolution 15-15: Mangat Annexation Petition 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Hizon moved to adopt Resolution 15-15 rejecting the proposed  
    annexation of the Mangat Properties.  Motion seconded by Councilmember Servatius 
    unanimously approved.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao called a five minute recess at 7:19 p.m., reconvened the meeting at 
7:24 p.m. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao called a recess for fifteen (15) minutes at 7:25 p.m. for Executive Ses-
sion regarding property Acquisition, and reconvened the meeting at 7:45 p.m. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Resolution 15-14: WWTP – Use of property underlying the Whidbey Island Bank Building after 
Construction  
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 
  
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao opened the meeting for public comments at 7:47 p.m. 
 
Citizens Speaking 
 Skip Pothilla, 1090 SE Hathaway, Oak Harbor 

89



  
 
Regular Meeting Minutes – May 19, 2015 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 Paul Brewer, Oak Harbor resident 
 Tom Tveit 
 J.J. Olsen 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao closed the public comment period at 7:58 p.m. 
 
Discussion among City Council and staff. 
 
Resolution 15-14: WWTP – Use of property underlying the Whidbey Island Bank Building 
after Construction  
 
Motion: Councilmember Servatius moved to approve Resolution 15-14, motion seconded by  
   Councilmember Munns, approved unanimously.  
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

Authorize Landed Gentry water main over-sizing reimbursement for Fairway Point 3 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff update. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao opened the meeting for public comment at 8:15 p.m. 
 
Citizens Speaking 
 Brian Gentry 
 
Mayor Pro Tem closed the meeting at 8:16 p.m. 
 
Authorize Landed Gentry water main over-sizing reimbursement for Fairway Point 3 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Hizon moved to authorize payment for over-sizing the water mains  
    in Fairway Point in the amount of $58,868.34.  Motion seconded by Councilmember  
    Severns, approved unanimously.  
 
Discussion regarding RV Park location plan and estimated timeline for completion 
 
Dr. Cort announced that this item was brought forward by Councilmember Servatius at the May 
5, 2015 Council Meeting, requesting an update from staff on the current status of the possible 
relocation of the RV Park to the Marina.   
 
Comments among Councilmembers regarding the discussion item. 
 
Councilmember Munns suggested the city look at all angles from a cost-benefit viewpoint in re-
lation to temporarily closing the RV Park.  
 
Councilmembers Servatius, Campbell, Almberg, Severns and Hizon spoke in support of tempo-
rarily relocating the RV Park to the Marina during the construction of the Waste Water Treat-
ment Plant. 
 

90



  
 
Regular Meeting Minutes – May 19, 2015 
Page 5 of 5 
 

Councilmember Severns asked whether Dr. Cort has information on the direction the Mayor 
proposes to take regarding the potential RV Park relocation.  
Councilmember Severns requested that we consider other relocation options if relocating the 
RV Park to the Marina is no longer available.  
 
City Engineer Joe Stowell and Public Works Director Ms. Rosen answered Council’s questions 
regarding the proposed closure dates for the RV Park and the amount of notice provided.  
 
Councilmember Munns requested that Dr. Cort ask the Mayor to provide the Council with infor-
mation on the RV Park.  Dr. Cort explained that he would relay any messages the council may 
have to the Mayor and added the Council has access to request such information from the 
Mayor as well. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao requested information on the relocation of the RV Park as such item 
was added to the Agenda at the May 5th meeting.  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius move to suspend the council rules and extend the meeting  
    time to 10:00 p.m., motion seconded by Councilmember Almberg, and unanimously  
    approved.  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved that in an effort to reduce the loss of revenue from the  
    RV Park and negative cost impacts to the waste water treatment plant, the council has  
    a very strong preference for the mayor and staff to prepare a schedule and cost  
    estimate for the temporary relocation of the RV Park at the Marina and the report to be  
    deliverable no later than June 2, 2015 Council meeting.  Main Motion seconded by  
    Councilmember Campbell, unanimously approved.   
 
 
Councilmember Servatius requested that if the Mayor is not available at that time, to encourage 
a written statement or a speaker phone available in council chambers to facilitate that discus-
sion. 
 
Select three (3) Voting Delegates for the AWC Business Meeting on June 25, 2015 at the 
Wenatchee Convention Center  
 
Brief discussion among City Council.  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to nominate Councilmember Campbell, Almberg  

   and Severns as voting delegates at the AWC Convention, Motion seconded by  
   Councilmember Campbell, unanimously approved.  

 
ADJOURN 

 
Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Almberg,  

   unanimously approved.  
 

Meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 
     

Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

91



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
and Check Numbers

FROM: Dr. Merriman, Director of Finance

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 6.b
Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
and Check Numbers

FROM: Dr. Merriman, Director of Finance

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
prior prior to the City Council meeting for appropiate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 162477 through 162596 in the amount of $311,473.64.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 34630 through 34785.

- EFT check numbers 712 through 716.

- Payroll check numbers 98025 through 98080.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
prior prior to the City Council meeting for appropiate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 162477 through 162596 in the amount of $311,473.64.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 34630 through 34785.

- EFT check numbers 712 through 716.

- Payroll check numbers 98025 through 98080.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

92



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing

93

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=abce56620a35eed30d56f8b7a4c9e82b&aName=1432765159_at.pdf


05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162477 5/27/2015 0007332  ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS 151870CM CLIP ON TIE -6.52

-130.43BOOTS151872CM

-326.04TACLITE154738CM

-163.02SHIRT154740CM

-43.47EARPIECE155311CM

 3,714.20ARMOR/CARRIERSCO029655

Total :  3,044.72

 162478 5/27/2015 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 24819 KEYS  10.00

Total :  10.00

 162479 5/27/2015 0007831  ALLAIN, NORMA 051315 KEY DEPOSIT REFUND  5.00

Total :  5.00

 162480 5/27/2015 0007832  ALSIDE SUPPLY CENTER 051215 DUMPSTER DEPOSIT REFUND  1,565.54

Total :  1,565.54

 162481 5/27/2015 0000036  AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS 40554 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL  850.00

Total :  850.00

 162482 5/27/2015 0000712  AMERIGAS 3040701348 PROPANE/MARINA  78.29

Total :  78.29

 162483 5/27/2015 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 36132 MAY 2015/WEB HOSTING  75.00

Total :  75.00

 162484 5/27/2015 0005001  ARAMARK 1987947694 UNIFORM SERVICES  58.58

 19.28UNIFORM SERVICES1987954354

 29.32UNIFORM SERVICES1987954355

 12.44UNIFORM SERVICES1987954356

 22.71UNIFORM SERVICES1987954357

 20.03UNIFORM SERVICES1987954358

 42.31UNIFORM SERVICES1987954359

 11.89UNIFORM SERVICES1987954360

 38.22UNIFORM SERVICES1987959150

 58.64UNIFORM SERVICES1987959153

1Page:

94



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162484 5/27/2015 (Continued)0005001  ARAMARK

 17.92UNIFORM SERVICES1987965722

 29.32UNIFORM SERVICES1987965723

 12.44UNIFORM SERVICES1987965724

 22.71UNIFORM SERVICES1987965725

 20.03UNIFORM SERVICES1987965726

 59.03UNIFORM SERVICES1987965727

 11.89UNIFORM SERVICES1987965728

 139.58UNIFORM SERVICES1987970468

 58.94UNIFORM SERVICES1987970469

 17.92UNIFORM SERVICES1987979087

 29.32UNIFORM SERVICES1987979088

 12.44UNIFORM SERVICES1987979089

 22.71UNIFORM SERVICES1987979090

 20.03UNIFORM SERVICES1987979091

 42.31UNIFORM SERVICES1987979092

 11.89UNIFORM SERVICES1987979093

 38.22UNIFORM SERVICES1987983809

 27.38UNIFORM SERVICES1987983812

 59.85UNIFORM SERVICES1987983813

 17.92UNIFORM SERVICES1987990446

 29.32UNIFORM SERVICES1987990447

 12.44UNIFORM SERVICES1987990448

 20.73UNIFORM SERVICES1987990449

 20.03UNIFORM SERVICES1987990450

 42.31UNIFORM SERVICES1987990451

 11.89UNIFORM SERVICES1987990452

Total :  1,121.99

 162485 5/27/2015 0006865  ARMADA 052015 COLLECTION FEE/14-135000-00  1,084.31

Total :  1,084.31

 162486 5/27/2015 0007839  ASHLEY'S DESIGN & LETTERMAN 1043 SHIRTS  816.00

Total :  816.00

 162487 5/27/2015 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0740070-IN FUEL  8,097.79

 14,177.69FUEL0741934-IN

2Page:

95



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162487 5/27/2015 (Continued)0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS

 2,336.03FUEL0743125-IN

Total :  24,611.51

 162488 5/27/2015 0000055  ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON 36326 REGISTRATION/DUDLEY  320.00

Total :  320.00

 162489 5/27/2015 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 162929 PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE  275.42

 461.32PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE163159

 460.81PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE163160

 445.81PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE163161

 1,140.32PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE163162

 4,147.99UNIT REPLACEMENT163263

Total :  6,931.67

 162490 5/27/2015 0000091  BENS CLEANER SALES, INC 260211 PUMP/NOZZLE/SCREENING  649.91

Total :  649.91

 162491 5/27/2015 0000103  BLADE CHEVROLET, INC 159703 LOCK  130.39

Total :  130.39

 162492 5/27/2015 0007835  BORETEC 1, INC 051415 BUSINESS LICENSE DUPLICATE PAYMENT  38.50

Total :  38.50

 162493 5/27/2015 0004642  BRAINARD, JENNIFER 051515 MUNICIPAL COURT PRO TEM  660.72

Total :  660.72

 162494 5/27/2015 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 181293795211 SUPPLIES  393.90

Total :  393.90

 162495 5/27/2015 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 03963180678 NATURAL GAS/210  25.77

 110.18NATURAL GAS/POLICE STATION08793000004

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20811829220273

 18.69NATURAL GAS/20712470743597

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20513275491754

 649.24NATURAL GAS/FIRE STATION36624000000

 122.58NATURAL GAS/ANIMAL SHELTER40661045647

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20245420760055

3Page:

96



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162495 5/27/2015 (Continued)0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20157309970234

 274.29NATURAL GAS/CITY HALL58793000009

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20462337906945

 21.73NATURAL GAS/20967984882349

 659.74NATURAL GAS/CITY SHOP80434000008

 36.72NATURAL GAS/ANNEX82193000005

 33.85NATURAL GAS/ADULT CARE CENTER90134000000

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20392612025210

Total :  2,016.39

 162496 5/27/2015 0000179  CLERKS PETTY CASH 052115 PETTY CASH  35.00

Total :  35.00

 162497 5/27/2015 0000188  CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY 49854 MUNICIPAL CODE UPDATES  127.68

Total :  127.68

 162498 5/27/2015 0005773  COMCAST 8498300290363841 INTERNET  254.32

Total :  254.32

 162499 5/27/2015 0003125  COMMERCE, DEPARTMENT OF PWTF-255070 SR 20 QUIET COVE WATER TRANSMISSION  29,923.13

 24,139.79SR 20 QUIET COVE WATER TRANSMISSIONPWTF-266153

 50,962.5642 INCH OUTFALL RECONSTRUCTION PROJECTPWTFNT-279229

Total :  105,025.48

 162500 5/27/2015 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 128329 CY 0155A  719.32

 719.32CY 0155A128632

Total :  1,438.64

 162501 5/27/2015 0000256  DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS 8915-00 FCC LICENSING  330.00

Total :  330.00

 162502 5/27/2015 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-526342 MARATHON RENTALS  1,407.67

Total :  1,407.67

 162503 5/27/2015 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK19973 LDT  27.09

 75.83FASTENERSWAOAK19988

 9.35FASTENERSWAOAK20014

4Page:

97



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  112.27 162503 5/27/2015 0002900 0002900  FASTENAL

 162504 5/27/2015 0003413  FIRE SERVICE BOOKSTORE 300006676 EMERGENCY CARE PLUS  912.87

Total :  912.87

 162505 5/27/2015 0007838  FOREMOST PROMOTIONS 296759 COLORING BOOKS  235.00

Total :  235.00

 162506 5/27/2015 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 053115 MAY 2015/ANIMAL SHELTER  2,500.00

Total :  2,500.00

 162507 5/27/2015 0000355  FRONTIER 007-9244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  258.72

 77.62CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-0841

 118.15CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-2236

 66.90CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1572

 69.94CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111

 64.16CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121

 64.13CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6794

 184.96CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-5551

 73.82CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8702

 40.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2694

 33.80CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2715

Total :  1,052.31

 162508 5/27/2015 0000329  GALLS 003500664 PANTS  121.74

Total :  121.74

 162509 5/27/2015 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  960.00

 650.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

 3,068.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

 1,159.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB2

Total :  5,837.00

 162510 5/27/2015 0000349  GRAINGER 9735689235 TAMPER RESISTANT TAPE  170.55

 120.98RIBBON CARTRIDGE9735689243

 52.04ELECTRICAL TAPE9737448895

 78.26FIRE EXTINGUISHER SIGN9741124177

5Page:

98



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  421.83 162510 5/27/2015 0000349 0000349  GRAINGER

 162511 5/27/2015 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8326 MAINTENANCE & INSPECTIONS  940.00

Total :  940.00

 162512 5/27/2015 0005311  HB JAEGER COMPANY, LLC 42763/2 GATE VALVES  3,471.70

Total :  3,471.70

 162513 5/27/2015 0001251  HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY 55847287 COMPUTER  1,306.57

 977.21COMPUTER55863732

 61.70SWITCH55893760

Total :  2,345.48

 162514 5/27/2015 0003562  HIGH PERFORMANCE SIGNS 19482 LETTERS  1,712.00

Total :  1,712.00

 162515 5/27/2015 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1021637 COUPLING  6.41

 9.01ELEMENT1021660

 66.74WOOD RULE/STAKE2025953

 20.63CLEAN SEAL21847

 19.48SPLCE/HOSE REPAIR3025724

 43.46PRUNER3160294

 38.84POLE/SCREW/SOCKETS4024161

 17.39DOORSTOP4041716

 42.40SAND/TUBE/ADAPTER4160147

 61.83FLORAL/SAND4160186

 17.33WEDGE ANCH6025308

 17.10BOX/SEAL6592283

 2.37PLUGS7023656

 47.75WRAP7023719

 19.67PLANTS7165605

 4.65MICROTUBE9024833

 26.56COVER/PROFRM9571340

Total :  461.62

 162516 5/27/2015 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 706717 APR 2015/COFFEE SUPPLIES  93.22

Total :  93.22

6Page:

99



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162517 5/27/2015 0003854  ICICLE INN 10290 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/BUXTON  369.84

Total :  369.84

 162518 5/27/2015 0000253  ID TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 1504065 ADAPTER  53.13

Total :  53.13

 162519 5/27/2015 0000429  ISLAND COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION 052115 BAR DUES/ESPARZA/LEWIS  100.00

Total :  100.00

 162520 5/27/2015 0005949  ISLAND COUNTY SHERIFF RESERVES 535 MARATHON SERVICES  747.50

Total :  747.50

 162521 5/27/2015 0000412  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 052115 2ND QTR 2015/JOINT TOURISM  5,000.00

Total :  5,000.00

 162522 5/27/2015 0005445  ISLAND DEFENSE, PLLC 005 APR 2015/PUBLIC DEFENSE  10,000.00

Total :  10,000.00

 162523 5/27/2015 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 052115 APR 2015/COLLECTION CHARGES  22,701.51

Total :  22,701.51

 162524 5/27/2015 0000454  JET CITY EQUIPMENT RENTAL 20418 DUMPING  90.55

Total :  90.55

 162525 5/27/2015 0000476  KERR, JACK 03-15 MAR 2015/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00

 1,400.00APR 2015/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING04-15

 1,400.00MAY 2015/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING05-15

Total :  4,200.00

 162526 5/27/2015 0007840  KINEQUIP, INC 0177591-IN VALVES/KIT  100.30

Total :  100.30

 162527 5/27/2015 0007827  KRUM, GLENDA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  10.00

Total :  10.00

 162528 5/27/2015 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5102984MB ASPHALT  342.75

Total :  342.75

7Page:

100



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162529 5/27/2015 0005843  LAND TITLE AND ESCROW OF 109905-O SUBDIVISION REPORT  1,576.15

Total :  1,576.15

 162530 5/27/2015 0000889  LANGUAGE EXCHANGE 05 INTERPRETER SERVICES  227.60

Total :  227.60

 162531 5/27/2015 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400185071 ALIGNMENT  61.14

Total :  61.14

 162532 5/27/2015 0007836  LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 051515 BUSINESS LICENSE DUPLICATE PAYMENT  29.50

Total :  29.50

 162533 5/27/2015 0000522  LUEHR, TOM 1 DRIVING SERVICES  72.00

 135.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  207.00

 162534 5/27/2015 0000524  LYNDEN ICE 112007375 ICE  177.00

Total :  177.00

 162535 5/27/2015 0003654  MAIN STREET COLLISION II 4193 VEHICLE REPAIR  825.25

Total :  825.25

 162536 5/27/2015 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 513186 APPLES/BANANAS  350.85

 41.37GROCERIES998245

 322.93GROCERIES998752

Total :  715.15

 162537 5/27/2015 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC M151283 STORAGE  1,423.43

 339.14STORAGE FOR LATE NOTICESM151300

Total :  1,762.57

 162538 5/27/2015 0000040  MATRIX 608355517 LONG DISTANCE  336.58

Total :  336.58

 162539 5/27/2015 0006028  MCI COMM SERVICE 679-3902 LONG DISTANCE  34.94

Total :  34.94

 162540 5/27/2015 0006299  MEYER, CAROL 1 TRAVEL REFUND  90.00

8Page:

101



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  90.00 162540 5/27/2015 0006299 0006299  MEYER, CAROL

 162541 5/27/2015 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 051815 MAY 2015/HEARING EXAMINER SERVICES  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

 162542 5/27/2015 0000538  MID AMERICAN RESEARCH CHEMICAL 0551075-IN FLOOR CLEANER/OIL  270.88

Total :  270.88

 162543 5/27/2015 0007833  MIRACLE DEVELOPMENT, LLC 051215 DUMPSTER DEPOSIT REFUND  1,594.33

Total :  1,594.33

 162544 5/27/2015 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES 00630707_SNV COVER/HOSE/VISOR/VALVE  1,052.31

Total :  1,052.31

 162545 5/27/2015 0007670  NETWORKFLEET, INC OSV000000246020 MONTHLY SERVICE  238.60

Total :  238.60

 162546 5/27/2015 0000610  NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 355518 BOD STANDARD/NUTRIENT  350.80

Total :  350.80

 162547 5/27/2015 0000630  NORTHEND TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC 1031188 FITTING  65.00

Total :  65.00

 162548 5/27/2015 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 254063 GREAT STUFF BIG GAP/CAP  6.48

 9.98FASTENERS/DRILL BIT/RULE TAPE255188

 4.28PEST SPRAY255217

 8.69BATTERY255232

 6.51FASTENERS255274

 11.29HSP/FASTERNERS255279

 27.14HOSE/COUPLE255471

 16.75FREIGHT255499

 20.10SCREWS255501

 17.90COUPLE/REDUCER/ELBOW255516

 6.00FASTENERS255567

 19.53PIPE JOINT/BALL VALVE255583

 35.16BUSHING/CLAMP/ADAPTER255585

 5.42RAIN BIRD255643

-0.67FASTENERS255653

9Page:

102



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162548 5/27/2015 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 27.53SEEDS/BATTERIES255674

Total :  222.09

 162549 5/27/2015 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-237994 RET -121.67

-16.31CORE RETURN001-238123

 50.70BALL BEARING001-238333

 164.31SWITCH001-238380

 9.06FILTERS001-238579

 69.31BELT001-238663

 65.68BLADERUNNER001-238763

 4.48MINI LAMP001-238780

 19.91WINDOW-WELD001-238836

 27.80SWITCHES001-238955

 13.90SWITCH001-238963

 10.71TERM EXTRACT001-239106

 6.77FILTERS001-239348

 18.35FILTERS001-239467

 40.03ADDITIVE001-239494

 31.21BELT001-239516

 8.50BEAM001-239528

Total :  402.74

 162550 5/27/2015 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 1415292 APR 2015/NETWORK SUPPORT  11,272.02

Total :  11,272.02

 162551 5/27/2015 0003092  OAK HARBOR SIGNS 91 SIGNS  489.15

Total :  489.15

 162552 5/27/2015 0003007  OFFICE DEPOT 769513080001 PAPER  61.31

Total :  61.31

 162553 5/27/2015 0006007  O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 2532-321968 FLASHER  77.44

Total :  77.44

 162554 5/27/2015 0000688  OVERHEAD DOOR CO TS66587 DOOR REPAIR  547.85

Total :  547.85

10Page:

103



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162555 5/27/2015 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0087394 TIRES  71.61

 78.12TIRES0087395

 1,217.48TIRES0087517

 759.37TIRES0087668

Total :  2,126.58

 162556 5/27/2015 0001596  PACIFIC TORQUE, LLC 097209 SENSOR  100.99

Total :  100.99

 162557 5/27/2015 0005783  PARTSMASTER 20895818 RUBBER BALL RAILS  438.72

Total :  438.72

 162558 5/27/2015 0001218  PBY MEMORIAL ASSOCIATION 051915 2% LODGING TAX GRANT REIMBURSEMENT  4,876.35

Total :  4,876.35

 162559 5/27/2015 0007610  PERKINS COIE, LLP 5316403 PROF SVC/2015 CONSTRUCTION ADVICE  1,430.00

Total :  1,430.00

 162560 5/27/2015 0000710  PLATT ELECTRIC SUPPLY, INC G715558 BATTERY CASES  206.65

Total :  206.65

 162561 5/27/2015 0000724  PONY MAILING & BUSINESS CENTER 242005 SHIPPING  27.12

Total :  27.12

 162562 5/27/2015 0000727  POSITIVE PROMOTIONS 05247486 SIDE BRCLT/HEAT SENS PENCIL ASSRT  418.75

Total :  418.75

 162563 5/27/2015 0000730  POWELL, JANIS 1 DRIVING SERVICES  96.00

 102.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  198.00

 162564 5/27/2015 0007801  PRO SPECIALTIES GROUP, INC INVC00297938 MEDALS  975.23

Total :  975.23

 162565 5/27/2015 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0026130-IN MAX-1  207.48

 150.08POWERCOAT/ATLAS FIT0026184-IN

Total :  357.56

11Page:

104



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162566 5/27/2015 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000881421 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR DISPLT  1,466.44

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1501 SE CITY BEACH ST WIND200000919684

 2,242.76ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859

 11.82ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR EBATH200001097589

 13.28ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVE PUMP200001884218

 153.87ELECTRICITY/30505 ST ROUTE 20200002036164

 74.13ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20 SIGN200002036719

 19.61ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037097

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFIELD CT PUMP200002037261

 90.97ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST LF200002037501

 10.16ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DR200002170617

 10.16ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539

 138.93ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CMFTST200002723381

 15.68ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND ST200003267636

 126.62ELECTRICITY/1957 FORT NUGENT RD RESTRM200003459654

 25.87ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE SEWAGE200004342099

 110.33ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD200004562878

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVE200004856627

 10.16ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310

 10.62ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR WKITCH200005461666

 6,144.66ELECTRICITY/700 SE PIONEER WAY LAGOON200005933094

 12.73ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 138.18ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & MIDWAY200007702943

 10.25ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME ST200007824192

 10.77ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993

 15.68ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

 31.92ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PL200010322895

 109.24ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248

 21.67ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE SWRSTA200010499446

 73.46ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DR LIGHTS200010530240

 15.07ELECTRICITY/1501 SE CITY BEACH ST PARK200010530802

 170.52ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY CAB200010531024

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP IRRIG200010531172

 135.57ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CABI200010531354

 91.69ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK ST200010531941

 83.77ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR BALLPK200010699706

 863.77ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839

12Page:

105



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162566 5/27/2015 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 26.16ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930

 21.51ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME ST200011579964

 10.16ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 1,129.62ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087

 18.53ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765

 2,729.31ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

 2,041.88ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN RD PUMP200013734963

 115.95ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY LIFTST200013968405

 41.79ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK ST200014151886

 820.55ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153

 117.77ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVE200015618321

 67.20ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DRIVE SWRPMP200015685833

 518.94ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER RD WTRTWR200017255619

 444.31ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482

 96.56ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE SIGNAL200017575347

 69.94ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE RD PUMP200017653656

 173.31ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR PUMP200017654415

 12.09ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVE SWRPMP200017853025

 48.06ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY LIGHTS200019043344

 41.97ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DR PUMP200019500517

 43.07ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN RD200020179194

 13.83ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR KITEST200020308330

 53.03ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN ST PUMP200022441113

 26.46ELECTRICITY/TRAILER PK S END200022988147

 27.63ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067

 51.55ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER RD TRAFFI200023360569

 32.43ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST LFTPMP200024715845

 194.90ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157

 111.61ELECTRICITY/ANIMAL SHELTER220000598098

 69.96ELECTRICITY/END OF GUN CLUB ROAD220002244337

 339.33ELECTRICITY/101220003651407

 659.11ELECTRICITY/275 SE PIONEER WAY220003735804

 20.80ELECTRICITY/1770 NE GOLDIE ST PUMP220005593946

 206.74ELECTRICITY/301 SE PIONEER WAY220005790955

 392.90ELECTRICITY/SW BEEKSMA DR300000005003

13Page:

106



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162566 5/27/2015 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 147.45ELECTRICITY/FAIRWAY POINT DR300000007421

 25.23ELECTRICITY/2220 SW VISTA PARK DR300000009906

 62.39ELECTRICITY/NE 11TH AVENUE300000010409

 218.37ELECTRICITY/INTSCTN OF MIDWAY & NE 8 AVE300000010458

 143.89ELECTRICITY/900 SE MIDWAY BLVD300000010516

Total :  23,898.67

 162567 5/27/2015 0002997  QUINTON DESIGN & ELECTRICAL 2696 POWER RELOCATION  1,632.67

Total :  1,632.67

 162568 5/27/2015 0007624  RIKER, MELISSA 051815 EXP REIMB  938.81

Total :  938.81

 162569 5/27/2015 0000781  SAFEWAY 808527 GROCERIES  39.66

Total :  39.66

 162570 5/27/2015 0005967  SEATTLE AUTOMOTIVE DIST S6-620253 RESISTOR  22.22

Total :  22.22

 162571 5/27/2015 0007800  SEBRIS BUSTO JAMES 58506 PROF SVC/BARGAINING  3,962.00

Total :  3,962.00

 162572 5/27/2015 0000852  SENIOR CENTER PETTY CASH 050515 PETTY CASH  247.18

Total :  247.18

 162573 5/27/2015 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-303929 CAMERA  568.65

 74.27SWIVEL JACK14-304409

 686.88POWER STEERING PUMP14-304490

Total :  1,329.80

 162574 5/27/2015 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING 723389 APR 2015/PUBLICATIONS-ACCT#80125600  736.12

 97.19REQUEST FOR PROPOSALSWCW623046

 51.09PUBLIC HEARINGWCW625823

 99.68CITY NOTICESWCW631417

 44.86CITY OF ORDINANCESWCW631438

Total :  1,028.94

14Page:

107



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162575 5/27/2015 0000851  SPRINT 182311697 LONG DISTANCE  5.80

Total :  5.80

 162576 5/27/2015 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3263609742 TONER  544.92

 1,771.74TONER3264201583

 267.46TONER3264201585

 74.78POST ITS/SHARPENER3264201586

 86.18CHAIRMATS3264201587

 1,260.91PROJECT PRO 20133264201589

 12.49WIRELESS MOUSE3264201590

 40.90CALC/ADDING MACHINE ROLLS3265307927

 60.95CARDSTOCK/BOARD3265307928

 30.21ENVELOPES/STAMP3265307930

Total :  4,150.54

 162577 5/27/2015 0004050  SUMMIT LAW GROUP 73538 PROF SVC/GRIEVANCE ARBITRATION  56.00

Total :  56.00

 162578 5/27/2015 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1059256 PEST EXTERMINATION  54.35

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1059638

Total :  114.14

 162579 5/27/2015 0007837  TACOMA CITY MARATHON ASSOC 85620 ADVERTISING  1,100.00

Total :  1,100.00

 162580 5/27/2015 0007265  THOMPSON, ANNA 1 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162581 5/27/2015 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W195 SHIPPING  51.14

Total :  51.14

 162582 5/27/2015 0007454  UNITED SITE SERVICES 114-2876918 MARATHON RENTALS  4,934.16

Total :  4,934.16

 162583 5/27/2015 0007380  UNITED STATES POWER SQUADRONS 150301226 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL/SUBLET  80.20

Total :  80.20

 162584 5/27/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485590002304661 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES -1.71

15Page:

108



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162584 5/27/2015 (Continued)0004903  US BANK

 1,094.53CREDIT CARD PURCHASES4485590002304661

Total :  1,092.82

 162585 5/27/2015 0000937  VALLEY FREIGHTLINER, INC 2251280112 ENGINE REPAIRS  256.62

Total :  256.62

 162586 5/27/2015 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9745316870 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  4,894.43

Total :  4,894.43

 162587 5/27/2015 0005079  WASHINGTON INSTITUTE OF SPORTS OH1403 WELLNESS EXAMS  607.80

Total :  607.80

 162588 5/27/2015 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL 00057405 MARATHON SERVICES  482.68

Total :  482.68

 162589 5/27/2015 0000985  WASTE MANAGEMENT 051215 DUMPSTER DEPOSIT REFUND  1,232.51

Total :  1,232.51

 162590 5/27/2015 0001039  WESTERN PETERBILT, INC S852598 HARNESS  175.64

Total :  175.64

 162591 5/27/2015 0000675  WHIDBEY COMMUNITY PHYSICIANS 051215-94 PHYSICAL/BEBEE  150.00

Total :  150.00

 162592 5/27/2015 0007078  WHIDBEY SIGN COMPANY 14201 BANNERS/STICKERS  180.44

Total :  180.44

 162593 5/27/2015 0007510  WHIDBEY TECH SOLUTIONS 60969 TZ 215 W/WIFI  1,559.85

Total :  1,559.85

 162594 5/27/2015 0001010  WHIDBEY TELECOM 3848128 CURRENT NET CHARGES  41.45

 63.05CURRENT NET CHARGES3851088

Total :  104.50

 162595 5/27/2015 0007834  WOODMAN CONSTRUCTION 051215 DUMPSTER DEPOSIT REFUND  194.96

Total :  194.96

16Page:

109



05/27/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 2:57:19PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162596 5/27/2015 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 701853861 MAR 2015/COPIER RENTAL  4,630.86

Total :  4,630.86

Bank total :  311,473.64 120 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 311,473.64Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 120

17Page:

110



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1729: Amending 
OHMC Ch. 13.36 entitled "Fire 
Protection Systems" and 
Resolution No. 15-17 amending 
Schedule F of the Master Fee 
Schedule

FROM: Ray Merrill, Oak Harbor Fire Chief

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1729 amending OHMC Chapter 13.36 entitled "Fire Protection Systems".

Adopt Resolution No. 15-17 amending Oak Harbor Public Works Department (Schedule F) of the 
Master Fee Schedule.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 6.c
Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1729: Amending 
OHMC Ch. 13.36 entitled "Fire 
Protection Systems" and 
Resolution No. 15-17 amending 
Schedule F of the Master Fee 
Schedule

FROM: Ray Merrill, Oak Harbor Fire Chief

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1729 amending OHMC Chapter 13.36 entitled "Fire Protection Systems".

Adopt Resolution No. 15-17 amending Oak Harbor Public Works Department (Schedule F) of the 
Master Fee Schedule.Master Fee Schedule.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Ordinance 1729 references OHMC Chapter 13.36 which is outdated and I am recommending the 
following amendments:

OHMC 13.36.010 - to reflect the rate per the Master Fee Schedule.  OHMC 13.36.020 - to correct 
references and reviewing personnel.  OHMC 13.36.040 - to update to the latest city requirements.  
OHMC 13.36.050 - to change from water department to City of Oak Harbor.

Resolution No. 15-17 amends the Oak Harbor Public Works Department portion of the Master Fee 
Schedule (Schedule F) to add the rate for City installed fire protection.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
OHMC Chapter 13.36 was last amended by Ordinance No. 1306 (2002) and Ordinance No. 403 

Master Fee Schedule.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Ordinance 1729 references OHMC Chapter 13.36 which is outdated and I am recommending the 
following amendments:

OHMC 13.36.010 - to reflect the rate per the Master Fee Schedule.  OHMC 13.36.020 - to correct 
references and reviewing personnel.  OHMC 13.36.040 - to update to the latest city requirements.  
OHMC 13.36.050 - to change from water department to City of Oak Harbor.

Resolution No. 15-17 amends the Oak Harbor Public Works Department portion of the Master Fee 
Schedule (Schedule F) to add the rate for City installed fire protection.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
OHMC Chapter 13.36 was last amended by Ordinance No. 1306 (2002) and Ordinance No. 403 

111



(1975).  The Master Fee Schedule was adopted by Resolution No. 15-11 on April 7, 2015.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1729
2. Resolution 15-17
3. Public Works Department Master Fee Schedule (Schedule F)

(1975).  The Master Fee Schedule was adopted by Resolution No. 15-11 on April 7, 2015.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1729
2. Resolution 15-17
3. Public Works Department Master Fee Schedule (Schedule F)

112

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=abce56620a35eed30d56f8b7a4c9e82b&aName=1431645584_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=abce56620a35eed30d56f8b7a4c9e82b&aName=1432745548_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=abce56620a35eed30d56f8b7a4c9e82b&aName=1431645652_at.pdf


Fire Protection Systems Ordinance 

(OHMC Ch. 13.36) -- Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1729 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING OAK HARBOR 

MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 13.36 ENTITLED "FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS" 

WHEREAS, the current edition of Chapter 13.36 is outdated, specifically Section 13.36.020 

citing the incorrect references and reviewing personnel; and 

WHEREAS, Section 13.36.040 shall be updated to the latest city requirements; 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

Section One.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 13.36 entitled "Fire Protection Systems" last 

amended by Ordinance No. 1306 (2002) and Ordinance No. 403 (1975) is hereby amended to 

read as follows: 

Chapter 13.36 

FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

Sections: 

13.36.010    Installation permitted – Rate – Billings. 

13.36.020    Private systems – Approval required – Standards – Application. 

13.36.030    Connection lines – Separation from water supply – Prohibited acts. 

13.36.040    Installation – Permit required – Requirements. 

13.36.050    Damage liability. 

13.36.010  Installation permitted – Rate – Billings.  Fire protection systems may be installed in 

the city of Oak Harbor. The rate therefor shall be $12.72 per month, per the Master Fee Schedule 

adopted by resolution of city council, plus $1.79 per inch of the diameter of the fire service pipe 

over eight inches in diameter at the city main. Billings shall be part of the water utility bill.  

13.36.020  Private systems – Approval required – Standards – Application.  Private fire 

protection systems must be approved by the city supervisorFire Code Official. They may include 

automatic fire sprinkler headssystems, standpipes, hose racks and connections, inside and outside 

fire hose outlets, hydrants and such other appurtenances. Automatic fire sprinkler system 

installations shall comply with the 1972 Edition of the National Fire Protection Association 

Pamphlet No. 13currently adopted version of National Fire Protection Association Standard(s) 

13, 13R or 13D. Before anyPrior to system is installedinstallation, application shall be made to 

the city supervisorFire Code Official.   and a diagram of the installationThree (3) complete sets 

of plans shall be submitted. The diagramplans shall contain a list of all material to be used, valve 

locations and service line pipe size.  

113



Fire Protection Systems Ordinance 

(OHMC Ch. 13.36) -- Page 2 

13.36.030  Connection lines – Separation from water supply – Prohibited acts.  Fire 

connection lines shall be separate from the regular water supply. No water may be withdrawn 

from the lines except for fire. It is unlawful for any person or firm who has a water connection 

for fire protection purposes to add any other connection or let water be used off the premises for 

which the connection is made. 

13.36.040  Installation – Permit required – Requirements.  No installation may be made until 

a permits hasapplicable to the work have been issued, and the installation shall only be done 

according to plans approved by the city supervisorFire Code Official. The city of Oak Harbor 

must be notified before any work is done in the street right-of-way or on the water use detection 

system and the appropriate permits obtained prior to any work in the street right-of-way. The city 

of Oak Harbor will have an inspector on the site while work is being done in the city street or 

where the water main is being tapped. The applicant will pay all installationshall be responsible 

for costs incurred on the installation of the fire protection system, including all costs of fire 

department permits and inspection.   

13.36.050  Damage liability.  The city will not be responsible nor liable for any personal injury 

or property damage or any loss due to fire or otherwise by reason of an insufficient quantity of 

water and/or insufficient water pressure for any reason whatsoever. Rates established for service 

connections of this type are conditioned upon the premise that no liability of any nature 

whatsoever shall attach to the water departmentcity of Oak Harbor by reason of failure of water 

quantity or water pressure.  

Section Two.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 

circumstance is held invalid, the remainder or the Ordinance or the application of the provision 

to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

Section Three.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days 

after publication. 

PASSED by the City Council this _______ day of ___________________, 2015. 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

Veto (    ) 

Approve (     ) 

By 

Scott Dudley, Mayor 

Dated: 

Attest: 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk 

114



Fire Protection Systems Ordinance 

(OHMC Ch. 13.36) -- Page 3 

Approved as to Form: 

Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

Published:  

L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2015\Fire Protection Systems Ordinance.docx 

115



Resolution 15-17: Oak Harbor Public Works Fee Schedule – Page 1 of 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-17 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING THE OAK HARBOR PUBLIC 

WORKS DEPARTMENT PORTION (SCHEDULE F) OF THE MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor as follows: 

 

1. Adoption of the Oak Harbor Public Works Department Master Fee Schedule.  The city hereby adopts by 

reference and incorporates herein the attached Master Fee Schedule for the Oak Harbor Public Works 

Department (Schedule F) setting the fees, rates, deposits, and other charges.  The attached Master Fee 

Schedule for the Oak Harbor Public Works Department replaces Schedule F of the Master Fee Schedule 

that was adopted by Resolution No. 15-11 on April 7, 2015. 

 

2. Severability.  If any provision of this Resolution or its application to any person or circumstance is held 

invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision to other persons or 

circumstances is not affected. 

 

3. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately. 

 

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 2
nd

 day of June, 2015. 

        

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

 

__________________________ 

      Scott Dudley, Mayor 

 

 

Attest:       Approved as to form: 

 

 

___________________________  _______________________________ 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk   Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2015\PW - Resolution MFS amendment 5-19-15.docx 

116



1 

MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

Chapter 6.12 PARKS CODE FEE 

6.12.095(2) Park facility reservation system. 

• Fee for reservation for a single day's use of a facility $25.00 

6.12.095(8) Park facility reservation system. 

• Fee that may be assessed to individuals or groups who

have reserved a keyed facility and failed to collect the 

key at the Utilities Office during business hours, 

causing an employee to be called out after hours on a 

work day or on a weekend to unlock the reserved 

facility. 

$75.00 

Chapter 6.13 RECREATIONAL CAMPING IN CITY PARKS FEE 

6.13.090(1) Fee for overnight use required. 

• For each recreation vehicle parked in the Staysail RV

Park located at Windjammer Park 

$25.00 per night 

6.13.090(2) Fee for overnight use required. 

• For use of each overflow campsite, tent campsite or

special event campsite 

$15.00 per night 

6.13.090(4) Fee for overnight use required. 

• Fee for online reservations $6.50 

6.13.090(5) Fee for overnight use required. 

• Cancellation of online reservations $8.50 

6.13.100(2) Other fees for camping. 

• Charge for each use of the trailer dump station at

Staysail RV Park 

$5.00 

Chapter 13.36 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS FEE 

13.36.010 Installation permitted – Rate – Billings. 

City installed fire protection rate $12.72 per month plus 

$1.79 per inch over 8" in 

diameter at the city main 

Chapter 14.20 WEST SIDE OF OAK HARBOR – SEWER 

TRUNK LINE CHARGE 

FEE 

14.20.030(1) Equivalent residential units – Schedule of fixtures. 

• One residential unit/single-family residence

• Multiple-residential units

• Nonresidential properties, including all commercial

and industrial properties – based on the number of 

points for the improvements on or to be constructed on 

the property 

$425 

$425 times number of 

residential units 

$30.00 shall be added for 

each point in excess of 20 

L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2015\2015 Master Fee Schedule - Public Works Department.docx 

5/14/2015 3:08 PM 

117



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Ordinance 1734: Adoption of 
Official Zoning Map

FROM: Steve Powers, Director of Development Services

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1. Adopt Ordinance 1734 and the attached official zoning map.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents an ordinance that would adopt the Official Zoning Map for the City of Oak 
Harbor.

The City of Oak Harbor Official Zoning Map is a vital tool in conveying the locations and boundaries of

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 6.d
Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Ordinance 1734: Adoption of 
Official Zoning Map

FROM: Steve Powers, Director of Development Services

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1. Adopt Ordinance 1734 and the attached official zoning map.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents an ordinance that would adopt the Official Zoning Map for the City of Oak 
Harbor.

The City of Oak Harbor Official Zoning Map is a vital tool in conveying the locations and boundaries of The City of Oak Harbor Official Zoning Map is a vital tool in conveying the locations and boundaries of
the zoning districts of the City. The City of Oak Harbor updates its Comprehensive Plan and Future Land 
Use Map by taking action on Comprehensive Plan amendments annually in December with subsequent 
amendments to zoning and the Official Zoning Map following in the spring.

Since the City's first zoning map adoption on August 6, 1968, the zoning map has been adopted several
times in combination with the City's Comprehensive Plan. The official zoning map for the city has been 
amended over the years with numerous zoning changes occurring.  Most notably, many changes occurred 
in 1997 in order to implement land use changes from the 1995 Comprehensive Plan. Since that time, 
zoning changes to individual properties have occurred annually as a result of sponsored, mandated, or 
discretionary land use changes to the Comprehensive Plan. 

Adoption of the City's official zoning map is linked inextricably to the City's Comprehensive Plan cycle 
and is required for consistency with the Growth Management Act. Updating the zoning map for the City
normally occurs every year after the land use amendments are adopted in December by City Council. 
The individual zoning changes are also adopted by City Council a few months after the December land 
use changes; typically around February or March. In 2012, the City formalized the process by adopting
the official zoning map separate from the individual land use and zoning amendments. Adoption of the 
zoning map separate from the land use and zoning amendments will also allow the City to make minor 
changes such as scrivener’s errors on an annual basis. All changes will be documented and presented 
with the adoption of the map.

Adoption of the ordinance attached to this agenda bill approves the zoning map which is made official by

The City of Oak Harbor Official Zoning Map is a vital tool in conveying the locations and boundaries of 
the zoning districts of the City. The City of Oak Harbor updates its Comprehensive Plan and Future Land 
Use Map by taking action on Comprehensive Plan amendments annually in December with subsequent 
amendments to zoning and the Official Zoning Map following in the spring.

Since the City's first zoning map adoption on August 6, 1968, the zoning map has been adopted several 
times in combination with the City's Comprehensive Plan. The official zoning map for the city has been 
amended over the years with numerous zoning changes occurring.  Most notably, many changes occurred 
in 1997 in order to implement land use changes from the 1995 Comprehensive Plan. Since that time, 
zoning changes to individual properties have occurred annually as a result of sponsored, mandated, or 
discretionary land use changes to the Comprehensive Plan. 

Adoption of the City's official zoning map is linked inextricably to the City's Comprehensive Plan cycle 
and is required for consistency with the Growth Management Act. Updating the zoning map for the City 
normally occurs every year after the land use amendments are adopted in December by City Council. 
The individual zoning changes are also adopted by City Council a few months after the December land 
use changes; typically around February or March. In 2012, the City formalized the process by adopting 
the official zoning map separate from the individual land use and zoning amendments. Adoption of the 
zoning map separate from the land use and zoning amendments will also allow the City to make minor 
changes such as scrivener’s errors on an annual basis. All changes will be documented and presented 
with the adoption of the map.

Adoption of the ordinance attached to this agenda bill approves the zoning map which is made official by

118



Adoption of the ordinance attached to this agenda bill approves the zoning map which is made official by
the signatures of the Mayor and City Clerk.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
The Washington State Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A) requires that counties and cities adopt
zoning and other development regulations that are consistent with their adopted Comprehensive Plans. 
Cities are authorized by RCW 35A.63 to adopt appropriate regulations complying with state law for the 
regulation of property in the city, including adopting zoning codes and official zoning maps per RCW 
35A.63.100(1). Adoption of the zoning map with signatures of the Mayor and City Clerk with the City's 
seal affixed is required by Oak Harbor Municipal Code 19.16.010[1].

[1] 19.16.010 Official zoning map.

The locations and boundaries of the zoning districts shall be as shown on the map accompanying this title 
and made a part of this title, entitled, “Official Zoning Map – Oak Harbor, Washington.” The official 
zoning map and all the notations, references and amendments thereto and other information shown 
thereon are made a part of this title, just as if such information set forth on the map were fully described 
and set out herein. The official zoning map, attested by the signature of the mayor and the city clerk, with
the seal of the municipality affixed, shall be kept on file in the office of the planning director, and shall be 
available for inspection by the public. (Ord. 1555 § 6, 2009).

FISCAL IMPACT

Adoption of the ordinance attached to this agenda bill approves the zoning map which is made official by 
the signatures of the Mayor and City Clerk.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
The Washington State Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A) requires that counties and cities adopt 
zoning and other development regulations that are consistent with their adopted Comprehensive Plans. 
Cities are authorized by RCW 35A.63 to adopt appropriate regulations complying with state law for the 
regulation of property in the city, including adopting zoning codes and official zoning maps per RCW 
35A.63.100(1). Adoption of the zoning map with signatures of the Mayor and City Clerk with the City's 
seal affixed is required by Oak Harbor Municipal Code 19.16.010[1].

[1] 19.16.010 Official zoning map.

The locations and boundaries of the zoning districts shall be as shown on the map accompanying this title 
and made a part of this title, entitled, “Official Zoning Map – Oak Harbor, Washington.” The official 
zoning map and all the notations, references and amendments thereto and other information shown 
thereon are made a part of this title, just as if such information set forth on the map were fully described 
and set out herein. The official zoning map, attested by the signature of the mayor and the city clerk, with 
the seal of the municipality affixed, shall be kept on file in the office of the planning director, and shall be 
available for inspection by the public. (Ord. 1555 § 6, 2009).

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
April 28, 2015 - Planning Commission conducted a public hearing. At the conclusion of the public 
hearing the Planning Commission recommended City Council adopt the official zoning map.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance 1734 with Exhibit A - Official Zoning Map

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
April 28, 2015 - Planning Commission conducted a public hearing. At the conclusion of the public 
hearing the Planning Commission recommended City Council adopt the official zoning map.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance 1734 with Exhibit A - Official Zoning Map

119

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=abce56620a35eed30d56f8b7a4c9e82b&aName=1432164437_at.pdf


 

 

Adoption of Official Zoning Map 

Ordinance 

Page 1 of 2 

  ORDINANCE NO. 1734 

 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF OAK 

HARBOR AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW Chapter 35A.63, cities are authorized to adopt appropriate 

regulations complying with state law for the regulation of property in the city, including adopting 

zoning codes and official zoning maps, and 

 

WHEREAS, the following ordinance is necessary for the public health, safety and general 

welfare;  

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

 

Section One. That certain map, identified as the "City of Oak Harbor Official Zoning Map", 

dated June 2, 2015, one copy of which has been and is on file in the office of the City Clerk for 

use and examination by the public is hereby incorporated in full by this reference and is hereby 

adopted as the official zoning map for the City of Oak Harbor. 

 

Section Two.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 

circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision 

to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

 

Section Three.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force (5) five days following 

publication. 

 

 

PASSED by the City Council this 2nd day of June, 2015. 

 

(    )  APPROVED by its Mayor this _____ day of _______________, 2015. 

(    )  Vetoed 

       CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

       _______________________________ 

       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

       

Attest:       Approved as to Form: 

 

________________________   _______________________________ 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk    Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

 

    

Published: _______________ 

 

120



Seaplane Base

Ault Field

Ault Field

Fr
eun

d M
ars

h

Windjammer Park

Ft 
Nu

gen
t P

ark

Op
en 

Sp
ace

VFW Memorial Park - Marina

Skate Park

Koetje Park

Ridgehaven Park

Volunteer Park

Flintstone Park

Lueck Park

Holland Gardens - Neil Park
Ruth Cohen Park

Ridgewood Park

Spring Tree Park

Sumner Park

Fireside Park

Tyhuis Park

Kimball Park

Off-leash Dog Park

Smith Park

Redwing Park

Shadow Glen Park

Woodbury Park

Hal Ramaley Memorial Park

Meadowridge Park

Beeksma-Gateway Park

Hawthorne Park

SR 20

E PIONEER WAY

TAY
LO

R R
D

TO
RP

ED
O R

D

HU
NT

 RD

BO
ON

 RD

AULT FIELD RD

HE
LL

ER
 RD

SILVER LAKE RD

E CRESCENT HARBOR RD

NE
 RE

GA
TTA

 DR

SE 8TH AVE

GOLDIE RD

DEVRIES RD

NW CROSBY AVE

CR
OS

BY
 RD

SE
 EL

Y S
T

SE PIONEER WAY

SE 6TH AVE

E WHIDBEY AVE

MILLER RD

SWANTOWN RD

NW 2ND AVE

W PIONEER WAY

FAIRWAY LN

OA
K H

AR
BO

R R
D

E FAKKEMA RD

SW
 ER

IE 
ST

NE
 OL

EA
RY

 ST

GO
LF

 CO
UR

SE
 RD

NE 7TH AVE

W CORAL SEA DR

BURMA RD

BUNCH LN

SW
 HE

LL
ER

 ST

RE
SE

RV
AT

ION
 RD

SW SWANTOWN AVE

CASE RD

NE 16T H AVE

W WHIDBEY AVE

N O
AK

 HA
RB

OR
 ST

SW
 FA

IRH
AV

EN
 DR

FORT NUGENT RD

PIPER TRL

YATES RD

SE
 PA

SE
K S

T

FORRESTAL AVE

SW 3RD AVE

NE GOLDIE ST

AL
PIN

E D
R

JA
YA

LY

WESTERN DR

WATERL OO RD

SE 4TH AVE

W FAKKEMA RD

LARK ST

SE
 MI

DW
AY

 BL
VD

SW BARRINGTON DR

NW
 HE

LL
ER

 ST

SE
 RE

GA
TTA

 DR

SW 16TH AVE

BA
LD

A R
D

LAUREL LN

SE 9TH AVE

CL OVER VALLEY RD

NE 5TH AVE

SW SCENICHEIGHTS ST

WI
LS

ON
 RD

SW 24TH AVE

JEFFREY LN

WA
KE

 AV
E

FRONTIER LN

CARNAT ION LN

E CORAL SEA AVE

NE
WE

LL
 DR

TH
UN

DE
R L

N

FOREST DR

MISTY LN

NE
 M

IDW
AY

 BL
VD

AIR
LIN

E W
AY

ROBI N ST

OAK ST

BASIL RD

SW F ORT NUGENT  AVE

NW 1ST AVE

SW 1ST AV E

SE
 GL

EN
CO

E S
T

NE
 RO

NH
AA

R S
TNE 10T H AVE

W CRESCENT HARBOR RD

AL
TA

IR 
PL

RIDGEWAY DR

SPIT FIRE LN

ORIOLE ST

SE
 JE

RO
ME

 ST

NE
 IZ

ET
T S

T

LARCH DR

SW PUTNAM DR

SC
EN

IC 
HE

IGH
TS

 RD

SE DOCK ST

SE BARRINGTON DR

CENTRAL DR

TR
AN

SM
ITT

ER
 RD

CO
LIN

 LN

ROCKY POINT RD

GU
AM

 AV
E

NE 8TH AVE

NE
 KE

TT
LE

 ST

SE
 IR

EL
AN

D S
T

SECLUDED LN

NE 11TH AVE

NE 9TH AVE

SE
 MA

YL
OR

 ST

GOL DFINCH ST

NE 6TH AVE

CA
NA

R Y
AL

Y

HEMLOCK DR

NW
 EL

WH
A S

T

SW 6TH AVE

BO
NA

PA
RT

E L
N

ELK LN

CHRISTIAN RD

NW
 FA

IRH
AV

EN
 DR

VAL LEY RD

SE
 OL

EA
RY

 ST

TULAGI AVE

MOUNTS RD

SW 8TH AVE

WIEL DRAAYER RD

SA
RA

TO
GA

 ST

HARMONY RD

SE BAYSHO RE DR

LA
NG

LE
Y B

LV
D

RACCO

ON WA Y

LYNDEAN LN

V ISTA LOOP

SW 2ND AVE

SW
 UN

ION
 ST

SW LOERLAND DR

NW HIYU DR

W GREEN VALLEY RD

RIF
LE

 RD

SW 17TH AVE

NW DORY DR

PINE LN

SW
 RE

GE
NC

Y D
R

MCGU IRE PL

B R
AN

TS
T

FR
EE

DO
M L

N

E ASTERN DR

SE
 NE

IL 
ST

SW R OBERTSON DR

SW
 JU

DS
ON

 DR

CARLTON WAY

ROBERTS RD

OL
YM

PIC
 DR

MEADOW DR

LO
E R

LA
ND

LN

CO
NIF

ER
 LN

SE CATALINA DR

NEHARVEST DR

HERON DR

WO
OD

 RD

COU NT
RY

LN

SW
 DY

ER
 ST

LA
 JU

AN
NA

 LN

SUMMIT B LVD

NE
 KO

ET
JE

 ST

MAUI AV E

R AVEN DR

GUN CL UB RD

NW CATHLAMETDR

DIX
IE 

LN

WE
LL

ING
TO

N D
R

NE 1ST AVE

SW FREUND ST

TECHNICAL DR

NW 5TH AVE

MCKINNON DR

SE
 QU

AK
ER

 ST

NW CLIP
PER DR

MONT ICELLO
 WAY

NW
 RE

DW
ING

 DR

LO
DG

EP
OL

E L
N

SA
GE

 LN

WA
LS

ER
 LN

CHEROKEE ST

ORCHARD LO OP

NE SUMNER DR

SW
 CA

PIT
AL

 DR

BOE RD

SW AN DR

S O
AK

 HA
RB

OR
 ST

NIDA DR

CLOVER ST

OL
D G

OL
DIE

 RD

NE
 ER

NS
T S

T

SW 7TH AVE

DO
YL

E L
N

SW
TA

HO
E S

T

EASY ST

AD
VA

NC
E D

R

SPRUCE LN

DA
VID

 LN

SW 4TH AVE

SW
BA

LD
A

ST

AL DER LN

LIBERTY L N

SW R OCK R OS E DR

SN
OW

FL
AK

E R
D

CHARLES PORTER AVE

LEFT Y LN

S B
EE

KS
MA

 DR

NW 3RD AVE

STARF LOWER RD

SE CITY BEACH ST

NW HYAK DR

N W ILLAH EE DR

HOMEST EAD RD

AMBERWOOD LN

R AINI ER
CIR

SW
UL

YS
SE

SS
T

NE 7TH CT

DUF FERS LN

S W
RO

SA
RIO

PL

QUAIL L N

GR
OU

SE

LN

K RIN GLER RD

SW STREMLER DR

B RE
NT

W O O D
PL

NUT MEG RD

NW 7TH AVE

COWPENS RD
SW

 XAVIER
 DR

SW
 O

RC
AS

 ST

NW
 JIB

 ST

SW C ASTILIAN DR

CASCADE CIR

NE 4TH AVE

TO
MB

OL
O D

R

NAPOLEON DR

NW
 EN

SIG
N D

R

HIGHL AND D R

SW FLEET ST

OVERVIEW D R

INDUSTRIAL AVE

NEIGHBORL Y LN

OLYMPIC CT

SW 10TH AVE

ST
EL

LA
R L

N

KIMS WAY

SW
 M

CC
RO

HA
N S

T

RIDGEVIEW DR

LATO DR

SE
 JE

NS
EN

 ST

HE
ME

NW
AY

 PL

SW FAIRWAY POINT DR

MAPLE LN

SW
DI LL

ARD LN

SE
 ILW

AC
O A

LY

SCHAY RD

SW 9TH AVE

NW
 LA

TE
EN

 ST

CO
UG

AR
 LN

DU
ST

Y L
N

E GREEN VALLEY RD

ELM LN

WEDGEWOOD LN

SW THORNBERRY DR

SW
 JI

B S
T

APACHE ST

C OLONIAL W A Y

CH
AM

PIO
N L

N

NW
 RI

GG
ING

 ST

NE
ME

L R
OS

ED
R

WOODY PL

OSP RE Y ST

NE
 CO

RD
ER

O 
PL

SE 3RD AVE

SW
M U

ZZ
AL

LS
T

SW
LO PE Z DR

N W 9TH AVE NW KEY ST

SW LESCHI DR

NW
 KA

TH
LE

EN
 DR

CAPITAL ST

NE
 QU

EE
TS

 ST

STATE ST

SW
PETESLN

OLD WILSON PL

NW 8TH AVE

SW 13TH AVE

NW
 AN

CH
OR

 DR

SW SUNNYSIDE AVE

FIRESID E

LN

AV
IAT

OR
 LN

RED ROBIN LN

MOUNTAIN CIR

HERITAGE WAY

SE 10TH AVE

GA
RF

IEL
D C

T

BA
C K

WO
OD

SW
AY

TR
AN

QU
ILI

TY
 PL

TO WE R RD

ARWIN DR

POPPYS PL

HE
RT

EN
 LN

SW STR O O PS
DR

SE 2ND CT

SW
VIS

TA
PARK DR

SE
 AT

LA
S S

T

NW UPS AL A DR

NA
TU

RE
 VI

EW
 LN

SW
 LO

ND
ON

 TE
R

V I C TO
RIA WAY

SW
 BA

RL
OW

 ST

CANARY ST

VIEWPO INT DR

WH
ITN

EY
 DR

WHISPERING PINE LN

NE 3RD AVE

SW VICTORY ST

M AGNO L IA WAY

SCHEER LN

STU
ART LN

GEMSTONE DR

SW PONS TEEN DR

SW BEEKSMA DR

NE 7TH PL

NW
 SC

EN
IC 

VIS
TA

 ST

LA

R KSP U R CIR

SC
HA

TT
IG 

LN

RANKEN ST

SW
VA

NGUARD ST

B LUE L A KE AVE

SW KALAMA LOOP

YVONNE AVE

SW KIMBAL L DR

BAKER CT

I RO
NW

OO
DL

N

NE
 BA

RR
ON

 DR

NW COLUMBIA DR

WIL DBERR Y LN

HA
NC

OC
K R

D

GLACI ER
LO

OP

IRIS ST

MOBIUS LOOP

S W HA R RIE R CIR

SE CABOT DR

SW
W A

TE
RS

IDE
CT

SAND PIP E RC IR

MULE TRACK L N

SW 11T H CT

SW 2ND CT

TRISHA L N

SEGO LN

NW CHERRY HILL LOOP

ERIN PARK RD

LINKS WAY

SW
 BO

WM
ER

 ST

GREENWOOD ST

SUNSET VIEW PL

HA
WK

S P
RA

IRI
E R

D

NE NARROWS A VE

SILVERSPUR RD

S P ARR O W
DR

SANDSTONE DR

N W
MIZ

ZEN DR

L ANGE

ST

BOON HOLLOW L N

CRATE R LOOP

SW
 NI

EN
HU

IS 
ST

SW
K I N

G MA
CT

SW WATERLOO AVE

SW
 CA

RN
EG

IE 
ST

AGATE CT

SW
 ID

A P
L

SADDLEBACK RD

CR
ES

CE
NT

AC
RE

SR
D

SE HATHAWAY ST

SW QUIN A UL
TS

T

SW GLENMONT CT

CR

OSSWOODS CIR

SW 1 9TH CT
OAKMONT LN

WA
TE

R W
OR

KS
 W

AY

NW
 OX

FO
RD

 PL

WI

LDCAT WAY

SW
A B

ER
DE

E N
CT

NE
 NU

NA
N L

OO
P

NW 7TH CT

NW 13TH CT

PINECONE PL

TIM
AR

U L
N

NW 12TH CT

SE 11TH AVE

NW OU TRIGGE R LOOP

LINDA LN

OLD POLNELL RD

SW FAIRWAY LN

OLDENBURG LN

NW
 AL

MO
ND

 LO
OP

SE F IDAL GO AVE

SW
OL

IVE
ST

CRESTVI EW
P L

KIWI ACRES LN

NW 9TH PL

NW LONGVIEW DR N W HA S LO
PL

NW
C A

M E
LL

A L

OOP

S W
GR

IEN
T JE

S L
N

S W
Q U

ILC
E NE LN

SW EAGLE VISTA AVE

SW T ALON L O OP

RITZ BEE PL

COYOTE WAY

NW CALI S TA
CT

CH EL EEK DR

AR
EN

A D
R

BEECH LN

PA TR IO T W AY

SW
 Q

UIN
CE

 ST

NW 12TH L OOP

NW
 CA

PT
AIN

 CT

NW
R O

EDER DR

NW KITSAP T ER

SW PERIWINKLE LN

SE
 FI

SH
ER

 CT

SW
 WINDSOR ST

CYPRESS LN

SW 20TH CT

WICHERS LN

NW BOSUN ST

SW BAY S HORE DR

DOGWOOD LN

SW
 UP

LA
ND

 CT

SW HA R BOR VISTA CIR

SW MULBERRY PL

SW
NA

V IG
AT

O R
L O

OP

LIMESTONE LN

NW
 PR

OW
 ST

NW LOF TON LOOP

THRUSH LN

SLATE DR

M

O UNT ERIE LN

NE
 M

ER
CE

R P
L

R E BECCA LN

S W ECHO L OOP

TULIP LN

NW
 AT

AL
AN

TA
 W

AY

CAREFREE PL

SW KIT
TIT

A S
CT

W ALKER HEIGH TS PL

HEATHER ST

N W
QU

AR

TERDECK LOOP

NE
 M

UL
LE

R S
T

HA
LL

EL
UJ

AH
 W

AY

SW 29TH PL

SE 10TH CT

MT HOOD WAY

SW
 IS

LA
ND

ER
 LN

SW HARRIER ST

FAIRVUE PL

SW DAWNVIEW TER

MU
LL

IG
AN

 W
AY

BERNARD WAY

HO
RS

ES
HO

E R
D

NE
 NA

SH
 TE

R

SW FRANKLIN CT

NW 7TH PL

CO
AC

HM
AN

 LN

SW 12TH CT
NE

 NE
TL

AM
 LN

NW
 QU

ES
T S

T

NE
 M

EE
TE

R L
N

JUNIPER CT

SW 14TH CT

SW 2ND AVE

SW 4TH AVE

NE 4TH AVE

SW 8TH AVE

NE 8TH AVE

SW 6TH AVESW 6TH AVE

NE 6TH AVE

NE 4TH AVE

GUN CL UB RD

SE 4TH AVE

SW 10TH AVE

NW COLUMBIA DR

µ
0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000500

Feet

Legend
Noise Subdistricts
Accident Potential Subdistrict I
Accident Potential Subdistrict II
Accident Potential Subdistrict III
Naval Air Station Land

Zone Districts
C-1
C-3
C-4
C-5
CBD
CBD-1
CBD-2
I
OS
PBP
PF
PIP
R-1
R-2
R-3
R-4
R-O
Contract Zoning
Planned Residential Development
Oak Harbor City Limits
Oak Harbor Urban Growth Area
Joint Planning Area
Central Business District

k Conditional Uses

Oak Harbor City NAS Whidbey Island

Disclaimer:
Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee
of the City  of Oak Harbor warrants the accuracy, reliability or
timeliness of any information contained on mapping products
orginating from the City of Oak Harbor and shall not be held liable
for any losses caused by such reliance on the accuracy, relability or
timeliness of such information.  Any person or entity who relies on
any information obtained does so at his or her own risk.

We hereby certify that this map constitutes the Official Zoning Map
as approved by ordinance #_____ of the Oak Harbor City Council.

Dated this _______ day of ________, 2015

By _______________________________________, Mayor

Attest ____________________________________, City Clerk

Official Zoning Map

121



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-18: Island County 
Hazard Mitigation Plan

FROM: Ray Merrill, Chief of Fire

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution 15-18, Island County Hazard Mitigation Plan

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Beginning in July 2014 and continuing into May 2015 an Island County Joint Task Force updated the 
existing Hazard Mitigation Plan.  The City of Oak Harbor was an active member of that task force.  In 
order to be complaint with FEMA regulations, the existing Hazard Mitigation Plan was reviewed, 
reworked, and improved.  This plan identifies natural, as well as man-made disasters.  The purpose of the 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. CA 6.e
Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-18: Island County 
Hazard Mitigation Plan

FROM: Ray Merrill, Chief of Fire

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution 15-18, Island County Hazard Mitigation Plan

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Beginning in July 2014 and continuing into May 2015 an Island County Joint Task Force updated the 
existing Hazard Mitigation Plan.  The City of Oak Harbor was an active member of that task force.  In 
order to be complaint with FEMA regulations, the existing Hazard Mitigation Plan was reviewed, 
reworked, and improved.  This plan identifies natural, as well as man-made disasters.  The purpose of the reworked, and improved.  This plan identifies natural, as well as man-made disasters.  The purpose of the 
plan is to identify and prepare for actions before, during and after an incident.  Each planning partner 
identified areas within their respective jurisdictions and methods by which to mitigate disasters.  The plan
has been available for public review, and was submitted to FEMA for approval.  FEMA did approve the 
Island County Hazard Mitigation Plan on May 11, 2015.    

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
There are no fiscal impacts

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 15-18
2. FEMA Approval Letter

reworked, and improved.  This plan identifies natural, as well as man-made disasters.  The purpose of the 
plan is to identify and prepare for actions before, during and after an incident.  Each planning partner 
identified areas within their respective jurisdictions and methods by which to mitigate disasters.  The plan 
has been available for public review, and was submitted to FEMA for approval.  FEMA did approve the 
Island County Hazard Mitigation Plan on May 11, 2015.    

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
There are no fiscal impacts

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 15-18
2. FEMA Approval Letter

122

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=abce56620a35eed30d56f8b7a4c9e82b&aName=1432318691_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=abce56620a35eed30d56f8b7a4c9e82b&aName=1432318858_at.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 15-18 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF THE ISLAND COUNTY MULTI-

JURISDICTION HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

WHEREAS, all of Island County has exposure to natural hazards that increase the risk to life, property, environment and 

the County’s economy; and 

WHEREAS; pro-active mitigation of known hazards before a disaster event can reduce or eliminate long-term risk to life 

and property; and 

WHEREAS, The Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (Public Law 106-390) established requirements for pre and post 

disaster hazard mitigation programs requiring that “local and tribal government applicants for sub-grants must have an 

approved local mitigation plan in accordance with 44 CFR 201.6 prior to receipt of a Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 

sub-grant funding.”  The purpose of such local mitigation plan is to represent the Multi-Jurisdcition’s commitment to 

reduce risks from natural and man-made hazards; and 

WHEREAS,  pursuant to 44 CFR 201.6, a coalition of Island County stakeholders with like planning objectives was 

formed to pool resources and create consistent mitigation strategies to be implemented within each partner’s identified 

capabilities within the  Island County Planning Area; and 

WHEREAS, the coalition has completed a planning process that engages the public, assesses the risk and vulnerability to 

the impacts of natural hazards, develops a mitigation strategy consistent with a set of uniform goals and objectives, and 

creates a plan for implementing, evaluating and revising this strategy; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 44 CFR 201.6, the Island County Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan has been 

reviewed and found to meet the regulatory criteria, and following adoption by participating jurisdictions, will be 

approved by FEMA, making all adopting jurisdictions eligible for mitigation project grants. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby resolved by the  City Council of Oak Harbor Washington that: 

The Island County Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan is hereby adopted in its entirety, including the City of Oak 

Harbor’s Jurisdictional Annex, which represents each planning partner’s commitment to reduce risks from natural and 

man-made hazards; and. 

Passed by the City Coucil this 2
nd

 day of June, 2015 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

___________________________ 

Scott Dudley, Mayor 

123



 

 

 

ATTEST:    

 

 

Anna Thompson        

City Clerk  

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

Nikki Esparza      

City Attorney 

         

124



125



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Ordinance 1720: Amendment to 
Site Plan Review Procedures 
Code (OHMC 19.48)

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
 Conduct public hearing
 Approve Ordinance No. 1720

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This staff report presents a draft ordinance that amends portions of Oak Harbor Municipal Code 
(OHMC) Chapter 19.48, Site Plan Review Procedures, to allow for an alternative sequence of issuing 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.a

Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Ordinance 1720: Amendment to 
Site Plan Review Procedures 
Code (OHMC 19.48)

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
 Conduct public hearing
 Approve Ordinance No. 1720

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This staff report presents a draft ordinance that amends portions of Oak Harbor Municipal Code 
(OHMC) Chapter 19.48, Site Plan Review Procedures, to allow for an alternative sequence of issuing(OHMC) Chapter 19.48, Site Plan Review Procedures, to allow for an alternative sequence of issuing 
development permits.

OHMC Chapter 19.48, Site Plan Review Procedures, establishes the process necessary for the review
and approval of site plans.  Approval of the site plan is a key step in the overall approval of a project, be 
it a public or private project. Certain portions of the code (namely Sections 19.48.039 and 19.48.110) 
dictate the sequence by which permits that are related to the site plan must either be applied for or 
approved.  Specifically, the current code requires that a site plan be approved, and the appeal period be 
completed, before any other permits may be issued.  This permitting sequence works very well for the 
traditional method by which a project is delivered.  This method is typically known as design-permit-bid
build, in that the project is first completely designed and permitted, then advertised for contractors to bid 
on it, and then it is built.

As the City Council is well aware, the City is in the process of designing and constructing a new 
wastewater treatment plant (WWTP).  The WWTP is being designed and built using what is known as an
alternative delivery method or an alternative contracting procedure.[1]  Specifically, the process is known
as general contractor/construction manager (or GC/CM).  One of the primary reasons for choosing this 
construction methodology is to take advantage of its efficiencies and possible cost savings that may result
from a non-traditional approach to the design and construction sequence. 

One of the ways the GC/CM process achieves efficiencies (and potential cost savings or cost 

(OHMC) Chapter 19.48, Site Plan Review Procedures, to allow for an alternative sequence of issuing 
development permits.

OHMC Chapter 19.48, Site Plan Review Procedures, establishes the process necessary for the review 
and approval of site plans.  Approval of the site plan is a key step in the overall approval of a project, be 
it a public or private project. Certain portions of the code (namely Sections 19.48.039 and 19.48.110) 
dictate the sequence by which permits that are related to the site plan must either be applied for or 
approved.  Specifically, the current code requires that a site plan be approved, and the appeal period be 
completed, before any other permits may be issued.  This permitting sequence works very well for the 
traditional method by which a project is delivered.  This method is typically known as design-permit-bid-
build, in that the project is first completely designed and permitted, then advertised for contractors to bid 
on it, and then it is built.

As the City Council is well aware, the City is in the process of designing and constructing a new 
wastewater treatment plant (WWTP).  The WWTP is being designed and built using what is known as an 
alternative delivery method or an alternative contracting procedure.[1]  Specifically, the process is known 
as general contractor/construction manager (or GC/CM).  One of the primary reasons for choosing this 
construction methodology is to take advantage of its efficiencies and possible cost savings that may result 
from a non-traditional approach to the design and construction sequence. 

One of the ways the GC/CM process achieves efficiencies (and potential cost savings or cost 

126



containment) is by initiating certain portions of a construction project before other portions have been 
completely designed.  For example, in the WWTP project this means starting the site grading/excavation
process before the design is complete for the treatment buildings.  Starting the grading and excavation 
early allows the City to better understand possible issues related to geotechnical conditions or cultural 
resource.  The City’s existing permit issuance sequence does not align well with this approach because a
grading permit cannot be issued until the site plan is approved and a site plan cannot be approved until 
sufficient detail is available on a variety of other items (building appearance, landscape treatment, etc.).  It
is therefore desirable to amend OHMC Sections 19.48.039 and 19.48.110 in order that the permit 
issuance process may align with the desired construction sequence for the WWTP and with past City 
Council action regarding its construction.  Draft Ordinance No. 1720 (Attachment 1) incorporates the 
necessary amendments to the site plan review procedures code.

It is important to note that while the proposed code amendment allows for a different permit sequencing, 
it does not relieve the City of the responsibility to obtain all necessary City permits.  All code conditions 
required for the issuance of any particular permit must also be met.

[1]The City Council authorized the use of an alternative contracting procedure for construction of the new
wastewater treatment plant through the adoption of Resolution No. 13-32 in 2013.  Staff notes that 
Ordinance No. 1682 also adopted in 2013 amended the City’s public works bidding procedures to 
specifically allow the use of an alternative contracting procedure.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

containment) is by initiating certain portions of a construction project before other portions have been 
completely designed.  For example, in the WWTP project this means starting the site grading/excavation 
process before the design is complete for the treatment buildings.  Starting the grading and excavation 
early allows the City to better understand possible issues related to geotechnical conditions or cultural 
resource.  The City’s existing permit issuance sequence does not align well with this approach because a 
grading permit cannot be issued until the site plan is approved and a site plan cannot be approved until 
sufficient detail is available on a variety of other items (building appearance, landscape treatment, etc.).  It 
is therefore desirable to amend OHMC Sections 19.48.039 and 19.48.110 in order that the permit 
issuance process may align with the desired construction sequence for the WWTP and with past City 
Council action regarding its construction.  Draft Ordinance No. 1720 (Attachment 1) incorporates the 
necessary amendments to the site plan review procedures code.

It is important to note that while the proposed code amendment allows for a different permit sequencing, 
it does not relieve the City of the responsibility to obtain all necessary City permits.  All code conditions 
required for the issuance of any particular permit must also be met.

[1]The City Council authorized the use of an alternative contracting procedure for construction of the new 
wastewater treatment plant through the adoption of Resolution No. 13-32 in 2013.  Staff notes that 
Ordinance No. 1682 also adopted in 2013 amended the City’s public works bidding procedures to 
specifically allow the use of an alternative contracting procedure.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
May 27, 2015 - Ordinance 1720 was presented at the workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance 1720

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
May 27, 2015 - Ordinance 1720 was presented at the workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance 1720

127

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=abce56620a35eed30d56f8b7a4c9e82b&aName=1432161311_at.pdf


Amendments to OHMC 19.48.039 & 19.48.110 

Page 1 of 5 

ORDINANCE NO. 1720 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 19.48.039, 

TIMING OF CERTAIN ACTIONS IN SITE PLAN APPROVAL, REVIEWED 

DEVELOPMENT; AND SECTION 19.48.110, TIMING OF DEVELOPMENT PERMITS, TO 

ALLOW FOR AN ALTERNATIVE PERMIT ISSUANCE SEQUENCE TO MATCH THE 

ALTERNATIVE CONSTRACTING PROCEDURES AUTHORIZED UNDER SECTION 

2.330.010. 

WHEREAS, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 1682 in 2013 the Oak Harbor City Council 

revised the City’s public works bidding procedures found in Oak Harbor Municipal Code 

Section 2.330.010 to allow the use of the alternative contracting procedures set forth in Chapter 

39.10 RCW; and 

WHEREAS, through the adoption of Resolution No. 13-32 in 2013 the City Council authorized 

the use of the alternative contracting procedures, also known as GC/CM, for construction of the 

new wastewater treatment plant; and  

WHEREAS, one of the primary reasons for choosing this construction methodology is to take 

advantage of its efficiencies and possible cost savings that may result from a non-traditional 

approach to the design and construction sequence; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s existing permit issuance sequence as required by the site plan review 

procedures contained in OHMC 19.48 does not align with the permit sequencing required in 

order to take full advantage of the GC/CM process; and  

WHEREAS, it is desirable to amend certain OHMC Sections 19.48.039 and 19.48.110 in order 

that the permit issuance process may align with past City Council action regarding the 

construction of the wastewater treatment plant; and 

WHEREAS, the Oak Harbor Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on May 26, 

2015, said hearing being duly noticed as required, and at its conclusion recommended approval 

of the proposed code amendment; and  

WHEREAS, the Oak Harbor City Council was briefed on the proposed code at its May 27, 2015 

workshop, a publicly advertised meeting; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on June 2, 2015, said hearing being 

duly noticed as required; and  

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

Section One.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 19.48.039, last amended by Section 22 of 

Ordinance 1522 in 2009, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

19.48.039 Timing of certain actions in site plan approval, reviewed development. 

128



Amendments to OHMC 19.48.039 & 19.48.110 

Page 2 of 5 

Unless specifically excepted by other ordinances, generally, the development plan approval 

process requires the following items be provided at the times specified in the tables below.  

Provided, however, nothing contained in this section shall be construed as limiting the city from 

issuing development permits as may be required by this code in a different sequence than 

required by this section, when use of the alternative contracting procedures set forth in Chapter 

39.10 RCW is authorized by resolution of the city council.  The sequence of development 

permits shall be determined by the director as necessary to meet the requirements of the project.  

Use of the alternative contracting procedures and alternative permit sequence does not relieve the 

city from the responsibility to obtain all necessary development permits.   

(1) Permits to apply for before or with the site plan application: 

Permit When Permit 

Application 

Must Be Made 

Limited clearing permit. 

(Only applicable when a 

SEPA application is not 

required). 

Before site plan 

application. 

Grading permit. With site plan 

application. 

Clearing permit. With site plan 

application. 

SEPA checklist. With or before 

site plan 

application. 

Concurrency application. With or before 

site plan 

application. 

(2) Actions that need to be taken, fees that need to be paid and plans that need to be submitted 

before the building permit will issue. All items can be provided concurrent with site plan 

application: 

Action Actions That Need to 

Be Taken Before the 

Building Permit Will 

Be Issued 

Impact fees for park 

and transportation. 

Fee to be paid before 

building permit will 

issue. 

System development 

charges for water 

and sewer. 

Fee to be paid before 

building permit will 

issue. 

129

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=39.10


 

 

Amendments to OHMC 19.48.039 & 19.48.110 

Page 3 of 5 

Action Actions That Need to 

Be Taken Before the 

Building Permit Will 

Be Issued 

Latecomer’s 

agreement. 

Fee to be paid and 

agreement filed, before 

building permit will 

issue 

Engineering plan. Approved before 

building permit will 

issue. 

Landscape plan. Approved before 

building permit will 

issue. 

Installation of 

streets. 

Before building permit 

will issue or when 

bonded for as provided 

in Chapter 19.90 

OHMC. 

Installation of public 

water utility 

improvements. 

Before building permit 

will issue or when 

bonded for as provided 

in Chapter 19.90 

OHMC. 

Installation of public 

sewer 

improvements. 

Before building permit 

will issue or when 

bonded for as provided 

in Chapter 19.90 

OHMC. 

Installation of 

surface water 

management 

facilities. 

Before building permit 

will issue or when 

bonded for as provided 

in OHMC 12.30.535. 

 

(3) Connections and installations to be made before an occupancy permit will be issued or the 

use will be approved: 

Connections and 

Installations 

Timing 

Installation of private 

sewer improvements 

(as defined in OHMC 

14.03.060) outside of 

Before occupancy 

permit will issue or 

use is approved. 

130



 

 

Amendments to OHMC 19.48.039 & 19.48.110 

Page 4 of 5 

Connections and 

Installations 

Timing 

building. 

Connection to an 

approved water supply. 

Before occupancy 

permit will issue or 

use is approved. 

Connection to the 

sewer system. 

Before occupancy 

permit will issue or 

use is approved. 

Installation of 

landscaping and 

sprinkler system. 

Before occupancy 

permit will issue or 

use is approved or 

when bonded for as 

provided in OHMC 

19.46.090. 

 

Section Two.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 19.48.110, last amended by Section 22 of 

Ordinance 1522 in 2009 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

19.48.110 Timing of development permits. 

Development permits may be processed simultaneously with the site plan review. Development 

permits shall not be issued until the appeal period for an approved site plan has expired. 

Provided, however, nothing contained in this section shall be construed as limiting the city from 

issuing development permits as may be required by this code in a different sequence than 

required by this section, when use of the alternative contracting procedures set forth in Chapter 

39.10 RCW is authorized by resolution of the city council.  The sequence of development 

permits shall be determined by the director as necessary to meet the requirements of the project.  

Use of the alternative contracting procedures and alternative permit sequence does not relieve the 

city from the responsibility to obtain all necessary development permits.   

 

Section Three.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person 

or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the 

provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

 

Section Four.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force (5) five days following 

publication. 

 

 

PASSED by the City Council this 2nd day of June, 2015. 

  

131

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=39.10


Amendments to OHMC 19.48.039 & 19.48.110 

Page 5 of 5 

(    )  APPROVED by its Mayor this _____ day of _______________, 2015. 

(    )  Vetoed 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

_______________________________ 

SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

________________________ _______________________________ 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk  Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

Published: _______________ 

132



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1733: Sign Code 
Amendment - Banner Program

FROM: Steve Powers, Director of Development Services

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1733

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents a draft ordinance to the City Council that if adopted will amend the sign code 
(Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 19.36) by creating a civic event and recognition sign (banner) 
program.

The City has been approached by representatives of the Blue Star Banner program, a state wide program

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.b
Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1733: Sign Code 
Amendment - Banner Program

FROM: Steve Powers, Director of Development Services

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1733

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents a draft ordinance to the City Council that if adopted will amend the sign code 
(Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 19.36) by creating a civic event and recognition sign (banner) 
program.

The City has been approached by representatives of the Blue Star Banner program, a state wide programThe City has been approached by representatives of the Blue Star Banner program, a state wide program
that honors members of the armed services, who wish to place their commemorative banners in the 
community on utility or light poles.  The existing sign code does not currently allow private party banners 
and signs to be placed on utility and light poles within the City.  In order to permit this activity a new 
signage program must be created.  If such a code amendment is undertaken, it makes sense to draft new
regulations that would not only allow for this type of signage but also for that related to other civic event
or recognition programs. 

In the interest of time, staff proposes to utilize the interim zoning ordinance adoption procedures 
contained in RCW 36.70A.390.  These procedures allow for immediate adoption by the Council, subject
to a subsequent public hearing within 60 days, and a referral of the matter to the Planning Commission for 
consideration of the permanent regulations.  Draft Ordinance No. 1733 (Attachment 1) amends the sign
code regulations as required for the banner program and sets out the necessary steps in the interim zoning
ordinance process.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A

Appropriation Source: N/A

The City has been approached by representatives of the Blue Star Banner program, a state wide program 
that honors members of the armed services, who wish to place their commemorative banners in the 
community on utility or light poles.  The existing sign code does not currently allow private party banners 
and signs to be placed on utility and light poles within the City.  In order to permit this activity a new 
signage program must be created.  If such a code amendment is undertaken, it makes sense to draft new 
regulations that would not only allow for this type of signage but also for that related to other civic event 
or recognition programs. 

In the interest of time, staff proposes to utilize the interim zoning ordinance adoption procedures 
contained in RCW 36.70A.390.  These procedures allow for immediate adoption by the Council, subject 
to a subsequent public hearing within 60 days, and a referral of the matter to the Planning Commission for 
consideration of the permanent regulations.  Draft Ordinance No. 1733 (Attachment 1) amends the sign 
code regulations as required for the banner program and sets out the necessary steps in the interim zoning 
ordinance process.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A

Appropriation Source: N/A

133



Appropriation Source: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was discussed with the City Council at their May 27, 2015 workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1733

Appropriation Source: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was discussed with the City Council at their May 27, 2015 workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1733

134

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=abce56620a35eed30d56f8b7a4c9e82b&aName=1432330448_at.pdf


Sign Code Amendment – Banner Program 

Ordinance No. 1733 

Page 1 of 8 

ORDINANCE NO. 1733 

AN INTERIM ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON ESTABLISHNG AN IN-

TERIM ZONING ORDINANCE BY AMENDING OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 19.36, 

SIGN CODE, ALLOWING FOR THE DISPLAY OF CERTAIN CIVIC-RELATED BANNERS ON LIGHT 

AND UTILITY POLES; PROVIDING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING; REFERRING THE MATTER TO THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION FOR REVIEW; ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING 

THAT THE INTERIM ZONING ORDINANCE, UNLESS EXTENDED, WILL SUNSET WITHIN SIX (6) 

MONTHS OF THE DATE OF ADOPTION. 

WHEREAS, the City desires to implement a new sign program that promotes the public interest and; 

WHEREAS, the City desires to recognize the service and sacrifice of community members in the armed ser-

vices and; 

WHEREAS, the City code does not currently allow banners and signs to be placed on utility and light poles 

within the City and; 

WHEREAS, the new signage program allows for the display of banners for non-profit community festivals 

and/or events, or commemorative signage for the members of the armed services, or other similar uses; and 

WHEREAS, the City has been approached by representatives of the Blue Star Banner program, a state wide 

program that honors members of the armed services, who wish to place their commemorative banners in the 

community in the very near future; and  

WHEREAS, in order to capitalize on current community interest in and momentum for the program, the City 

Council deems it appropriate to adopt the proposed revisions to the sign code as interim regulations; and 

WHEREAS, in adopting the interim regulations the City intends to follow the provisions of RCW 36.70A.390; 

and  

WHEREAS, a public hearing will be held on June 16, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. before Oak Harbor City Council; 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, do ordain as follows: 

Section One. Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 19.36.020, Definitions, last amended by Section 1 of Ordi-

nance 1474 in 2014; is hereby amended to read as follows: 

135



Sign Code Amendment – Banner Program 

Ordinance No. 1733 

Page 2 of 8 
 

19.36.020 Definitions.  

 (1)  “Abandoned sign” means a sign which no longer identifies or advertises a bona fide business, lessor, 

service, owner, product, or activity, and/or for which no legal owner can be found. 

 

(2)  “Animation” means the use of movement or some element thereof, to depict action or create a special 

effect or scene. 

 

(3)  “Area or surface area of sign” means the greatest area of a sign on which copy or artwork can be placed 

and not just the portion of which is covered by letters or symbols, enclosed within not more than three 

circles, rectangles or squares, or any combination of these forms which produces the smallest area. Sign 

structure, architectural embellishments, framework and decorative features which contain no written or 

advertising copy and are not internally lighted shall not be included. 

 

(4)  “Architectural blade” means a projecting sign with no exposed legs or braces, designed to look as 

though it could have been part of the building structure rather than something suspended from the build-

ing. 

 

(5)  “Banner” means a flexible material (i.e., cloth, paper, vinyl, etc.) on which a sign is painted or printed. 

This does not include banners under the Blue Star Banner program defined in (6). 

 

(6)  “Banner, Blue Star” is a banner sign installed as part of a program that recognizes local military service 

members with the individual’s name, their branch of service and sponsor. 

(67)  “Billboard” means outdoor advertising signs containing a message, commercial or otherwise, unrelated 

to any use or activity on the property on which the sign is located, but not including directional signs as 

defined herein. 

(78)  “Building line” means a line established by ordinance defining the limits of buildings in relation to 

streets. A building line in some instances may coincide with the property line. “Building line” is some-

times referred to as “required setback line.” 

(89)  “Building-mounted sign” means a single- or multiple-faced sign attached to the face of a building or 

marquee. 

(910)  “Campaign sign” means a sign which exclusively and solely advertises a candidate or candidate’s public 

elective office, a political party, or promotes a position on a ballot issue. 

(1011)  “Canopy” means a freestanding structure affording protection from the elements to persons or property 

thereunder. 

(1112)  “Canopy sign” means any sign erected upon, against or directly above a canopy. 

(1213)  “Commercial sign” means a sign containing expression related to the economic interests of the advertis-

er and its audience or a sign proposing a commercial transaction. 

136



Sign Code Amendment – Banner Program 

Ordinance No. 1733 

Page 3 of 8 
 

(1314)  “Construction sign” means an information sign which identifies the architect, engineers, contractors and 

other individuals or firms involved with the construction of a building, or announcing the character of 

the building or enterprise, which is erected during the building construction period. 

(1415)  “Electronic message center” means a sign capable of displaying words, symbols, graphics, images, or 

video that can be electronically or mechanically changed by remote or automatic means. An electronic 

message center is considered a primary sign and may be either freestanding or building-mounted. For 

the purposes of this chapter, electronic message center signs do not include gasoline price signs. 

(1516)  “Flashing” means pattern of changing light illumination where the sign illumination alternates suddenly 

between fully illuminated and fully non-illuminated for the purpose of drawing attention to the sign. 

Flashing is not permitted in any zoning district. 

(1617)  “Frame effect” means a visual effect on an electronic message center applied to a single frame to transi-

tion from one message to the next. Such usage must comply with the 2-1-2 provision. 

(1718)  “Freestanding sign” means a single- or multiple-faced sign supported from the ground by one or more 

columns, uprights or braces. Freestanding signs include monument, pylon and pole signs. 

(1819)  “Gasoline price signs” means any sign displaying the price of gasoline or other fuel at a gasoline or ser-

vice station by electronic or mechanical means. 

(1920)  “General promotions” means events which occur on a regular basis in retail business for the purpose of 

boosting sales, attracting new business, selling of certain items (i.e., year-end, seasonal sales, civic 

events, etc.). 

(2021)  “Grade” means the elevation or level of the street closest to the sign to which reference is made, as 

measured at the street’s centerline, or the relative ground level in the immediate vicinity of the sign. 

(2122)  “Grand openings and anniversaries” means events that are held on a once-per-year basis for the purpose 

of advertising grand openings, ownership changes, or anniversaries. 

(2223)  “Height” or “height of sign” means the vertical distance from the grade to the highest point of a sign or 

any vertical projection thereof, including its supporting columns, or the vertical distance from the rela-

tive ground level in the immediate vicinity of the sign. 

(2324)  “Incidental sign” means a single- or double-faced sign not exceeding four square feet in surface area of 

a noncommercial nature, intended primarily for the convenience of the public. Included are signs desig-

nating restrooms, address numbers, hours of operation, public telephone, etc. Also included are signs de-

signed to guide pedestrian or vehicular traffic to an area or place on the premises of a business, building 

or development. Also included are building directories with the letters not to exceed four inches in 

height. (See OHMC 19.36.100) 

(2425)  “Marquee” means a covering structure projecting horizontally from and attached to a building, affording 

protection from the elements to persons or property thereunder. 

137



Sign Code Amendment – Banner Program 

Ordinance No. 1733 

Page 4 of 8 
 

(26)  “Civic event or recognition sign program” means the adopted operational and design standards for a 

signage program located along Pioneer Way, Bayshore Drive, Midway Boulevard or State Route 20 

(See OHMC 19.36.105). 

(2527)  “Monument sign” means a primary freestanding sign, generally mounted on a solid base. Monument 

signs shall not contain or include reader boards. 

(2628)  “Multiple-occupancy building” means a single structure housing more than one type of retail business 

office or commercial venture. 

(2729)  “Multiple-occupancy complex” means a group of structures housing more than one type of retail busi-

ness, office or commercial venture and generally under one ownership and control. 

(2830)  “Nit” means a luminance unit equal to one candle per square meter measured perpendicular to the rays 

from the source. 

(2931)  “Noncommercial public service sign” means noncommercial signs devoted to religious, charitable, cul-

tural, governmental or educational messages, including, but not limited to, the advertising of events 

sponsored by a governmental agency, a school, church, civic or fraternal organization or other organiza-

tions engaged in activities for profit. 

(3032) “Occupant” means the person, firm or corporation that occupies the land or building. 

(3133) “Office building” means an office building in the commercial and residential-office land use districts as 

defined by the Oak Harbor zoning ordinance. 

(3234)  “Parapet” means that portion of a building wall which extends above the roof of the building. 

(3335) “Penthouse” means a structure on top of a building roof such as houses an elevator shaft or similar 

form. 

(3436) “Pole sign” means a primary freestanding sign where the sign is supported by a pole or other similar 

structural element that is substantially narrower than the width of the sign. 

(3537) “Political free speech sign” means a sign which promotes a position on a public or social issue.  

(3638) “Primary sign or signs” means all signs, including freestanding signs, of a user which are not exempt 

(see OHMC 19.36.100), or which do not come within the category of incidental signs (see OHMC 

19.36.030 and subsection (2324) of this section) or temporary or special signs (see 19.36.080). The term 

“primary sign” is intended to include virtually all signs of a commercial nature. 

(3739) “Property line” means the line denoting the limits of legal ownership of property. 

(3840) “Pylon sign” means a primary freestanding sign other than a pole sign with the appearance of a solid 

base. The base of a pylon sign shall be distinctive in appearance from the sign area. 

138



Sign Code Amendment – Banner Program 

Ordinance No. 1733 

Page 5 of 8 
 

(3941) “Public service information” means amber alerts or information about community events. 

(4042) “Reader board” means a sign or part of a sign on which the letters are readily replaceable such that the 

copy can be changed from time to time at will. 

(4143) “Right-of-way” means either a publicly owned fee, an easement or privilege to traverse over land. A 

right-of-way is for public travel. Rights-of-way may be opened or unopened, and when open usually 

contain street improvements. 

(4244) “Roof sign” means any sign erected upon, against or directly above a roof or on top of or above the par-

apet of a building, including a sign affixed to any structure erected upon a roof, including a structure 

housing building equipment. 

(4345) “Sign” means any letters, figures, design, symbol, trademark or device intended to attract attention to 

any activity, service, place, subject, person, firm, corporation, public performance, article, machine or 

merchandise whatsoever. Sources of light used primarily to illuminate a sign, or a building, or ground 

surrounding the building, shall not be considered signs themselves; provided, however, that sources of 

light used primarily to attract attention to the light itself or as a decorative feature of the display shall be 

considered as part of the sign. Lighted canopies, with the exception of the signed portion, shall not be 

considered signs themselves. Excluded from the definition are official traffic signs or signals, sheriff’s 

notices, court notices or official public notices and the flag of a government or noncommercial institu-

tion, and signs not visible from the street or sidewalk (see OHMC 19.36.100 for more detailed treatment 

of exempt signs), and religious symbols. 

(44 46) “Single-occupancy building” means a commercial building or structure with one major enterprise, gen-

erally under one ownership. A building is classified as single-occupancy only if: 

(a)  It has only one occupant; 

(b)  It has no wall in common with another building; 

(c)  No part of its roof in common with another building. 

(4547) Special Signs. See “Temporary and Special Signs.” 

(4648) “Special projection sign” means a sign no larger than six square feet projecting out from the side of a 

building. 

(4749) “Street” means any automobile thoroughfare so designated by city ordinance. “Street” includes portions 

thereof used for parking. 

(4850) “Subdivision signs” means signs used to identify a land development which is to be or was accom-

plished at essentially one time. 

(4951) Surface Area. See “Area or surface area of sign.” 

139



Sign Code Amendment – Banner Program 

Ordinance No. 1733 

Page 6 of 8 
 

(5052) “Surface area of facade” means the area of that front, side or back elevation, including doors and win-

dows, but excluding any roof area and structures or elevators or air conditioning equipment thereon; 

provided, that in the case of a roof sign, the surface area of facade shall be the area of that front, side or 

back immediately beneath the roof, including doors and windows, but excluding the roof area and struc-

tures for elevators or air conditioning thereon. 

(5153) Temporary and Special Signs. “Temporary and special signs” are those which are not defined as “prima-

ry signs” or “incidental signs” by this chapter. Different types of temporary and special signs include, 

but are not limited to, construction signs, grand opening displays, real estate signs, open house signs, 

residential land subdivision signs, subdivision directional signs, A-frame signs, political signs, and cam-

paign signs (see OHMC 19.36.080). 

(5254) Transition. “Transition” means the time interval between display changes of graphics, text, messages, or 

images on electronic message center signs. 

(5355) Transitory Signs. Transitory signs, also known as “human signs,” are those carried by or worn by a hu-

man being usually for the purposes of a protest, demonstration, rally, or other similar event. 

(5456) “Video” means the use of live action footage shot with a video camera or similar device which is sized 

to fit and be displayed by an electronic message center or similar device.  

(5557) “Way open to public” means any paved or unpaved area on private property open to the general public 

for driving or parking. 

(5658) “Window sign” means all signs located inside and affixed to or within three feet of windows of a build-

ing, whether temporary or permanent, except lighted signs of a commercial advertisement nature which 

may be viewed from the exterior of the building. The term does not include merchandise located within 

three feet of a window. Lighted window signs shall be included in determining the number of primary 

signs and in determining the permissible sign area for each facade. Does not include incidental signs. 

Section Two. Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 19.36.080, Temporary and special signs, last amended by 

Section 4 of Ordinance 1640 in 2012, is hereby amended and to read as follows: 

 (4)  Regulations for Temporary Signs on Public Property. Temporary signs on public property are subject to 

the following restrictions. These restrictions are presumed to meet the principles outlined in subsection 

(3) of this section. 

(a)  Public Rights-of-Way. Public rights-of-way are considered to be traditional public forums by the 

city, places which have been historically devoted to assembly, debate, and free speech activities. 

This does not include utility or light poles within the City which are subject to the restrictions in 

(e) of this subsection. However, for reasons of public safety, temporary signs are subject to the 

time, manner, and place restrictions below. 

…  

140



Sign Code Amendment – Banner Program 

Ordinance No. 1733 

Page 7 of 8 
 

(e)  Utility/light poles. OHMC 19.36.120 “Prohibited Signs” shall generally apply to all utility and 

light poles located within the City whether owned by the City or another public entity. Exemp-

tions listed in OHMC 19.36.105 “Civic event or recognition sign program” shall not convert util-

ity or light poles into traditional public forums. 

Section Three.  There is hereby added a new Section 19.36.105, Civic event or recognition sign program, to the 

Oak Harbor Municipal Code and it shall read as follows: 

19.36.105 Civic event or recognition sign program.  The civic event or recongnition sign program establishes 

a uniform off-premises signage program for utility and light poles along Pioneer Way, Bayshore Drive, Midway 

Boulevard and State Route 20. The program is designed to notify drivers and pedestrians of civic or municipally 

sponsored events or commemorative signage for members of the armed services or other similar uses. The pro-

gram is not designed to promote or advertise any product or commodity, business, or political or religious mes-

sage. 

(1)  Application. Applications for signage permits allowed under this section shall be submitted upon forms 

provided by the director.  The application materials must clearly describe the message on the proposed 

banner or sign and must demonstrate compliance with all applicable standards.  

(2)  Standards. Signs and banners shall be subject to the following design standards: 

(a) Banners and signs shall conform to the standards set forth in the application. 

(b) The banner and sign sponsor shall be responsible for ensuring the banners are in good condition 

and properly maintained; the maintenance shall be at the sponsor’s expense. Except in the case of 

the Blue Star Banner Program where the sponsor is deemed to be the Blue Star Banner Program 

and not the individually named sponsors. 

(3) Approval.  Applications for sign permits under this Chapter shall be decided by the City Council. All 

applications shall be approved by the City Council if the use and/or message are deemed to further the 

public interest in conformance with this Chapter. Approval and availability of this program shall be on a 

first come-first served basis. 

 

Section Four. Section 19.36.110, Requirements applicable to all signs, last amended by Section 6 of Ordinance 

1553 in 2009; is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 (1) Design. Signs shall be designed using shapes, graphics, colors, materials, and lighting which are coordi-

nated, integrated into, and a natural extension of the design of the building development, or business 

identified or program specified under this chapter. Building-mounted signs shall be incorporated into the 

design of the building, and shall not be placed in locations which interrupt, detract from or change the 

architectural lines of the building. The provisions of this section shall not apply to signs lawfully con-

structed as of the effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter.  

141



Sign Code Amendment – Banner Program 

Ordinance No. 1733 

Page 8 of 8 

Section Five. Section 19.36.120, Prohibited signs, last amended by Section 7 of Ordinance 1553, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

 (5) Signs or displays of banners, clusters of flags, posters, pennants, ribbons, shimmering discs, streamers, 

strings of lights, spinners, twirlers or propellers, flashing, rotating or blinking lights, chasing or scintil-

lating lights, flares, balloons, bubble machines and similar devices of a carnival nature, or containing el-

ements creating sound or smell. Exception: Certain of these devices are permitted on a limited basis as 

seasonal decorations under OHMC 19.36.100(10), or for grand openings of new business under OHMC 

19.36.080(2)(d) and (2)(f) or under the civic event or recognition sign program under OHMC 19.36.105. 

Section Six.  This ordinance shall be referred to the Oak Harbor Planning Commission for its review and rec-

ommendation for potential inclusion in the zoning ordinances of the City of Oak Harbor. 

Section Seven.  Ordinance to be Transmitted to Department.  Pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106, a copy of this in-

terim ordinance shall be transmitted to the Washington State Department of Commerce. 

Section Eight.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect five days from and after its passage, approval 

and publication as required by law, PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that unless extended by the act of the Oak Har-

bor City Council, this ordinance shall automatically expire six (6) months following its adoption. 

PASSED by the City Council this 2
nd

 day of June 2015.

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

____________________________ 

Scott Dudley, Mayor 

Attest: 

_______________________________ 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk  

Approved as to Form: 

_______________________________ 

Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

Published: 

142



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-19: Adopting Oak 
Harbor City Street Light Pole 
Banner Policy

FROM: Nikki Esparza, City Attorney

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution No. 15-19 implementing Oak Harbor City Street Light Pole Banner Policy (Exhibit A).

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City was contacted by the Blue Star Banner program with a proposal to place banners honoring 
local service members on City light poles.   The banners would honor currently serving military members 
with ties to the Oak Harbor community.  The Blue Star Banner program's mission statement is as follows:

"The Blue Star Banner Program strengthens, supports and seeks to enhance patriotism throughout

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.c
Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-19: Adopting Oak 
Harbor City Street Light Pole 
Banner Policy

FROM: Nikki Esparza, City Attorney

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution No. 15-19 implementing Oak Harbor City Street Light Pole Banner Policy (Exhibit A).

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City was contacted by the Blue Star Banner program with a proposal to place banners honoring 
local service members on City light poles.   The banners would honor currently serving military members 
with ties to the Oak Harbor community.  The Blue Star Banner program's mission statement is as follows:

"The Blue Star Banner Program strengthens, supports and seeks to enhance patriotism throughout"The Blue Star Banner Program strengthens, supports and seeks to enhance patriotism throughout 
Washington."

Exhibit A provides the framework for implementation of the Blue Star Banner program. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented at the May 27, 2015 workshop. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 15-19
2. Oak Harbor City Street Light Pole Banner Policy

"The Blue Star Banner Program strengthens, supports and seeks to enhance patriotism throughout 
Washington."

Exhibit A provides the framework for implementation of the Blue Star Banner program. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented at the May 27, 2015 workshop. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 15-19
2. Oak Harbor City Street Light Pole Banner Policy

143

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=abce56620a35eed30d56f8b7a4c9e82b&aName=1432740402_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=abce56620a35eed30d56f8b7a4c9e82b&aName=1432740419_at.pdf


Street Light Pole Banner Policy Resolution 

Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-19 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE OAK HARBOR CITY STREET LIGHT 

POLE BANNER POLICY 

WHEREAS, the City desires to recognize the service and sacrifice of community 

members in the armed services; and 

WHEREAS, the City has been approached by representatives of the Blue Star Banner 

program, a state-wide program that honors members of the armed services, who wish to 

place their commemorative banners in the community in the very near future; and  

WHEREAS, in order to capitalize on current community interest in and momentum for 

the program, the City Council deems it appropriate to adopt the proposed policy to 

provide a framework for implementation of the Blue Star Banner program; and  

WHEREAS, similar policies have been implemented in other jurisdictions that participate 

in the Blue Star Banner program. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor 

that: 

1. The City Street Light Pole Banner Policy as contained in Exhibit A is hereby

adopted.

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this ______ day of 

________________, 2015. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

__________________________ 

SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to form: 

___________________________ _______________________________ 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk  Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2015\City Street Light Pole Banner Policy Res.docx 

144



Oak Harbor City Street Light 

Pole Banner Policy - 1 

Adopted by Resolution No. 15-19 – June 2, 2015 

 Oak Harbor City Street Light Pole Banner Policy 

1. Purpose.

1.1 The City Council has found that promotion of certain municipal and municipally 

sponsored events to be in the public interest. 

1.2 The City Council has also found and declared it to be in the public interest to 

allow and promote recognition of local armed services members. 

1.3 The purpose of this policy is to promote public recognition by allowing placement 

of the banners in conformance of the City Sign code. 

2. History.

2.1 The City received a request from the Blue Star Banner Program to install banners 

on utility and light poles along Pioneer Way within the City. The program is 

meant to recognize local armed services members. 

2.2 Blue Star banners are meant to honor local armed service members during the 

time of their service. Gold Star banners are meant to honor local armed service 

members who have given the ultimate sacrifice during their service. 

2.3 The City has determined that this program and programs that achieve similar 

objectives of recognition should be allowed within City code. 

2.4 The Blue Star Banner program has proposed to fabricate, install and maintain the 

banners without cost to the City. 

2.5 All other recognition programs will be reviewed for potential cost to the City. 

3. Procedures.

3.1 All participants must submit an application prepared by Development Services. 

3.2 All Banners and signs must conform to the descriptions within the application 

packet. 

3.3 Identification of Locations and City Approval.  The applicant shall meet with 

Development Services and Public Works staff to determine the best locations for 

the recognition banners.   

145



Oak Harbor City Street Light 

Pole Banner Policy - 2 

Adopted by Resolution No. 15-19 – June 2, 2015 

The applicant shall then prepare a Locational Map which depicts the specific sites 

that may be used for installation. 

3.4 Limitation on Number of Banners.  No more than 20 banners shall be displayed at 

one time. 

3.5 Limitation on Commercial Sponsorship.  Commercial businesses may not be 

listed on any Blue Star Banners or any other recognition banners as a sponsor. 

3.6 The City shall verify that any proposed utility or light pole is either owned by the 

City or the City has an agreement with the owner of the utility or light pole to 

utilize the pole for the purpose purposed by the applicant. 

3.7 Maintenance.  All signs shall be constructed with materials and workmanship of 

high quality to avoid problems of deterioration and maintenance which would 

give rise to unsightly and unsafe conditions. It is the responsibility of the 

applicant to maintain the signage in good repair and function at all times. The 

applicant shall remove or repair signage promptly when notified that a sign is torn 

or damaged. The City at its sole discretion may remove any banner signage that 

becomes a hazard without approval of the applicant.  Banner brackets must be 

designed to affix to City’s light poles without drilling or welding so as to maintain 

the structural integrity of the poles and to accommodate the type of banners 

proposed.  Brackets must be flexible enough to absorb the shock of a 90 mph 

wind event. 

3.8 Applicability.  Recognition banners shall honor Oak Harbor residents or the 

children of residents, graduates of Oak Harbor High School, and or/individuals 

who were born in Oak Harbor or resided within the City for a significant period of 

time. 

3.9 The Applicant must provide 24/7 emergency contact information. 

3.10 The City retains the right to require that Blue Star banners and related brackets be 

removed at no cost to the City.  

L:\LGLG\2015 Civil\City Street Light Pole Policy.docx 

146



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Prowler Memorial Proposal

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Director of Public Works

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the proposal to allow placement of the Prowler Memorial at the Marina lookout on E Pioneer
Way near Pasek Street.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On February 9, 2015, Phelps McIlvaine presented a proposal to the Park Board to place a granite 
memorial obelisk in a City park in memory of three members of VAQ-129 who were killed in an EA-6B
Prowler crash in 2013, including his nephew, Lt JG Will McIlvaine.  Mr. McIlvaine established a 501 C 
3 non profit called the Prowler Memorial Fund and donated $10,000 to the Fund to be applied to the 
cost of the memorial. 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 11.a
Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Prowler Memorial Proposal

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Director of Public Works

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the proposal to allow placement of the Prowler Memorial at the Marina lookout on E Pioneer 
Way near Pasek Street.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On February 9, 2015, Phelps McIlvaine presented a proposal to the Park Board to place a granite 
memorial obelisk in a City park in memory of three members of VAQ-129 who were killed in an EA-6B 
Prowler crash in 2013, including his nephew, Lt JG Will McIlvaine.  Mr. McIlvaine established a 501 C 
3 non profit called the Prowler Memorial Fund and donated $10,000 to the Fund to be applied to the 
cost of the memorial. cost of the memorial. 

Staff worked with Mr. McIlvaine on the process required for accepting such a donation, as identified in
the Substantial Gifts Policy section of the Gifts and Memorials Catalog.  The proposed memorial would 
stand approximately 6 ½ feet tall.  The design was inspired by a monument called the “Herndon” which is 
located at the Naval Academy. 

It was determined that the Marina lookout on E Pioneer Way near Pasek Street would be an ideal 
location for the memorial, and the Arts Commission has designated that area as a location for art.  There 
is a storm drain retention tank and a sewer lift station located near the site, but the monument would not
interfere with the infrastructure and the Storm Drain/Wastewater Collections Division of Public Works 
was consulted and has approved the site.  Also, letters were sent to neighboring residents informing them
of the proposed memorial and no comments were returned. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
On April 13, 2015 the Park Board unanimously approved a motion to recommend to City Council 

cost of the memorial. 

Staff worked with Mr. McIlvaine on the process required for accepting such a donation, as identified in 
the Substantial Gifts Policy section of the Gifts and Memorials Catalog.  The proposed memorial would 
stand approximately 6 ½ feet tall.  The design was inspired by a monument called the “Herndon” which is 
located at the Naval Academy. 

It was determined that the Marina lookout on E Pioneer Way near Pasek Street would be an ideal 
location for the memorial, and the Arts Commission has designated that area as a location for art.  There 
is a storm drain retention tank and a sewer lift station located near the site, but the monument would not 
interfere with the infrastructure and the Storm Drain/Wastewater Collections Division of Public Works 
was consulted and has approved the site.  Also, letters were sent to neighboring residents informing them 
of the proposed memorial and no comments were returned. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
On April 13, 2015 the Park Board unanimously approved a motion to recommend to City Council 

147



approval of the proposal to allow placement of the Prowler Memorial at the Marina lookout on E Pioneer 
Way near Pasek Street.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Prowler Memorial Rendering

approval of the proposal to allow placement of the Prowler Memorial at the Marina lookout on E Pioneer 
Way near Pasek Street.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Prowler Memorial Rendering

148

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=abce56620a35eed30d56f8b7a4c9e82b&aName=1432675173_at.pdf


149



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Report on the possible relocation 
of the RV Park to the Marina 
during the construction of the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
At the Council Meeting held on May 19, 2015, Councilmember Almberg moved that an agenda item be 
added concerning the RV Park location plan at the June 2 2015 Council Meeting:

Councilmember Almberg moved that in an effort to reduce the loss of revenue from the RV park and 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 11.b
Date: June 2, 2015

Subject: Report on the possible relocation 
of the RV Park to the Marina 
during the construction of the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
At the Council Meeting held on May 19, 2015, Councilmember Almberg moved that an agenda item be 
added concerning the RV Park location plan at the June 2 2015 Council Meeting:

Councilmember Almberg moved that in an effort to reduce the loss of revenue from the RV park and Councilmember Almberg moved that in an effort to reduce the loss of revenue from the RV park and 
negative cost impacts to the waste water treatment plant, the council has a very strong preference for the 
mayor and staff to prepare a schedule and cost estimate for the temporary relocation of the RV park at 
the Marina and the report to be deliverable no later than June 2, 2015 Council meeting. The Motion 
seconded Councilmember Campbell, and it was unanimously approved.

Staff is working to obtain cost estimates to provide temporary water and power to potential RV sites at
the Marina and will provide a report at the June 2, 2015 City Council meeting.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

Councilmember Almberg moved that in an effort to reduce the loss of revenue from the RV park and 
negative cost impacts to the waste water treatment plant, the council has a very strong preference for the 
mayor and staff to prepare a schedule and cost estimate for the temporary relocation of the RV park at 
the Marina and the report to be deliverable no later than June 2, 2015 Council meeting. The Motion 
seconded Councilmember Campbell, and it was unanimously approved.

Staff is working to obtain cost estimates to provide temporary water and power to potential RV sites at 
the Marina and will provide a report at the June 2, 2015 City Council meeting.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

150


	Agenda for June 2, 2015 Regular Council Meeting
	2.b  Proclamation for Pride Month
	3.b  OHPD 2014 Annual Report
	2014 Annual Report

	C/A 6.a  Minutes for the Special Workshop and Regular Council Meeting on May 19, 2015
	C/A 6.b  Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers
	Voucher Listings

	C/A 6.c  Ordinance 1729: Fire Proection Systems and Resoltion 15-17: Amending 'Schedule F' of the Master Fee Schedule
	Ordinance No. 1729
	Resolution 15-17
	Master Fee Schedule 'Schedule F'

	C/A 6.d  Ordinance 1734:  Adoption of Offical Zoning Map
	Ordinance No. 1734
	Official Zoning Map

	C/A 6.e  Resolution 15-18: Island County Hazard Mitigation Plan
	Resolution 15-18
	FEMA Approval Letter

	8.a  Ordinance 1720:  Amendment to Site Plan Review Procedures Code (OHMC 19.48)
	Ordinance 1720

	8.b  Ordinance 1733:  Sign Code Amendment - Banner Program
	Ordinance No. 1733

	8.c  Resolution 15-19:  Adopting Oak Harbor City Street Light Pole Banner Policy
	Resolution 15-19
	Banner Policy

	11.a  Prowler Memorial Proposal
	Prowler Memorial Rendering

	11.b  Report on Possible Relocation of the RV Park to Marina during WWTP Construction




